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CITY MANAGER 

November 15, 2010 

The Honorable Mayor, 
Members of the City Council and Citizens 
City of Fayetteville 
Fayetteville, North Carolina 

Dear Mayor, Members of the City Council , and Citizens: 

It is our pleasure to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the 
City of Fayetteville, North Carolina for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. State law 
requires that every local government publish a complete set of audited financial 
statements. The financial statements must be presented in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally 
accepted auditing standards by a firm of certified public accountants. This report 
complies with these requirements. 

The CAFR consists of management's representations concerning the finances of the 
City. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and 
reliability of the information contained in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for 
making these representations, management of the City has established a 
comprehensive internal control framework that is designed to protect City assets and to 
compile information for the preparation of the City's financial statements in conformity 
with GAAP. The cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits; therefore, 
the internal controls have been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute 
assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. 

Cherry, Bekaert & Holland, LLP, Certified Publ ic Accountants, have issued an 
unqualified ("clean") opinion on the City of Fayetteville's financial statements for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. The independent auditors' report is located at the front 
of the financial section of this report. 

Management's discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent 
auditors' report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic 
financial statements. MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in 
conjunction with it. 
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PROFILE OF THE CITY 

Fayetteville is a thriving community located in the Sandhills region of southeastern North 
Carolina and is the seat of Cumberland County. The City is approximately 60 miles 
south of the State capital of Raleigh. Fayetteville is located adjacent to Interstate 
Highway 95, a major north-south corridor linking the City with New York to the north and 
Miami to the south. 

Fayetteville has been recognized twice as an "All-America City" by the National Civic 
League and is known as a community of "History, Heroes and a Hometown Feeling". In 
1762, the town of Campbellton, located on the Cape Fear River, was chartered by the 
colonial assembly. In 1778, Campbellton united with the neighboring town of Cross 
Creek to become Upper and Lower Campbellton. In 1783, the North Carolina General 
Assembly approved the town's official renaming to Fayetteville in honor of the Marquis 
de Lafayette, the French nobleman who served as a Major General in the Continental 
Army during the Revolutionary War. 

Fort Bragg Army Base and Pope Air Force Base are located approximately 10 miles 
from the City's downtown. These bases form one of the largest military complexes in the 
world. This complex significantly adds to the culture of the community and the local 
economy. Fort Bragg is the home of the Army's only Airborne Corps and the 82nd 
Airborne Division as well as the US Army Special Operations Command. Pope Air 
Force Base, located adjacent to Fort Bragg, provides the fixed-wing aviation assets 
required to support Fort Bragg's missions. The Airborne and Special Operations 
Museum in downtown Fayetteville is just ·one indicator of the community pride and 
gratitude for these local heroes. 

Fayetteville is the sixth largest municipality in the State with a population estimated at 
207,788, and encompassing 148.04 square miles as of June 30, 2010. The City's 
population has increased by 71.7% or 86,773 residents since the last U.S. Census on 
April 1, 2000. Much of the population growth has resulted from the City's statutory 
authority to extend its corporate limits through annexation. In September 2005, the City 
completed an annexation , referred to as "Phase V", of approximately 42 ,000 residents 
and 27 square miles. Most recently, the North Carolina General Assembly approved 
legislation to annex portions of Fort Bragg into the City effective September 1, 2008. 
This annexation added approximately 26,000 residents and 54 square miles to the City. 

The City has a council-manager form of government. Nine members of the City Council 
are elected from districts and the Mayor is elected at large. Each of the Council 
Members and the Mayor serve two-year concurrent terms. The City Council has policy 
making and legislative authority. The Council is responsible for the approval of the 
budget and appointment of the City Manager, City Attorney, Public Works Commission 
and members of other City boards, committees and commissions. The City Manager is 
responsible for implementing Council policies and City ordinances, managing daily · 
operations and appointing department directors. 

The City provides its citizens with a full range of services , including police and fire 
protection, solid waste and recycling services, the construction and maintenance of 
streets, curbs, gutters, sidewalks and other infrastructure, recreation and cultural 
activities, fixed-route and demand-response transit service, airport service, and electric, 
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water and wastewater utilities. This report includes all of the City's activities in delivering 
and administering these services. 

The Council is required to adopt a budget by July 1 $I of each year. The City is 
empowered to levy a property tax on both real and personal property located within its 
boundaries. The City's budget ordinance creates a legal limit on spending 
authorizations, and serves as the foundation for Fayetteville's financial planning and 
control. The annual budget is authorized at the department level in the General Fund, in 
operating, capital and transfer expenditure categories for the Electric, Water and 
Wastewater Funds and at the fund level for all other funds. 

LOCAL ECONOMY 

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when 
it is considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the 
City operates. 

The economy of Fayetteville is stabilized by the presence of Fort Bragg Army Base and 
Pope Air Force Base. Approximately 56,000 military personnel are stationed at Fort 
Bragg and Pope, with support from approximately 14,000 additional civilian employees. 
The direct impact of payroll alone added almost $3.2 billion to the regional economy in 
federal fiscal year 2009. 

Fort Bragg and Pope Air Force Base are transitioning as a result of the 2005 Base 
Realignment and Closure Commission (BRAC) decisions. The most significant changes 
affecting Fort Bragg include the relocation of the U.S. Army Forces Command 
(FORSCOM) and U.S. Army Reserve Command (USARC) headquarters from Fort 
McPherson, Georgia. Pope Air Force Base will be significantly impacted as real 
property, host installation responsibilities and base operations support will transfer to 
Fort Bragg as the Base transitions to Pope Army Airfield by March 2011. The 43rd Airlift 
Wing will be deactivated and the 43rd Airlift Group will be established to execute en route 
operations in support of deployments and training of Fort Bragg personnel. In June 
2007, the 440th Airlift Wing relocated to Pope Air Force Base from Milwaukee, Wisconsin 
and will assume responsibility for airfield and C-130 flight operations. The 23rd Fighter 
Group relocated from Pope Air Force Base to other air force bases in 2007. Other 
tenant units such as the 18th Air Support Operations Group, which directly supports Army 
operations, will remain. In total, the changes are projected to have a positive impact on 
the local economy. According to a growth plan commissioned by the Fort Bragg and 
Pope Air Force Base BRAC Regional Task Force, base realignments are expected to 
result in a net increase of 8,704 military personnel, civilian employees and contractors, 
and 16,498 family members to the region by 2013. 

In addition to Fort Bragg and Pope Air Force Base, substantial employment is also 
offered in the government sector through the public school system, colleges and 
universities, and county and city governments. Other major employers in the area 
include the Cape Fear Valley Health System, manufacturers such as the Goodyear Tire 
& Rubber Company, which has one of the largest tire producing factories in the world, 
and Purolator Products which produces auto filters, and Wal-Mart through its distribution 
center and retail outlets. 
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The State of North Carolina enacted legislation in September 2007 authorizing cash 
grants up to $30 million for the Fayetteville Goodyear plant. Goodyear must maintain at 
least 2,000 jobs at the plant and invest $200 million in facility upgrades by December 31, 
2012 to be eligible for grant payments. In February 2009, City Council approved an 
economic incentive agreement with similar eligibility requirements providing Goodyear 
with up to 10 annual payments of $100,000. In September 2009, Goodyear workers 
approved a new four-year contract. Plant officials expect to reach the $200 million 
investment milestone by December 2010. The plant, with approximately 2,650 
employees, is one of the area's largest and highest paying private employers. 

During the past five years, Fayetteville's annual unemployment rates have ranged from a 
low of 5.0% to a high of 7.3%, according to the North Carolina Employment Security 
Commission. In August 2010, the unemployment rates for Fayetteville, North Carolina 
and the United States were 7.2%, . 9.8% and 9.5%, respectively . Historical 
unemployment rates for Fayetteville, North Carolina and the United States are provided 
in the table below. 

Unemployment Rates' 
Fayetteville North United 

Year Carolina States 
2009 7.3 10.6 9.3 
2008 5.1 6.2 5.8 
2007 4.3 4.7 4.6 
2006 4.3 4.7 4.6 
2005 5.0 5.3 5.1 

* Source of unemployment data is the North Carolina Employment Security 
Commission 

During fiscal year 2010, the City approved 1,060 permits for new residential units valued 
at $104.9 million and 86 new commercial building permits valued at $43.1 million were 
issued for construction compared to 1,029 permits for new residential units valued at 
$97.4 million and 52 new commercial building permits valued at $64.0 million issued in 
fiscal year 2009. The local housing market has been impacted by the continued 
deployment of soldiers from Fort Bragg and the tightening of mortgage lending 
standards nationwide. While these conditions have presented challenges and 
contributed to a decline in the number of homes sold, Fayetteville has maintained 
steadily rising average values for home sales since 2000. In August 2010, Local Market 
Monitor, a North Carolina based research firm, described the Fayetteville housing 
market as being 13 percent undervalued and forecasted continued appreciation in the 
coming year. The stability of the housing market is attributed to the City's proximity to 
Fort Bragg and Pope military bases and the corresponding concentration of more stable 
government employment. 

The City is a major regional trade center in eastern North Carolina, with a significant 
number and variety of shopping plazas, centers and independent retailers. Evidence of 
the strong retail sector is reflected by one of the largest shopping areas of the Carolinas, 
a two-square mile area located within the city. Cross Creek Mall , the anchor of the 
shopping district, has more than one million square feet of floor space and four major 
department stores. Taxable sales in Cumberland County for fiscal year 2010 totaled 
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approximately $3.08 billion , which represented an 8.2% increase over fiscal year 2009. 
Historical sales for Fayetteville and Cumberland County are provided in the table below. 

Retail !Taxable Sales' 
Fiscal City of % Cumberland % 
Year Fayetteville Change County Change 
2010 N/A N/A $3,077,026,293 8.2 
2009 $2,348,317,596 2.10 2,844 ,376,173 3.4 
2008 2,300,524,240 2.10 2,751,850,877 0.19 
2007 2,253,207,756 9.30 2,746,626,602 9.7 
2006 2,061 ,503,490 N/A 2,504,743,152 N/A 

·The NC Department of Revenue does not provide municipal sales data after June 30, 2009. 
Available fiscal year 2005 and fiscal year 2006 data is not comparable. 

Overall, Fayetteville's economy is expected to remain stable. While Fayetteville is not 
immune from the challenges facing other cities in North Carolina and across the country 
as the nation slowly recovers from the recession , the proximity of Fort Bragg and the 
base realignments are expected to mitigate the impact of those economic challenges on 
the local economy. For 2010, the Milken Institute ranked the Fayetteville metropolitan 
area as the 18th best-performing of the 200 largest metropolitan areas based upon 
comparisons of job, wage and salary and technology growth. 

The City Council adopted a fiscal year 2011 budget based on modest rates of growth in 
the ad valorem tax base and taxable sales. Fayetteville 's strong strategic planning 
process and conservative fiscal management continue to allow the City to maintain a 
high priority on both the delivery of quality services and financial stability. 

LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING and MAJOR INITIATIVES 

The City's long-term vision is evident in Fayetteville's strong commitment to 
neighborhoods, enhancing the local economy, maintaining a vibrant downtown and 
major corridors, increasing leisure opportunities for its citizens, its diverse culture, rich 
heritage, and partnership with citizens, while maintaining a strong financial position . 

The City Council has committed to key goals and an action agenda consistent with 
Fayetteville 's vision. These goals and targets for action are discussed in the City's 
strategiC plan on the City's website at www.cUayetteville.nc.us. 

A key financial goal of the City for many years has been to maintain a minimum 10% 
undesignated fund balance level in the General Fund. In addition, the City's practice has 
been to appropriate fund balance for one-time expenditures or significant capital needs. 
These goals were met in fiscal year 2010 and were used to develop the fiscal year 2011 
operating budget Undesignated fund balance in the General Fund was $18.7 million or 
14.3% of total General Fund expenditures and transfers out at June 30, 2010, which 
exceeds the minimum 10 percent goal established by Council. 

Annually, the City adopts a six-year capital improvement program (CI P) for its electric, 
water and wastewater utility funds and a five-year CIP for other functions such as public 
safety, parks, transportation , storm water system, airport and transit The City also 
annually prepares a five-year financial forecast for its General Fund . The purpose of the 
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forecast is to enhance the City's financial planning process. The forecast incorporates 
the Council-adopted strategic plan, five-year capital improvement plan, capital funding 
plan, and adopted budget. 

Consistent with its capital funding policy, in fiscal year 2010 the City dedicated an 
amount equivalent to 6.36 cents of the 45.6-cent ad valorem tax rate, as well as 
specifically earmarked revenues, for the repayment of principal and interest on 
installment financing agreements for facilities and general obligation debt and for future 
cash funding of major capital improvements. The City designates any excess dedicated 
revenues at year-end and accumulated fund balance consistent with the adopted capital 
improvement funding plan. The City's commitment to the capital funding plan will 
generate significant funding capacity in future fiscal years. 

In September 2009, the City received upgrades of its credit ratings on general obligation 
bonds from AA- to AA+ and from Aa3 to Aa2 from Standard & Poor's (S&P) and Moody's 
Investor Services (Moody's), respectively. In May 2010, Moody's recalibrated the City's 
credit rating for general obligation bonds from Aa2 to Aa 1. These ratings are consistent 
with Council policy. 

The City also followed other practices designed to avoid using one-time revenues for 
recurring expenditures, to ensure an ongoing mix of pay-as-you-go and long-term debt 
funding of capital needs, and to periodically monitor revenues and expenditures to 
budget. 

The City also accomplished or continued work on several other financial, organizational 
and economic development goals including: 

• Through the end of fiscal year 2010, the City was awarded over $10 million in 
stimulus funding through the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009. 
These dollars fund the addition of 21 police personnel and equipment, two 
stormwater improvement projects, the purchase of five hybrid-diesel buses, the 
development of an energy efficiency program, a new fa9ade program, and 
homeless ness prevention and re-housing programs. 

• In partnership with Cumberland County, the City and its PWC moved forward 
with development and funding plans for the construction of an approximately 
300-space parking deck on Franklin Street in the downtown core. In May and 
June 2010, City Council authorized commencement of the project with design 
funding and approved financing the project with approximately $6.0 million in 
Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds. The financing agreement was 
executed in August 2010. 

• The City continued its efforts to complete its first comprehensive overhaul of its 
zoning and subdivision regulations in almost 50 years. This effort will result in 
the creation of a Unified Development Ordinance that will make development 
regulations more user-friendly, streamline the review process, modernize zoning 
districts and uses, establish minimum development standards, encourage high­
quality development, and incorporate sustainable development practices in the 
City's regulations. 
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• In October 2009, the City refunded $12.9 million in general obligation bonds and 
realized net present value savings of $869,000. 

• The City undertook an air service study for non-stop service to Washington, D.C .. 
to support economic development, particularly in support of the military market. 
Over the past two years, air carriers operating at the Fayetteville Regional Airport 
have increased flight capacity from 13 to 19 daily round trip flights servicing 
Atlanta and Charlotte. In addition, two daily non-stop flights to Dallas/Fort Worth 
commenced in June 2010. 

• In the spring of 2009, the City, Cumberland County and a local developer entered 
into an agreement to develop a 216-acre business park adjacent to Fort Bragg to 
provide office, retail and research and production facilities to serve the needs of 
the military and its partners. The City and County have received grants totaling 
$741,000 from the Department of Housing and Urban Development to fund 
infrastructure improvements at the All American Military Business Park. The 
construction of infrastructure improvements is underway, and the first tenant 
broke ground for the construction of a 10,000 square foot complex in March 
2010. 

• The Fayetteville Metropolitan Housing Authority (FMHA) was awarded a $20 
million HOPE VI Revitalization grant in April 2008 to demolish and replace two 
public housing projects comprised of barrack-style buildings built in the 1940s 
and 1950s. The City, the City's Public Works Commission (PWC) and the 
County have committed over $18 million for land, infrastructure, park 
development, housing and various fee waivers. The total project investment is 
expected to be approximately $119 million, the balance of which will be funded 
by private investment. During fiscal year 2010, the City continued to acquire 
properties, began the design of Blount's Creek Trail , provided funding for 
infrastructure improvements and assisted with the Community Gardens project. 
The FMHA began construction on 408 housing units, of which the first 32 are 
anticipated to be ready for lease for elderly residents by December 2010. 

• The City adopted a Sustainability Master Plan to reduce carbon emissions, 
conserve water, increase the tree canopy and produce energy savings. 

• The City enhanced fire protection services in north Fayetteville, opening Fire 
Station 19 in a temporary facility in August 2009. Construction of the permanent 
station is expected to begin in early 2011. Staffing for the new station and an 
additional engine company serving east Fayetteville was funded in part by a 
federal SAFER grant of over $2 .1 million awarded in February 2009. 

• The City continued redevelopment work on the 300 Block of Hay Street project, 
with the final phase of the project ahead of schedule. The City has expended or 
committed approximately $1.9 million to pay permit fees, acquire land, construct 
a parking lot and make streetscape improvements. Developers expect to invest 
approximately $11 million in the project to buy land from the City and construct a 
five-story, 46,000 square-foot retail and office space building, 20 townhouses and 
20 condominiums. The project is approximately 95 percent complete. 
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• City Council adopted a Transportation Development Plan (TDP), which was 
developed with the assistance of a consultant, in August 2009. Improvements 
identified in the plan that were implemented during fiscal year 2010 included 
extended service hours on three routes, and the addition of a new route in 
response to identified community needs. In addition, a new ADA-compliant 
transfer center was opened, 11 new vehicles were put in service, and the 
administration offices were renovated to be more energy efficient. 

• The City, with and through its PWC, accomplished or continued work on several 
utility system financial, operational and economic development policies and goals 
including: 

o Completed installation of nearly six miles of water mains to connect the 
PWC distribution system to the Fort Bragg system. PWC has a 40-year 
contract with the Department of Defense to provide water to the Fort 
Bragg Army installation and is working with Harnett County to provide a 
maximum daily demand of 16 million gallons a day. 

o Implemented its first rate increase of a multi-year plan in preparation for a 
new power supply contract that begins in 2012. PWC anticipates a 
considerable escalation in power costs and smaller annual rate increases 
will allow PWC to build its rate stabilization fund for use in future years to 
lessen the impact of a sizable one-time rate adjustment to customers. 

o Extended utility services to an additional 400 properties as part of the 
City's Annexation Phase V utility retrofitting project, bringing the total 
number of service extensions to over 1,000. Plans call for extending 
service to an additional 7,500 properties by 2024. 

o Refunded $125.8 million in variable rate revenue bonds with fixed rate 
revenue bonds, terminated the associated swap agreements and reserve 
fund and realized net present value savings of $3.1 million. PWC also 
issued $36.7 million in revenue bonds to finance various water and 
wastewater expansion and improvement projects. S&P affirmed PWC's 
AA- credit rating with a stable outlook, while Moody's affirmed PWC's Aa3 
credit rating and assigned a positive outlook. Subsequent to this 
transaction, Mo.ody's recalibrated PWC's credit rating upward from Aa3 to 
Aa2 in May 2010. 

o Achieved 100% compliance in a review of the electric system by the 
Southeastern Electric Reliability Council (SERC) to ensure operations 
meet federal requirements put in place to mitigate extensive blackouts 
such as the Northeast Blackout of 2003. 

o Moved forward with a study of offering internet broadband , cable and 
phone service through its fiber-optic network. Following a favorable 
market study, the City and PWC are continuing to evaluate the feasibility 
of a fiber-to-the-home initiative. 

During the year, the City continued or completed work on many significant capital 
. projects including the following: 

• Through fiscal year 2009, the City received grants totaling $16.0 million from the 
State of North Carolina for the development of the 15-acre North Carolina 
Veterans Park near the Airborne and Special Operations Museum in the 
downtown area. The completed park facility will include a formal garden, visitor's 
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center and freedom trail. Construction was completed on a comfort station, a 
connector walk and the Guardians Wall along Bragg Boulevard during fiscal year 
2010. The first phase of the park is expected to be completed and opened by 
July 2011. The second phase of the park development is contingent upon the 
relocation of the Rowan Street bridge and will require at least three additional 
years to be completed. 

The City made significant progress toward several improvement projects at the ­
Fayetteville Regional Airport , During fiscal year 2010, $5,2 million of funding 
from federal and state grants, passenger facility fees and airport operating 
revenues was invested in the projects, which included the rehabilitation of the 
primary runway, renovation of the aircraft rescue and fire fighting building , 
renovation of the parking lot and pay canopy and kiosks, and rehabilitation of the 
west general aviation ramp, 

The City invested $1,8 million in storm water drainage improvement projects 
during fiscal year 2010, These projects represent initial steps in addressing over 
$43 million of identified drainage improvement needs to be funded by a 
dedicated storm water improvement fee, 

The City implemented a major upgrade of the computer-aided dispatch and 
records management systems for the Police and Fire Departments, 

PWC opened its new Customer Service Center, a 10,000 square foot building, 
. designed to LEED standards (Leadership in Energy & Environmental Design), 
With the opening of the new Center, PWC centralized its customer service 
functions to its Operations Campus while providing customers several new 
conveniences including additional drive-thru lanes, additional parking and access 
to public transportation, 

PWC continued work to rehabilitate or replace aging water ,and sanitary sewer 
system infrastructure, The purpose of the project is to replace or reline existing 
water and sewer mains to improve quality of service, reduce losses and 
unaccounted for volumes and to extend the life of the distribution and collection 
systems, 

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) 
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of 
Fayetteville, North Carolina for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2009, In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a 
government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive 
annual financial report, This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting 
principles and applicable legal requirements, 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only, We believe that our 
current comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of 
Achievement Program's requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to 
determine its eligibility for another certificate, 
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This report is the work of the efficient and dedicated staff of the Finance Department. 
We wish to express our appreciation to all members of the department who assisted and 
contributed to the preparation of this report and to the entire City staff for their 
cooperation and assistance. Credit is also due to the Mayor and the members 9f the 
City Council for their unfailing support of the highest standards of professionalism in the 
management of Fayetteville's finances . 

Respectfully submitted, 

Q~~ ~bmw Lisa 1'. Smith 
City Manager Chief Financial Officer 
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC 
ACCOUNTANTS & 
CONSULTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The Honorable Mayor 
and Members of the City Council 

City of Fayetteville 
Fayetteville, North Carolina 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business­
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of 
Fayetteville, North Carolina (the "City") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively 
comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial 
statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of America. Those standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for 
our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 2010, and the respective 
changes in financial position and cash flows where appropriate, thereof and the respective budgetary 
comparison of the general fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 
15, 2010 on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing 
the results of our audit. 
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The management's discussion and analysis, and the required supplementary information as listed in 
the table of contents are not required parts of the basic financial statements but are supplementary 
information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain 
limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of 
measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit 
the information and express no opinion on it. 

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund financial 
statements and schedules, and other supplemental financial data, as well as the accompanying 
schedule of expenditures of Federal and State awards as required by U.S. Office of Management and 
Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and the 
State Single Audit Implementation Act, and schedule of expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges as 
required by the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies, for the year ended June 30, 
2010, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements of the City. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2010, and, in our opinion, is fairly 
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The 
introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us in 
the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express on opinion on them. 

CHERRY, BEKAERT & HOLLAND, L.L.P. 

Fayetteville, North Carolina 
November 15, 2010 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

As management of the City of Fayetteville ("the City"), we offer readers of the City's financial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2010. We encourage readers to read the information presented here in conjunction 
with additional information that we have furnished in the transmittal letter at the front of this report and 
the City's financial statements, which follow this narrative. 

Financial Highlights 

• The assets of the City of Fayetteville exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by 
$1.2 billion (net assets). Of this amount, $232.1 million (unrestricted net assets) may be used to 
meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. The government's total net 
assets increased by $58.8 million. 

• Net assets decreased $3.1 million to $422.7 million in fiscal year 2010 down from $425.9 million 
in fiscal year 2009 in the Governmental activities. Key factors in this decrease were primarily 
from a $7.8 million increase in public safety expenses partially attributed to increased costs for 
personnel, depreciation and compensated absences, $2.1 million increase in contractual 
payments to other local governments and the City's Water and Wastewater Fund that can be 
primarily attributed to the voluntary annexation of Fort Bragg, offset by increases in ad valorem 
property taxes ($3.1 million), other taxes ($2.0 million) and operating grants for public safety 
actitivites ($1 .7 million). 

• Net assets increased $61.9 million to $735.8 million in fiscal year 2010 up from $673.9 million in 
fiscal year 2009 in the Business type activities. By far, the largest portion of these net assets, 
$572.7 million or 77.8 percent, reflects the investment in capital assets less any related debt still 
outstanding that was issued to acquire those assets in the Electric, Water and Wastewater, 
Transit, Airport and Solid Waste Recycling activities. Capital contributions and operating funds 
offset by capital asset depreciation contributed to the $48.5 million increase in Capital Assets, 
Net of Related Debt. 

Current and Other Assets increased $52.5 million or 26.4 percent in the Business type activities. 
This increase is primarily due to a $23.1 million increase in investments held at year end and 
unspent bond proceeds of $22.9 million during fiscal year 2010 in the Electric, Water and 
Wastewater Funds in fiscal year 2010. 

• As of the close of fiscal year 2010, the City's governmental funds reported an ending fund 
balance of $71.7 million, an increase of $6.6 million in comparison to prior year. Approximately 
49.3 percent of total fund balance, or $35.4 million is available for spending at the government's 
discretion (unreserved fund balance). 

• At the end of fiscal year 2010, unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $28.6 million 
or 21.8 percent of total general fund expenditures and transfers out for the fiscal year. Of this 
amount, $9.9 million has been designated for subsequent year expenditures, special purposes, 
and capital projects, bringing the undesignated general fund balance to $18.7 million or 14.3 
percent of general fund expenditures and transfers out. 

• The City's total debt increased by $2.4 million during fiscal year 2010. 
• The City's most recent general obligation bond issue, was rated Aa2 (Moody's Investor 

Services) and AA+ (Standard & Poor's). The most recent revenue bond issue for the utility 
system was rated Aa3 (Moody's Investor Services) and AA- (Standard & Poors). Subsequently, 
in May 2010, Moody's recalibrated the City's general obligation bond credit rating upward from 
Aa2 to Aa 1 and the utility revenue bond credit rating upward from Aa3 to Aa2. 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Fayetteville's basic 
financial statements which consist of three components; 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) 
fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements as shown below. The basic financial 
statements present two different views of the City through the use of government-wide statements and 
fund financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains other 
supplemental information that will enhance the reader's understanding of the financial condition of the 
City. This report includes all funds of the City of Fayetteville as well as its component units, which are 
described in the following pages. Note 1 in the financial report includes further discussion of the 
reporting entity and description of funds. 

Required Components of Annual Financial Report 

Figure 1 

Management's Basic 

Discussion and Financial 

Analysis Statements 

Government-wide Fund 

Financial Financial 

Statements Statements 

Summary 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE 

Basic Financial Statements 

The first two statements in the basic financial statements are the Government-wide Financial 
Statements. They provide both short and long-term information about the City of Fayetteville's 
financial status. 

The next statements are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the activities of the 
individual parts of the City of Fayetteville's government. These statements provide more detail than the 
government-wide statements. There are four parts to the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the 
governmental funds statements; 2) the budgetary comparison statements; 3) the proprietary fund 
statements; and 4) the fiduciary fund statements. 

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes. The notes to the financial statements 
explain in detail some of the data contained in those statements. After the notes, supplemental 
information is provided to show details about the City's non-major governmental and proprietary funds 
and the internal service funds. The governmental and internal service funds are added together in one 
column on the basic financial statements. Budgetary information required by the General Statutes also 
can be found in this part of the statements. 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of 
the City of Fayetteville's finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business. 
The government-wide statements provide short and long-term information about the City's financial 
status as a whole. 

The two government-wide statements report the City's net assets and how they have changed. Net 
assets are the difference between the City's total assets and total liabilities. Measuring net assets is 
one way to gauge the City's financial condition . 

The government-wide statements are divided into two categories: 1) governmental activities and 2) 
business-type activities. The governmental activities include most of the City's basic services such as 
general administration, public safety, environmental protection, transportation, economic and physical 
development, and recreation and community facilities . Property and other taxes and state and federal 
grant funds finance most of these activities. The business-type activities are those that the City 
charges customers to provide. These include the electric, water and wastewater, airport, transit and 
solid waste recycling services offered by the City of Fayetteville or its Public Works Commission. 

The government-wide financial statements are on pages 0-1 and 0-2 of this report. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the City of Fayetteville's most significant 
activities. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that 
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like all other governmental entities 
in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or non-compliance) with 
finance-related legal requirements, such as the General Statutes or the City's budget ordinance. All of 
the funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and 
fiduciary funds . 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE 

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Most of the City of Fayetteville's 
basic services are accounted for in governmental funds. These funds focus on how assets can readily 
be converted into cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at year-end that will be available for 
spending in the next year. Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method called 
modified accrual accounting which provides a current financial resources focus. As a result, the 
governmental fund financial statements give the reader a detailed short-term view that helps him or her 
determine if there are more or less financial resources available to finance the City's programs. The 
relationship between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the 
Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation that is a part of the fund 
financial statements. 

The City of Fayetteville adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General 
Statutes. The budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of the 
City, the management of the City, and the decisions of the City Council about which services to provide 
and how to pay for them. It also authorizes the City to obtain funds from identified sources to finance 
these current period activities. The budgetary statement provided for the General Fund demonstrates 
how well the City complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the City succeeded in 
providing the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The budgetary comparison 
statement on page E-5 of this report uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using the 
same format, language, and classifications as the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes 
in Fund Balance. The statement shows four columns: t) the original budget as adopted by the City 
Council; 2) the final budget as amended by the City Council; 3) the actual resources, charges to 
appropriations, and ending balances in the General Fund; and 4) the difference or variance between 
the final budget and the actual resources and charges. 

Proprietary Funds - The City of Fayetteville has two kinds of proprietary funds. Enterprise Funds are 
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide 
financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its electric, water and wastewater, 
mass transit, airport and solid waste recycling operations. These funds are the same as those 
functions shown in the business-type activities in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of 
Activities. Internal Service Funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs 
internally among the functions of the City. The City uses an internal service fund to account for its fleet 
leasing program, fleet maintenance, and risk management activities. All of these services 
predominantly benefit governmental functions except for the fleet maintenance fund, which also 
provides service to the business type activities. These services have been included within their 
respective predominant activities in the government-wide financial statements. 

Fiduciary Funds - Trust funds are used to account for the activities of funds the City holds in trust 
for others. The City has two pension trust funds and two private-purpose trust funds. 

Notes to the Financia l Statements - The notes provide additional information that is essential to a 
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The 
notes to the financial statements are on pages F-t - F-48 of this report. 

Other Information - In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this 
report includes certain required supplementary information concerning the City's progress in funding its 
obligation to provide pension and other post-employment benefits to its employees. Required 
supplementary information can be found beginning on page G-t of this report. 
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CITY OF FAYETT EVILLE 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 

Net Assets. The following is a summary of net assets for the City of Fayetteville at June 30, 2010 
with comparative data for June 30, 2009. The City's combined net assets increased $58.8 million, or 
5.3% from fiscal year 2009 to 2010. Net assets may serve over time as one useful indicator of a 
government's financial condition. The information provided below provides a more detailed view of the 
City's net assets. 

City of Fayetteville's Net Assets (dol/ars in thousands) 

Figure 2 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities 

2009 2010 2009 2010 

Current and other assets $ 116.753 $ 123.226 $ 198,739 $ 251.232 $ 
Capital assets 388.385 380.300 699.081 728,186 

Total assets 505.138 503.526 897.820 979,418 

Long -te rm liabilities outstanding 51.022 51.880 179,445 184,428 
Other liabilities 28 ,259 28,918 44,468 59,204 

Total liabilities 79,281 80.798 223.913 243,632 

Net assets: 
Invested in capital assets , ne t of 
related debt 351,060 349,628 524,263 572,740 

Restricted 1,885 3,226 946 848 
Unrestricted 72,912 69,874 148,698 162.198 

Tolal net assets $ 425,857 $ 422,728 $ 673,907 $ 735.786 $ 

Total 
2009 2010 

315,492 $ 374.458 
1.087,466 1,108,486 
1.402,958 1,482,944 

230,467 236,308 
72,727 88,122 

303,194 324,430 

875.323 922,368 
2.831 4,074 

221.610 232,072 
1,099,764 $ 1.158,5 14 

The assets of the City exceeded liabilities by $1.2 billion as of June 30, 2010. Net assets is reported in 
three categories: Invested in capital assets, net of related debt of $922.4 million, Restricted net assets 
of $4.1 million and Unrestricted net assets $232.1 million. 

The invested in capital assets, net of related debt category is defined as the City's investment in City 
owned capital assets (e.g. infrastructure, land, buildings, automotive equipment, office and other 
equipment, and electric, water, and wastewater systems), less any related debt still outstanding that 
was issued to acquire those items. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; 
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending . Although the City's investment in its 
capital assets is reported net of the outstanding related debt, the resources needed to repay that debt 
must be provided by other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

Another category of net assets is restricted net assets. This represents resources that are subject to 
external restrictions on how they may be used. 

The final category of net assets is unrestricted net assets. This balance may be used to meet the 
government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. At June 30, 2010, $232.1 million, or 20% of 
the total net assets reported of $1.2 billion, is unrestricted. 
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CITY OF FAYETT EVILLE 

City of Fayetteville's Changes in Net Assets (dol/ars in thousands) 

Figure 3 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities 

2009 20tO 2009 20tO 

Revenues: 
Program revenues: 

Charges for services $ 12,936 $ 15,225 $ 241,663 $ 255,446 
Operating grants and contributions 10,857 10,881 2,945 3,674 
Capital grants and contributions 1,463 3,649 19,619 29,730 

General revenues: 
Property taxes 55,407 58,518 -
Other taxes 42,525 44,483 -

Grants and contributions not restricted 
to specific programs 815 296 -

Olher 3,317 2,020 4,920 3,262 
Total revenues 127,320 135,072 269,147 292,112 

Expenses: 
Administration 17,815 19,932 -
Public safety 64,355 72,107 - -
Environmental protection 12,049 11 ,098 -
Transportation 18,966 20,291 -
Economic and physical development 4,532 5,371 -
Recreation and community facilities 12,881 13,117 -
Interest and fees 1,981 1,694 -
Electric 144,715 142,996 
Water and wastewater 65,163 69,063 
Transit - 5,975 6,231 
Airport - 4,330 4,590 
Solid Waste Recycling - 1,919 1,944 

Total expenses 132,579 143,610 222,102 224,824 

Increase in net assets before transfers (5,259) (8,538) 47,045 67,288 
and special items 

Transfers 3,366 5,409 (3,366) (5,409) 

Increase in net assets (1,893) (3,129) 43,679 61,879 

Net assets, July 1 427,750 425,857 630,228 673,907 

Net assets, June 30 $ 425,857 $ 422,728 $ 673,907 $ 735,786 

Total 
2009 20tO 

$ 254,599 $ 270,671 
13,802 14,555 
21,082 33,379 

55,407 58,518 
42,525 44,483 

815 296 
8,237 5,282 

396,467 427,184 

17,815 19,932 
64,355 72,107 
12,049 11,098 
18,966 20,291 
4,532 5,371 

12,881 13,117 
1,981 1,694 

144,715 142,996 
65,163 69,Q63 
5,975 6,231 
4,330 4,590 
1,919 1,944 

354,681 368,434 

41,786 58,750 

-

41,786 58,750 

1,057,978 1,099,764 

$ 1,099,764 $ 1,158,514 

Governmental activities: Revenues for the City's governmental activities were $135.1 million, while 
total expenses were $143.6 million in fiscal year 2010_ The decrease in net assets for governmental 
activities, after transfers in, was $3.1 million . Key elements of this decrease are as follows: 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE 

• Ad valorem property tax revenues increased $3.1 million to $58.5 million due to development 
within the City and the revaluation of real property in 2009. Property taxes represent 43.3 
percent of total governmental revenues. 

• Other taxes of $44.5 million, which accounted for 32.9 percent of total governmental revenues 
increased $2.0 million from 2009 primarily due to increases in sales tax and utility franchise tax. 

• Those who directly benefited from 
service-fee based programs paid 
$15.2 million in charges for 
services and represented a 17.7 
percent increase ($2.3 million) from 

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities 

• 

2009. This increase can be 
primarily attributed to the 
reclassification of a portion of the 
storm water fees from operating 
contributions to charges for service 
in 2010. 

Other governments and 
organizations subsidized certain 
programs with operating grants 
and contributions totaling $10.9 
million in 2010. While this amount 

43% 

• Charges for Services 

• Operating grants and 
contributions 

3% • Capital grants and 
contributions 

• Property Taxes 

• Other Taxes 

• Other 

remained relatively unchanged from 2009, operating grants and contributions for public safety 
activities, including significant hiring grants, increased 148.8 percent ($1.7 million) from fiscal 

Expenses and Program Revenues -Governmental Activities 

80,000,000 ,-------,======'" 
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Admin Public Environ Transport Econ & Ree & In\ on Long 
Safety Protect Phys Camm Term Debt 

Protect FacUities 

year 2009, and operating 
grants and contributions for 
environmental protection 
activities decreased by 96.8 
percent ($2.3 million) primarily 
due to the reclassification of a 
portion of the storm water fees 
to charges for services. 
Operating grants and 
contributions include operating 
support from various federal 
and state agencies ($10.4 
million). 

• The governmental activities 
received $6.0 million in other 
revenues such as capital 
grants and contributions, 
interest and unrestricted 
grants. 

• The cost of all governmental activities this year was $143.6 million compared to $132.6 million 
in fiscal year 2009. This change resulted primarily from a $7.8 million increase in public safety 
operations that is partially attributed to increased costs for personnel, depreciation and 
compensated absences. In addition, contractual payments to Cumberland County, local 
municipalities, and the City's Water and Wastewater Fund increased $2.1 million, primarily due 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE 
to the City's voluntary annexation of Fort Bragg. Finally, transportation expenses increased 
$1.3 million in part due to payments to the City's Electric Fund for decorative street lights. 

• The City's four largest governmental programs - public safety (50.2 percent), transportation 
(14.1 percent), administration (13.9 percent), and recreation and community facilities (9.1 
percent), represent 87.3 percent of the total governmental activities. 

Business-type activities: 
Revenues for the City's business-type 
activities were $292.1 million, while 
total expenses were $224.8 million in 
fiscal year 2010. The increase in net 
assets for business-type activities, after 
transfers out of $5.4 million, was $61.9 
million, resulting in net assets of 
$735.8 million. Particularly, net assets 
increased in the electric, water and 
wastewater activities by $56.3 million, 
resulting in net assets of $686.8 million 
in fiscal year 2010, compared to 
$630.5 million in fiscal year 2010. By 
far, the largest portion of these net 
assets, $534.3 million or 77.8 percent, 
reflects the investment in capital assets 

10"10 1% 

88% 

• QlErali rggE¥lts ard 
OJr"'iri Wi orIS 

• ~t" g a'"lsard 
coriri Wi ors 

• aha" 

less any related debt still outstanding that was issued to acquire those assets. Capital contributions 
and operating funds offset by capital asset depreciation contributed to the $43.8 million increase in 
Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt in the electric, water and wastewater activities. 

Current and Other Assets in the electric, water and wastewater activities increased $55.3 million or 30.1 
percent. The increase is primarily a result of a $23.1 million increase in investments held at year end 
and unspent bond proceeds of $22.9 million during fiscal year 2010. 
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Financial Analysis of the City's Funds 

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance­
related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near­
term inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the 
City's financial requirements. Specifically, unreserved fund balance can be a useful measure of a 
government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of fiscal year 2010, unreserved fund 
balance of the General Fund was $28.6 million, while total fund balance reached $46.6 million. As a 
measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and 
total fund balance to total fund expenditures and transfers out. Unreserved fund balance represents 
21.8 percent of total General Fund expenditures and transfers out, while total fund balance represents 
35.5 percent of that same amount. 

The North Carolina Local Government Commission strongly recommends that local governments 
maintain an available fund balance of at least 8 percent of annual general fund expenditures. The 
City's goal is to maintain an undesignated fund balance of at least 10 percent of the succeeding year's 
expenditure budget. Undesignated fund balance is the component of unreserved fund balance after 
consideration for management's policy designations. The City's unreserved fund balance totals $28.6 
million. Of this amount, $2.9 million is designated for fiscal year 2010 appropriations and $7.0 million is 
designated for specific purpose and capital projects. The remaining unreserved fund balance of $18.7 
million is undesignated. 

The fund balance of the City's general fund increased by $0.7 million during the current fiscal year. Key 
factors in this increase can be attributed to: 

• Property tax revenues and county recreation revenues that were $1.4 million and $.7 million 
more than budgeted, respectively, due to the revaluation of real property. 

• Capital lease proceeds that were $1.1 million more than budgeted due to the financing of certain 
vehicles and equipment. 

• Personnel expenditures across all departments that were $1.5 million less than budgeted that 
was due in part to a hiring freeze. 

• $3.9 million in capital and operating budgets that were unexpended at June 30, 2010; however, 
these funds were encumbered, designated or reserved in fund balance. 

• In addition, $1.5 million was included in the budget beyond expenditure prOjections to ensure 
sufficient budget for unanticipated expenditures through the end of the fiscal year. 

• These positive variances were offset by a fund balance appropriation of $9.7 million which is an 
other financing source used to balance the budget but is not reflected as current year revenue. 

The Recreational and Cultural Fund is a major capital project fund used to account for resources used 
for the acquisition and construction of facilities such as parks, recreation centers and museums. 
Resources are provided through intergovernmental revenues, facility financing proceeds and transfers 
from other funds. At the end of fiscal year 2010, total fund balance of the Recreational and Cultural 
Fund was $1.4 million, of which $.6 million was reserved for contract encumbrances. 

At the end of fiscal year 2010, the Recreational and Cultural Fund reflected a $1.7 million decrease in 
restricted cash and a $2.0 million decrease in deferred revenue. This decrease can be primarily 
attributed to the recognition and use of grant revenue for the on-going construction of the NC State 
Veterans Park. 
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At June 30, 2010, the governmental funds of the City reported a combined fund balance 
of $71 .7 million, a 10.2 percent increase from the previous year. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

The City Council originally approved a $137.1 million general fund budget for fiscal year 2010, which 
represented a $2.3 million or 1.7% increase from the original budget for fiscal year 2009. The general 
tax rate was established at 45.6 cents per $100 value, reflecting the projected revenue-neutral tax rate 
following the 2009 property revaluation process. Significant appropriation increases for the fiscal year 
2010 budget included $2.4 million for 30 additional positions with equipment and support costs to 
enhance police services, $835,000 for law enforcement officer pay increases, $955,000 for 24 
additional fire suppression personnel, $455,000 in additional funding for transit service improvements, a 
$675,000 increase in funding dedicated for the capital funding plan, and an additional $2.9 million for 
reimbursement agreements with other local governments and Fort Bragg, primarily due to the impact of 
the annexation of a portion of Fort Bragg in September, 2008. These appropriation increases were 
offset by a $1 .3 million reduction in one-time funding for capital improvements, $1.3 million less for 
vehicle and equipment replacements, a reduction of $1.2 million in equipment financing debt service 
requirements and other personnel and operating expenditure reductions. 

An additional $1.6 million in current ad valorem taxes from real and personal property was expected to 
be generated compared to the fiscal year 2009 original budget, following the 2009 property revaluation 
process. An additional $1.3 million in revenues from sales taxes and $1.9 million from utility taxes were 
expected to be received in fiscal year 2010 compared to the fiscal year 2009 original budget, primarily 
reflecting the impact of the additional population and area from the September 2008 annexation of Fort 
Bragg, offset by declining per capita sales taxes due to general economic conditions. The original 
budget for fiscal year 2010 included a projected increase of $2.2 million in federal funding for public 
safety, including $1.5 million in anticipated grants for police personnel and related expenses, and 
$727,000 in grant proceeds for fire suppression personnel. Transfers to the general fund were 
projected to be $670,000 more than the original fiscal year 2009 budget primarily due to an increase in 
the transfer from the Electric fund. The $4.1 million fund balance appropriation for one-time 
expenditures and use of capital project reserves for fiscal year 2010 represented a $5.6 million 
reduction compared to the original $9.7 million fund balance appropriation originally budgeted in fiscal 
year 2009. 

During the fiscal year, the City Council approved budget increases of $10.9 million or 7.9% bringing the 
general fund budget for fiscal year 2010 to $148.0 million. The budget increase was primarily due to 
$5.3 million appropriated by Council for expenditures encumbered, deSignated or reserved for 
donations at June 30, 2009 and $8.6 million appropriated to refund outstanding bonds, offset by 
appropriation reductions of $1 .8 million for public safety positions and equipment related to grants that 
were not received or appropriated in another fund and $1.6 million across several departments based 
upon year-end expenditure projections. The increased budget appropriations were primarily funded by 
an additional fund balance appropriation of $5.6 million and $8.8 million in refunding bond proceeds, 
offset by a $1.5 million reduction in Federal intergovernmental revenues for anticipated public safety 
grants, a $1.4 million reduction in budgeted local option sales taxes, and a $661,000 reduction in state 
intergovernmental revenues related to beer and wine tax proceeds withheld by the state. 

Actual revenues and other financing sources for the general fund totaled $140.5 million, or $7.5 million 
or 5.1 % less than the final amended budget. The shortfall primarily related to a budgeted fund balance 
appropriation of $9.7 million, which is an other financing source that is not reflected as current year 
revenue. This shortfall was offset by ad valorem taxes that exceeded the budget by $1.4 million, capital 
lease proceeds that exceeded the budget by $1.1 million and restricted intergovernmental revenues 
that exceeded the budget by $1 .0 million, primarily due to County recreation proceeds and Powell Bill 
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allocations. Other revenues that did not reach budgeted levels included: a $636,000 shortfall in sales 
and service revenues primarily due to property lease proceeds and public safety services; a $222,000 
shortfall in other taxes primarily due to privilege license and gross receipts taxes on rental income, a 
$212,000 shortfall in unrestricted intergovernmental revenues which primarily reflects local option sales 
tax distributions and utility tax distributions, and a $197,000 shortfall in investment income. 

Actual expenditures and other financing uses totaled $139.8 million, or $8.2 million less than the final 
amended budget. There were approximately $3.9 million in expenditures budgeted for fiscal year 
2010 which were encumbered, designated or reserved for donations at June 30, 2010 to be 
reappropriated in fiscal year 2011. In addition, the final budget retained appropriations of approximately 
$1.5 million or 1% beyond department year-end expenditure projections to ensure sufficient budget for 
unanticipated expenditures through the end of the fiscal year, and personnel expenditures across all 
departmental budgets were $1.5 million less than budgeted in part due to a hiring freeze. The balance 
of the variance results from a variety of departmental operating expenditures being under budget. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital assets. The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type 
activities as of June 30, 2010, totals $922.4 million (net of accumulated depreciation and related debt). 
These assets include infrastructure; buildings; improvements; automotive equipment; office and other 
equipment; and electric, water, and wastewater utility systems. 

Major capital asset investments and contributions during the fiscal year included the following: 

• $7.1 million for water main to Fort Bragg and relocation of Spring Lake booster pump 
station 

• $6.4 million for water and wastewater rehabilitation of mains and laterals 
• $5.4 million for installation of wastewater utility systems in annexed areas 
• $5.2 million for airport runway, airfield and parking improvements 
• $4.7 million in street, sidewalk and drainage infrastructure projects 
• $2.7 million for Green and Russell Streets electric underground improvements 
• $2.2 million for public safety (police and fire) vehicles and equipment 
• $1 .9 million for electric distribution system transformers 
• $1.9 million for substation rebuilds and transformer replacements 
• $1.7 million for CAD/RMS hardware and software 
• $1.5 million for purchase and installation of water meters 
• $1 .3 million for Cross Creek Water Reclamation Facility residuals handling 

improvements 
• $1 .2 million for transit vehicles 
• $1.0 million for Veterans Park building and improvements 
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City of Fayetteville's Capital Assets (dol/ars in thousands) 
(net of accumulated depreciation) 

Figure 4 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities 

2009 2010 2009 2010 

Land and land rights $ 36 ,297 $ 36,800 $ 16,136 $ 16,598 $ 
Infrastructure 283 ,086 275,371 
Electric utility system 168,198 175,849 
Wastewater system 256,118 263 ,941 
Water system 153,797 169,362 
Equipment and machinery 9,411 9,714 

Buildings and improvements 46 ,562 46,171 46,002 51,453 

Equipment, furniture and 
4,546 3,253 799 631 

fixtures 
Computer software 1,865 1,189 
Computer equipment 2,330 1,368 
Vehicles 14,609 13,765 8,611 9,220 
Construction in progress 3,286 3 ,075 37,678 28 ,861 

Total 

52,433 $ 53,398 
283,086 275,371 
168,198 175,849 
256,118 263,941 
153,797 169,362 

9,411 9,714 

92,564 97,624 

5,345 3,884 

3 ,054 
2 ,330 1,368 

23 ,220 22 ,985 

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in Note 3 of the Basic Financial 
Statements. 
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Long-term Debt. As of June 30, 2010, The City had total bonded debt outstanding of $197.8 million 
(before loss on defeasance, see Note 5 in the financial statements), of which $22.3 million is debt 
backed by the full faith and credit of the City. In addition, the City has a number of capital leases and 
several installment notes outstanding. A summary of total long-term debt is shown in Figure 5. 

Bonded Debt, Capital Leases and Installment Notes Payable (dollars In thousands) 

Figure 5 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

2009 20tO 2009 20tO 2009 2010 

Bonded debt $ 28,459 $ 21,670 $ 154,877 $ 160,384 $ 183,336 $ 182,054 
Obligations under capital leases to,268 t3,863 - 98 10,268 13,961 
Installment note payable - 1,251 19,219 17951 19,219 19,202 
Totallong·term debt $ 38,727 $ 36.784 $ 174,096 $ 178,433 $ 2t 2,823 $ 215,217 

The City's total long-term debt increased by $2.4 million, or 1.1 %, during the past fiscal year. This 
increase is due to the issuance of new debt totaling $44.6 million and the amortization of loss on 
defeasance of $1.9 million offset by principal payments of $22.3 million and a decrease of $21.8 million 
due to the issuance of refunding bonds during fiscal year 2010. 

The City's other long-term obligations include a liability for the estimated amount of vacation and 
compensatory leave to ultimately be paid (compensated absences) of $8.7 million and a $12.4 million 
liability for Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB). 

The City's most recent general obligation bond credit ratings received in connection with the Series 
2009 General Obligation Refunding Bonds were upgraded to Aa2 (Moody's Investor Services) and AA+ 
(Standard & Poors). Subsequently, in May 2010, Moody's recalibrated the City's general obligation 
bond credit rating upward from Aa2 to Aa1. 

The City's most recent Public Works Commission revenue bond credit ratings received in connection 
with the Series 2009A Revenue Refunding Bonds and 2009B Revenue Bonds were affirmed at Aa3 
(Moody's Investor Services) and AA- (Standard & Poors). Subsequently, in May 2010, Moody's 
recalibrated the City's Public Works Commission revenue bond credit rating upward from Aa3 to Aa2. 
The City continues to meet all debt covenants and continuing disclosure requirements. 

The State of North Carolina limits the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of government can 
issue to 8 percent of the total assessed value of taxable property located within that government's 
boundaries. The legal debt margin for the City is approximately $956.6 million. The City has no bonds 
authorized but unissued at June 30, 2010. 

Additional information regarding the City's long-term debt can be found in Note 5 on pages 
F-22 - F-30 of this report. 
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Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget and Rates 

Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2011 

The City Council approved a $134.7 million general fund budget for fiscal year 2011, which represented 
a $2.4 million or 1.8% decrease from the original budget for fiscal year 2010. The tax rate remained the 
same at 45.6 cents per $100 value. Significant appropriation increases for the fiscal year 2011 budget 
included $1.4 million for employee pay increases, $1.7 million for retirement and healthcare benefit cost 
increases, $745,000 for vehicles (primarily replacements) and $462,000 for future expenditures of 
revenues restricted for the operation of the County Recreation District. These appropriation increases 
were offset by a $1 .0 million reduction in personnel funding due to the elimination or freezing of 23 
positions, a $1 .1 million reduction in personnel funding due to public safety grant positions that were 
included in the prior year budget but were either not funded or appropriated in other funds, a $2.3 
million reduction in funding for debt service requirements, a $426,000 reduction in current funding for 
annexation water and wastewater projects, a $1 .2 million reduction in contract service funding primarily 
attributed to streetlight installation and election costs funded in fiscal year 2010 but not in FY2011 and 
reduced sales tax revenue reimbursements for the County and other municipalities. The approximate 
$700,000 remaining balance of the budget reduction was primarily realized across operating 
expenditure accounts through the general fund. 

An additional $1.6 million in current ad valorem taxes from real and personal property is expected to be 
generated compared to the fiscal year 2010 original budget primarily reflecting increased real property 
values following the 2009 property revaluation process and natural growth. Federal intergovernmental 
revenues are budgeted $1 .6 million less than the original budget for fiscal year 2010, primarily reflecting 
the elimination of $1.5 million for anticipated public safety grants included in the fiscal year 2010 
budget. Fiscal year 2011 proceeds from sales tax distributions are projected at $1.6 million less than 
the fiscal year 2010 budget, reflecting the impact of the economic downturn over the past two years. 
Transfers from the PWC funds are expected to be $1.3 million higher in fiscal year 2011, reflecting a 
one-time return of $1 million in excess funding provided for completed annexation water and 
wastewater projects, an increase in the regular transfer from the electric funds of $626,000 based upon 
3.1 % of fiscal year 2009 electric fund net assets, offset by the termination of a $319,000 transfer to fund 
streetlight utility expenditures. The $3.0 million fund balance appropriation for one-time expenditures 
and projected salary savings for fiscal year 2011 represents a $1.1 million reduction compared to the 
original $4.1 million fund balance appropriation originally budgeted in fiscal year 2010. Finally, the 
fiscal year 2010 budget included $750,000 in loan proceeds that are not budgeted in fiscal year 2011. 

The City Council has since approved budget increases of $4.3 million or 3.2%, bringing the general 
fund budget for fiscal year 2011 to $139.0 million. The budget increase is primarily due to 
appropriations of $3.9 million for expenditures encumbered, deSignated or reserved for donations at 
June 30, 2010. The funding sources for the increased appropriations are a $4.3 million fund balance 
appropriation increase. 

Requests for Information 

This report is designed to provide an overview of the City's finances for those with an interest in this 
area. Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for additional 
information should be directed to the Chief Financial Officer, City of Fayetteville, 433 Hay Street, 
Fayetteville, NC 28301. 
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These basic financial statements provide a summary 
of the financial position of all governmental and business 
activities and, the major and nonmajor funds. They also 
serve as an introduction to the more detailed schedules 
that follow in subsequent sections. 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Assets 
Cash and investments 
Taxes receivable 
Accounts receivable 
Internal balances 
Assessment receivable 
Due from other governments 
Inventories 
Prepaid expenses 
Noncurrent portion of note receivable 
Restricted asset - cash and investments 
Restricted asset - accounts receivable 
Restricted asset - collateral pledged 
Restricted asset - other current 
Other assets 
Capital assets: 

Land and construction in progress 
Other capital assets, 

net of depreciation 
Total assets 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Restricted liabilities - accounts payable 
Unearned revenues 
Unearned deposits 
Long-term liabilities: 

Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 

Other liabilities 
Total liabilities 

Net assets 

Statement of Net Assets 
June 30, 2010 

Governmental 
Activities 

$ 78,198,331 
3,161 ,522 
4,176,173 

(1,799,874) 
630,776 

11 ,753,478 
104,678 
834,036 

7,720,437 
18,064,035 

382,827 

39,875,162 

340,424,404 
503,525,985 

14,630,152 

12,877,130 
156,979 

9,266,611 
42,613,595 

1,253,225 
80,797,692 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 349,628,675 
Restricted for: 

Capital projects 
Debt service 
Grant compliance 

Unrestricted 
Total net assets 

The notes to the fjnancial statements 
are an integral part of this statement. 

3,225,781 
69,873,837 

$ 422,728,293 

D-1 

Business 
Type 

Activities 

$ 81,763,007 

41,755,525 
1,799,874 

1,045,068 
13,343,557 

494,515 

92,025,554 
209,025 
306,077 

82,439 
18,407,247 

45,459,069 

682,727,040 
979,417,997 

23,927,724 
12,879,296 

34,643 
2,872,707 

14,961 ,034 
169,467,070 

19,489,343 
243,631 ,817 

572,740,121 

806,982 
41,258 

162,197,819 
$ 735,786,180 

Total 
Primary 

Government 

$ 159,961,338 
3,161 ,522 

45,931 ,698 

630,776 
12,798,546 
13,448,235 

1,328,551 
7,720,437 

110,089,589 
209,025 
306,077 

82,439 
18,790,074 

85,334,231 

1,023,151,444 
1,482,943,982 

38,557,876 
12,879,296 
12,911,773 
3,029,686 

24,227,645 
212,080,665 

20,742,568 
324,429,509 

922,368,796 

806,982 
41,258 

3,225,781 
232,071 ,656 

$ 1,158,514,473 
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Statement of Activities 
Year Ended June 30,2010 

Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Program Revenues Changes in Net Assets 

Operating Capital Prima!y Government 
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type 

Functions/Programs Exeenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Tota l 
Primary government: 

Governmental activities: 
Administration $ 19,932,088 $ 830,793 S 30,000 $ S (19,071,295) $ $ (19,071 ,295) 
Public safety 72, 106,589 3,648,358 2,764,654 5,408 (65,688,169) (65,688,169) 
Environmental protection 11,098,182 5,321,692 75,000 520,597 (5,180,893) (5,180,893) 
Transportation 20,291,431 924,384 5,509,654 96,757 (13,760,636) (13,760,636) 
Economic and physical development 5,371,176 70,995 2,396,648 383,277 (2,520,256) (2,520,256) 
Recreation and community facilities 13,117,175 4,428,944 105,460 2,642,557 (5,940,214) (5,940,214) 
Interest and fees 1,693,633 (1,693,633) 

Total govemmental activities 143,610,274 15,225,166 10,881,416 3,648,596 (113,855,096) 

Business-type activities: 
Electric 142,995,626 173,192,801 1,407,440 31,604,615 31,604,615 
Water and wastewater 69,063,071 75,419,483 22,835,906 29,192,318 29,192,318 
Transit 6,230,449 839,490 2,337,806 1,733,733 (1,319,420) (1,319,420) 
Airport 4 ,589,767 3,735,652 1,040,076 3,752,977 3,938,938 3,938,938 
Solid waste recycling 1,944,210 2,258,683 296,121 610,594 

Total business-type activities 224,823,123 255,446,109 3,674,003 29,730,056 64,027,045 

Total primary government $ 368.433,397 $ 270,671,275 14,555,419 33,378,652 (113,855,096) 64,027,045 (49,828,051 ) 

General revenues : 
Ad valorem taxes 58,518,101 58,518,101 
Other taxes 

Sales tax 30,789,881 30,789,881 
Utility franchise tax 4,738,762 4,738,762 
Telecommunications sales tax 1,995,826 1,995,826 
Piped natural gas tax 640,513 640,513 
Video franchise tax 2,660,091 2,660,091 
Vehicle license tax 622,951 622,951 
Privilege license 983,146 983,146 
Cablevision franchise tax 372,226 372,226 
Vehicle gross receipts tax 477,886 477,886 
Wireline 911 tax and wireless consolidated funds 1,060,306 1,060,306 
Solid waste disposal tax 141,302 141,302 

Unrestricted grants and contributions 295,870 295,870 
Interest earned on investments 1,157,788 3,133.521 4,291,309 
Miscellaneous 652,055 87.444 739,499 
Gain on sale of capita! assets 210,072 40,942 251,014 

Total general revenues not including transfers 105,316,776 3,261,907 108,578,683 
Transfers 5,409,378 (5,409,378) 

Total general revenues and transfers 110.726,154 (2,147,471) 108,578,683 

Change in net assets (3,128,942) 61,879,574 58,750,632 

Net assets - beginning 425,857,235 673,906,606 1,099,763.841 
Net assets - ending $ 422,728,293 $ 735,786,180 $ 1,158,514,473 

Tho notes to the ftnancl~1 statements aro an IntOllrnl part or thi s statomcnt. D-2 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Assets 
Cash and investments 
Taxes receivable 
Accounts receivable 
Interfund receivable 
Assessments receivable 
Inventories 
Restricted asset· cash and inveslments 

Total assets 

Liabilities and fund balances 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Unearned deposits 
Deferred revenues 

Total liabilities 

Fund balances: 
Reserved 

By State statute 
For encumbrances 
for inventories 
For downtown 
For county recreation 
For streets - Powell Bill 
For JP Riddle Stadium 
For donations 
for grant compliance 
For bond projects 

Unreserved 
Designated 

For subsequent year's expenditures 
For special purpose 
For capital projects 

Undesignated 
Unreserved, reported in nonmajor: 

Designated for subsequent year's expenditures 
Special revenue 
Capital projects 

Designated for special purpose 
Special revenue 

Undesignated 
Special revenue 
Capital projects 

Total fund balances 

Total liabilities and fund balances 

The notes to the financial statements are an 
integral part of this statement. 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Balance Sheet 
Governmental Funds 

June 30, 2010 

Recreational 
and Cultural 

General Fund 

42,543,129 $ 1,354,589 
2,968,369 

12,875,388 29,925 
213,918 
630,776 
104,678 

1,071,729 12,050,110 
60,407,987 $ 13,434,624 

9,257,973 $ 383,951 
108,739 

4,452,697 11,714,339 
13,819,409 12,098,290 

12,805,674 29,925 
2,597,091 603,544 

104,678 
104,316 

2,273,244 

59,410 
28,115 

2,908,969 
3,558,494 
3,424,312 702,865 

18,724,275 

46,588,578 1,336,334 

60,407,987 $ 13,434,624 

E-1 

Other Total 
Governmental Governmental 

Funds Funds 

$ 19,089,419 $ 62,987,137 
2,968,369 

9,758,654 22,663,967 
213,918 
630,776 
104,678 

4,942,196 18,064,035 
$ 33,790,269 S 107,632,880 

S 1,777,398 S 11,419,322 
48,240 156,979 

8,220,757 24,387,793 
10,046,395 35,964,094 

4,427,646 17,263,245 
9,863,469 13,064,104 

104,678 
104,316 

2,273,244 
2,425,237 2,425,237 

59,410 
28,115 

800,544 800,544 
190,158 190,158 

2,908,969 
3,558,494 
4, 127,177 

18,724,275 

1,025,386 1,025,386 
3,765,339 3,765,339 

2,420,000 2,420,000 

80,866 80,866 
(1,254,771) (1,254,771) 
23,743,874 71,668,786 

$ 33,790,269 $ 107,632,880 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA, 

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the 
Statement of Net Assets 

June 30, 2010 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because: 

Ending fund balance - governmental funds 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, 
therefore, are not reported in the funds. Those assets consist of: 

Land $ 20,660,176 
Right of Way 
Construction in progress 
Infrastructure 
Buildings and improvements 
Furniture and equipment 
Computer software 
Vehicles 
Accumulated depreciation 

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and, 
therefore; are deferred in the funds. 

Costs of bond issuance are current-period expenditures in the funds, but will be 
deferred in the statement of net assets and amortized over the life of the outstanding 
debt. 

Prepaid expenses are current-period expenditures in the funds, but are assets not 
available to pay current-period expenditures and, therefore, are capitalized. 

Accrued tax penalties receivable are not available to pay for current-period 
expenditures and, therefore, are not recorded in the funds. 

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of warranty 
fleet, fleet maintenance and insurance expenses to individual funds. The assets and 
liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental activities. 

Accrued interest payable on long-term debt is not a current expenditure and therefore 
not recorded in the funds. 

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current 
period and therefore are not reported in the funds. Those liabilities consist of: 

16,139,995 
3,074,991 

453,850,127 
71,859,295 
22,150,988 

4,155,010 
37,410,398 

General obligation bonds 
Revenue bonds 

$ (15,290,134) 

Notes payable 
Obligations under capital leases 
Net OPES obligation 
Compensated absences 

Net assets of governmental activities 

The notes to the financial statements are an 
integra l part of this statement. E-2 

(6,380,000) 
(1 ,250,598) 

(13,863,292) 
(9,293,442) 
(5,373,010) 

$ (51,450,476) 

$ 71,668,786 

378,391,476 

11,518,849 

(870,401) 

533,806 

193,151 

13,114,174 

(371 ,072) 

(51 ,450,476) 

$ 422,728,293 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
Governmental Funds 

Revenues 
Ad valorem taxes 
Other taxes and fees 
Unrestricted intergovernmental 
Restricted intergovernmental 
Permits and fees 
Sales and services 
Miscellaneous 
Interest earned on investments 

T alai revenues 

Expenditures 
Current: 

Administration 
Public safety 
Environmental protection 
Transportation 
Economic and physical development 
Recreation and community facilities 

Debt service: 
Principal 
Interest 
Bond issuance costs 

T alai expenditures 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Sale of capital assets 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Proceeds from loans 
Proceeds from capital leases 
Refund ing bonds issued 
Premium on refunding bonds 
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balance - beginning 

Fund balance - ending 

The noles 10 Ihe financial statements are an 
Integral part of this slatement. 

$ 

$ 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Recreational Other 
and Cultural Governmental 

General Fund Funds 

58,699,957 $ $ 
2,464,111 6,173,198 

41,927 ,788 
9,730,687 1,976,168 5,258,097 
1,880,274 
3,182,815 
2,022,118 2,095 812,920 

647,168 169,370 113,261 
120,554,918 2,147,633 121357,476 

19,837,540 245,384 
62,548,890 7,581,042 

7,338,882 4,594,489 
7,376,429 3,331,491 
1,316,359 4,076,776 

10,941,278 2,320,867 222,155 

,5,815,747 3,439,569 
993,526 535,063 
131,014 

116,299,665 2,320,867 24,025,969 

4,255,253 (173, 2341 . (11 ,668,4931 

203,916 6,156 
9,161,901 258,001 13,903,779 

(14,932,174) (164,291) (2,162,888) 
750,000 500,598 

1,071,729 5,479,080 
7,896,115 

863,131 
(8,600,3081 
(3,585,6901 93,710 17,726,725 

669,563 (79,524) 6,058,232 

45,919,015 1,415,858 17,685,642 

46,588,578 $ 1,336,334 $ 23,743,874 

E-3 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 58,699,957 
8,637,309 

41,927,788 
16,964,952 

1,880,274 
3,182,815 
2,837,133 

929,799 
135,060,027 

20,082,924 
70,1 29,932 
11,933,371 
10,707,920 
5,393,135 

13,484,300 

9,255,316 
1,528,589 

131,014 
142,646,501 

(7,586, 4741 

210,072 
23,323,681 

(17,259,353) 
1,250,598 
6,550,809 
7,896,115 

863,131 
(8,600,3081 
14,234,745 

6,648,271 

65,020,515 

$ 71,668,786 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the 
Statement of Activities 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because: 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the 
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated 
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. Th is is the amount by which 
depreciation ($20,030,417) exceeded capital outlay ($12,383,988) in the current 
period. 

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets (i.e. sales, 
trade-ins, and donations) is to decrease net assets. 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources 
are not reported as revenues in the funds. 

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, leases) provides current financial 
resources to governmental funds , while the repayment of the prinCipal of long-term 
debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds . Neither 
transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, government funds report 
the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is 
first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of 
activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long­
term debt and related accounts. 

New issuance - capital lease 
New issuance - note payables 
New issuance - general obligation debt 
Refunded bonds 
Principal repayments 
Change in net OPEB obligation 
Change in compensated absences 
Other miscellaneous 

$ (6,550,809) 
(1,250,598) 
(8,759,246) 
8,600,308 
9,255,316 

(2,081,163) 
(655,854) 

12,604 
$ (1,429,442.00) 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of 
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. 

The net revenue of certain activities of internal service funds is reported with 
governmental activities. 

Change in net assets of governmental activities 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statemenl E-4 

$ 6,648,271 

(7,646,429) 

(121,171) 

(444,566) 

(1,429,442) 

678 

(136,283) 

$ (3,128,942) 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

REVENUES 
Ad valorem taxes 
Other taxes 
Unrestricted intergovernmental 
Restricted intergovernmental 
Permits and fees 
Sales and services 
Miscellaneous 
Interest earned on investments 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Administration 
Public safety 
Environmental protection 
Transportation 
Economic and physical development 
Recreation and community facilities 

Debt Service: 
Principal 
Interest 
Bond issuance costs 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Sale of capital assets 
Appropriated fund balance 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Proceeds from loans 
Proceeds from capital leases 
Refunding bonds issued 
Premium on refunding bonds 
Payment to refunding bond escrow agent 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 

The notes to the financial statements are an 
integral part of this statement. 

Budget and Actual - General Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Original Final 
Actual 

Budget Budget 

$ 57,261,858 $ 57,261,858 $ 58,699,957 
2,686,579 2,686,579 2,464,111 

44,102,796 42,139,866 41 ,927,788 
10,256,333 8,760,524 9,730,687 

1,987,000 1,987,000 1,880,274 
3,818,886 3,818,886 3,182,815 
1,939,922 1,949,922 2,022,118 

844,000 844,000 647,168 
122,897,374 119,448,635 120,554,918 

23,644,629 21,629,546 19,837,540 
65,802,847 65,593,930 62,548,890 

7,322,394 7,962,755 7,338,882 
7,783,734 7,919,386 7,376,429 
1,819,988 1,827,042 1,316,359 

11,910,134 12,208,624 10,941,278 

7,139,991 5,976,263 5,815,747 
1,474,606 994,219 993,526 

131,014 131 ,014 
126,898,323 124,242,779 116,299,665 

(4,000,949) (4,794,144) 4,255,253 

225,000 225,000 203,916 
4,104,101 9,668,300 
9,172,772 9,172,772 9,161,901 

(10,250,924) (15,180,866) (14,932,174) 
750,000 750,000 750,000 

1,071,729 
7,896,115 7,896,115 

863,131 863,131 
(8,600,308) (8,600,308) 

4,000,949 4,794,144 (3,585,690) 

$ $ 669,563 

45,919,015 

$ 46,588,578 

E-5 

Variance 
With Final 
Positive 

(Negative) 

$ 1,438,099 
(222,468) 
(212,078) 
970,163 

(106,726) 
(636,071) 

72,196 
(196,832) 

1,106,283 

1,792,006 
3,045,040 

623,873 
542,957 
510,683 

1,267,346 

160,516 
693 

7,943,114 

9,049,397 

(21,084) 
(9,668,300) 

(10,871) 
248,692 

1,071,729 

(8,379,834) 

$ 669,563 



CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Statement of Net Assets 
Proprietary Funds 

June 30, 2010 

EnterE!rise Funds 
Water and Nonmajor Internal 

Electric Wastewater Enterprise Service 
Fund Fund Funds Total Funds 

Assets 
Current assets 

Cash and investments $ 52,476,420 $ 21,534,702 $ 7,751,885 $ 81,763,007 $ 15,211,194 
Accounts receivable 25,499,367 15,405,629 1,895,597 42,800,593 986,123 
Interfund receivable 119,382 5,533 124,9 15 
Inventories 11,826,219 1,362,410 154,928 13,343,557 
Prepaid expenses 184,363 306,402 3,750 494,515 300,230 

Total unrestricted current assets 90,105,751 38,614,676 9,806,160 138,526,567 16,497,547 

Restricted current assets 
Restricted cash and investments 39,349,691 51,993,968 681,895 92,025,554 
Accounts receivable 84,047 124,978 209,025 
Collateral pledged in lieu of deposits 306,077 306,077 
Other restricted current assets 82,439 82,439 

Tolal restricted current assets 39,739,815 52,201 ,385 681,895 92,623,095 

Tota l current assets 129,845,566 90,816,061 10,488,055 231,149,682 16,497,547 

Noncurrent assets 
Other assets 3,544,853 14,862,394 18,407,247 
Capital assets 227,114,605 462,599,814 38,471,690 728,186,109 1,908,090 

Total noncurrent assets 230,659,458 477,462,208 38,471,690 746,593,356 1,908,090 

Total assets 360,505 ,024 568,278,269 48,959,745 977,743,038 18,405,637 

liabilities and net assets 
Current liabilities to be paid from 
unrestricted assets 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 14,337,611 8,770,776 819,337 23,927,724 2,839,756 
Current portion of tong term debt 2,950,408 11,773,103 237,523 14,961,034 138,374 
Interfund payables 213,918 213,918 124,915 
Unearned deposits 675 675 

Total current liabilities to be paid 
from unrestricted assets 17,288,019 20,543,879 1,271,453 39,103,351 3,103,045 

Currenlliablilies to be paid from 
restricted assets 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 5,862,367 7,016,929 12,879,296 
Total current liabilities to be paid 
from restricted assets 5,862,367 7,016,929 12,879,296 

Total current liabilities 23,150,386 27,560,808 1,271,453 51,982,647 3,103,045 

Noncurrent liabilities 
Unearned depoSits 10,985 2,861,047 2,872,032 
Nel OPES obligation 1,1 22,349 1,288,702 467,897 2,878,948 238,026 
Deferred revenues 34,643 34,643 8,186 
Accrued vacation 53,329 
Long-term debt 17,722,904 148,786,201 79,017 166,588,122 
Other liabilities 3,340,896 16,148,4 47 19,489,343 

Total noncurrent liabilities 22,197,134 169,084,397 581 ,557 191,863,088 299,541 

Total liabil ities 45,347,520 196,645,205 1,853,010 243,845,735 3,402,586 

Net assets 
Invested in capital assels, net of related debt 207,919,958 326,348,473 38,471 ,690 572,740,121 1,908,090 
Reslricted net assets 

Capital projects 9,758 797,224 806 ,982 
Debt service 51 41,207 41,258 

Unrestricted 107,237,495 45,233,626 7,837,821 160,308,942 13,094,961 
Total net assets S 315,157,504 S 371 ,633,064 $ 47,106,735 733,897,303 $ 15,003,051 

Some amounts reported for business-type activities in the statement of net assets are different 
because certain internal service fund assets and liabilities are included with business type activities. 1,888,877 

Net assets of business-type activities S 735,786,180 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. E-6 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets 
Proprietary Funds 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Enteq~rise Funds 
Water and Nonmajor Internal 

Electric Wastewater Enterprise Service 
Fund Fund Funds Total Funds 

Operating revenues 
Charges for services S 173,192,801 S 64 ,355,514 S 6,639 ,175 S 244,187 ,490 S 
Other revenue from operations 194,650 194,650 7,141,687 
Inlerfund charges and employee contributions 14,261 ,195 
Miscellaneous operating revenue 11 ,063,969 11,063,969 1,285 

Total operating revenues 173,192,801 75 ,419,483 6,833,825 255,446 ,109 21,404,167 

Operating expenses 
General and administrative 11 ,510,382 11 ,847,036 23,357,418 
Power supply and generation 103,856,516 103,856,516 
Electric operation 11 ,249,470 11 ,249,470 
Miscellaneous operating expense - water 11 ,063,969 11 ,063 ,969 
Water operations 12,415,704 12,415 ,704 
Wastewater operations 11 ,390,966 11 ,390,966 
Salaries and employee benefits 4,541,412 4,541,412 401 ,600 
Other operating expenses 5,586,431 5,586,431 20,363,264 
Depreciation 14,736,900 14,771,966 2,349,941 31 ,858,807 329,000 

Total operating expenses 141 ,353,268 61 ,489,641 12,477,784 215,320,693 21,093,864 

Operating income (loss) 31 ,839,533 13,929,842 (5 ,643,959) 40,125,416 310,303 

Nonoperating revenue (expense) 
Interest earned on investments 1,822,762 1,227,879 82,880 3,133,521 204 ,032 
Federal and State grants 1,834,241 1,834,241 
Passenger Facility Charges 894,481 894,481 
Miscellaneous revenue 87,444 87,444 155 
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets (399 ,293) 40,892 (27 ,883) (386,284) 4,177 
County revenue 296,121 296,121 
Vehicle fee revenue 649,160 649,160 
Interest expense (983,829) (6,618,794) (14 ,003) (7 ,616 ,626) 
Amortization (238 ,543) (842,713) (1 ,081,256) 
Miscellaneous expense (244,706) (244,706) 
Issuance costs (20 ,693) (111,923) (132 ,616) 

Total nonoperating revenue (expense) 180,404 (6,304,659) 3,557,735 (2,566,520) 208,364 

Income (loss) before transfers 32,019,937 7,625,183 (2 ,086,224) 37,558,896 518,667 

Transfers in 20,847 1,042,178 2,649,540 3,712,565 1,921 ,100 
Transfers out (8 ,691,161) (79) (430,703) (9 ,121,943) (2,576,050) 
Capital contributions 1,407,440 22 ,835,906 5,486,710 29,730,056 

Change in net assets 24,757,063 31 ,503,188 5,619,323 61 ,879,574 (136,283) 

Total net assets - beginning 290,400,441 340,1 29,876 41 ,487 ,412 15,139,334 

Total net assets - ending S 315,157,504 S 371 ,633,064 S 47 ,106,735 S 15,003,051 

Some amounts reported for business-type activities in the statement of activities are different 
because the net revenue (expense) of certain internal service funds is reported with business-type activities. 

Change in net assets of business-type activities S 61 ,879,574 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. E-7 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Funds 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Enteq~rise Funds 
Water and Nonmajor Internal 

Electric Wastewater Enterprise Service 
Fund Fund Funds Total Funds 

Operating activities 
Cash received from customers S 170,630 ,249 S 75,260,688 S 12,539,336 S 258,430,273 S 21,024,587 
Cash received for insurance reimbursements 433,283 
Cash paid to or on behalf of employees for services (12,498,460) (18,378,681) (4,373,823) (35,250,964) (2,351,179) 
Cash paid for goods and services (6,951,703) (20,144,293) (9,824,403) (36,920,399) (18,571 ,254) 
Cash paid for power supply and generation 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
p03, 856 , 516~ {103,856,516) 

operating activities 47,323,570 36,737,714 (1 ,658,890) 82,402,394 535,437 

Noncapital financing activities 
Transfers in 20,847 1,042,178 2,649,540 3,712,565 1,921 ,100 
Federal and Siale grants 1,834,241 1,834,241 
Transfers out (8,691,161) (79) (430,703) (9,121,943) (2,576,050) 
Vehide revenue fees 649,160 649,160 

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital 
financing activities {8,670,314) 1,042,099 4,702,238 {2,925,977) (654,950) 

Capital and related financing activities 
Proceeds from sale of capital (399,293) 40,892 29,260 (329,141) 4,177 
Proceeds from debt issuance 19,464,803 142,519,821 98,191 162,082,815 
Contributed capital received 1,407,440 5,143,610 5,486,710 12,037,760 
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (19,422,853) (27,462,854) (7,071,695) (53,957,402) (10,894) 
Principal paid in debt maturities (20,422,853) (11,227,530) (35,624) (31,686,007) 
Swap termination payment (7,918 ,129) (7,918,129) 
Refunded bonds (111,769,641) (111,769,641) 
Interest paid on debt maturities p ,004,522) (6,730,717) (14 ,003~ F,749,242~ 

Net cash provided (used) by capital and 
related financing activities (20,377,278) (17,404,548) (1,507,161) (39,288,987) (6,717) 

Investing activities 
Interest and dividends 1,822,762 1,227,879 82,880 3,133,521 204,032 
Net change in investments PO,823,913) (89,752) (30 ,913,665) 

Net cash provided (used) by Investing activities {29,OOI,151) 1,138,127 82,880 (27,780,144) 204,032 

Net Increase (decrease) In cash and cash 
equivalents/investments (10,725,173) 21 ,513,392 1,619,067 12,407,286 77,802 

Cash and cash equivalents/investments 
Beginning of year 52,450,520 34 ,992,997 6,814,713 94,258,230 15,133,392 

End of year S 41,725,347 S 56,506,389 S 8,433,780 S 106,665,516 S 15,211,194 

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalentslinvestments S 19,813,178 S 13,438,216 S 7,751,885 S 41,003,279 $ 15,211 ,194 
Restricted cash and equivalentslinvestments 21,912,169 43,068,173 681,895 65,662,237 

Total cash and cash equivalentslinvestments S 41,725,347 S 56,506,389 S 8,433,780 S 106,665,516 S 15,211,194 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statements. E-8 



CITY OF FAYETTEVIllE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Funds 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Entererise Funds 
Water and Nonmajor Internal 

Electric Wastewater Enterprise Service 
Fund Fund Funds Total Funds 

Reconciliation of operating Income ([oss) 
to net cash provided by 
(used in) operating activities 
Operating income (loss) S 31,839,533 S 13,929,842 S (5,643,959) S 40,125,416 S 310,303 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) 

to net cash provided by (used in) operating 
activities: 
Depreciation 14,736,900 14,771 ,966 2,349,941 31,858,807 329,000 
Nonoperating payments for goods and services (244,706) (244,706) 
AlIo\'Iance for uncollectible accounts (8,264) 8,530 266 
Nonoperating receipts from customers 1,278,046 1,278,046 155 

Change in assets and liabilities 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (2,517,498) (167,325) 4,413,678 1,728,855 52,662 
(Increase) decrease in inventory 390,538 22,635 (6,483) 406 ,690 
(Increase) decrease in prepaid items (218,846) 
(Increase) decrease in internal balances 118,787 93,524 212,311 (212,311) 
(Increase) decrease in other current assets 24,976 (123,682) (98,706) 
(Increase) decrease in other assets (221,475) (8,284,171) (8,505,646) 
(Increase) decrease in unearned deposits (5,214) (301,523) (306,737) 
(Increase) decrease in accounts payable 

and accrued liabilities 3,021,187 16,719,707 (3,986,783) 15,754,111 257,027 
(Increase) decrease in accrued compensated 

absences (55,900) 68,211 53,954 66,265 5,726 
(Increase) decrease in deferred revenues 13,787 13,787 886 
(Increase) decrease in Net OPEB Obligation 113,635 113,635 10,835 

Total adjustments 15,484,037 22,807,872 3,985,069 42,276,978 225,134 

Net cash provided by (used In) operating activities S 47,323,570 S 36,737,714 S (1,658,890) S 82,402,394 S 535,437 

Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities 
Contributed capital assets S S 17,366,195 S S 17,366,195 S 
FIF Credits Awarded S S (326,101) s s (326,101) S 
FIF Credits Applied S S S S S 

The notes 10 the financial statements arc an integral part of this statement. E-9 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets 
Fiduciary Funds 

June 30, 2010 

Assets 
Cash and investments 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Total cash and investments 

Accounts receivable 
Total assets 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 

Total liabilities 

Net assets 

Held in Trust for pension benefits and other 
purposes 

Total net assets 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. E-10 

$ 

$ 

Pension 
Trust Fund 

2,214,841 
2,214,841 

4,548 
2,219,389 

19,953 
19,953 

2,199,436 
2,199,436 

Private-purpose 
Trusts 

$ 1,380,728 
1,380,728 

2,809 
1,383,537 

1,383,537 
$ 1,383,537 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets 
Fiduciary Funds 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Pension Private-purpose 
Trust Fund Trusts 

Additions 
Other revenue from operations $ $ 40,994 
Employer contributions 511,937 
Other contributions 109,404 
Investment earnings 28,717 14,197 

Total additions 540,654 164,595 

Deductions 
Benefit payments and premiums 534,601 147,268 
Annuity purchase 2,880,000 
Other 984,900 

Total deductions 4,399,501 147,268 

Change in net assets (3,858,847) 17,327 

Total net assets - beginning 6,058,283 1,366,210 

Total net assets - ending $ 2,199,436 $ 1,383,537 

The notes to the financial slatements are an integral parl of this statement. E -11 



These notes are intended to communicate information 
necessary for a fair presentation of financial position 
and results of operations that are not readily apparent 
from, or cannot be included in, the financial statements 
themselves. The notes supplement the financial 
statements, are an integral part thereof, and are 
intended to be read together with the financial statements. 

\ 



City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2010 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The City of Fayetteville, North Carolina (the "City") was established in 1783. The City operates under a 
council-manager form of government and provides the following services: administration, public safety, 
environmental protection, transportation, economic and physical development, recreation and 
community facilities, electric, water and wastewater utility, transit, airport services, and solid waste 
recycling. The City receives substantial revenues from Federal and State sources. Ad valorem taxes 
on the City of Fayetteville's citizens represent a significant portion of the general government revenues. 

The financial statements of the City of Fayetteville, North Carolina have been prepared in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to 
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GAS B) is the accepted standard­
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more 
significant accounting policies of the City are described below. 

A - Reporting Entity 

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these financial 
statements present the City and its component units. GASB Statements number 14 and 39 define 
component units as legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary 
government are financially accountable. The primary government is financially accountable if it 
appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing body and a) it is able to impose its will on that 
organization or b) there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or 
impose specific financial burdens upon, the primary government. 

These statements provide two methods for reporting component units in the financial statements of the 
primary government: discrete presentation and blending. Discrete presentation means that data will be 
presented in one or more separate columns to the right of the primary government data columns. 
Blending means that the component unit's financial data is reported as though the unit is part of the 
primary government. If the units provide services or benefits exclusively, or almost exclusively, to the 
primary government, or if the component units and the primary government have "substantively 
identical boards," the legally separate component units should be incorporated by blending . If the units 
do not meet these criteria, their data should be incorporated by discrete presentation. 

Based on evaluating these characteristics, the following is a brief review of the component units in the 
City's reporting entity: 

City of Fayetteville Finance Corporation 

The City of Fayetteville Finance Corporation is a non-profit corporation formed for the purpose of 
issuing bonds to build City facilities and park improvements, as well as for the defeasance and 
refunding of 1989 certificates of participation. The City leases the police administration building , 
Festival Park and Westover Recreation Center from the Corporation with rental revenues being used by 
the Corporation to retire the bonds. The Corporation is shown in a blended presentation as the 
Corporation provides services exclusively to the City. The operating fund of the Corporation is 
presented in the accompanying financial statements as a nonmajor special revenue fund. 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2010 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

City of Fayetteville Linear Park, Inc. 

The City of Fayetteville Linear Park, Inc. is a non-profit corporation formed for the purpose of assisting 
in the development of the Linear Park downtown. Linear Park, Inc. is shown in a blended presentation 
as it provides services exclusively to the City. Its operating fund is presented in the accompanying 
financial statements as a nonmajor capital project fund. 

B - Basis of Presentation 

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display 
information about the primary government (the City) and its component units. These statements include 
the financial activities of the overall government. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double 
counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business­
type activities of the City. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, 
intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities are 
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. 

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for 
the different business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City's governmental 
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, 
therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense allocations that have been 
made in the funds have been reversed for the statement of activities. Program revenues include (a) 
fees and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants 
and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular 
program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as 
general revenues. 

The Government-wide Statements are presented on the full accrual basis in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Fiduciary funds are not 
included in these statements. 

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the City's funds , 
including its fiduciary funds and blended component units. Separate statements for each fund category 
- governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary - are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements 
is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column . All remaining 
governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. 

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions 
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party 
receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and 
investment earnings , result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities. 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2010 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund. The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. If accounts for all financial 
resources of the general government except those that are required to be accounted for in another 
fund. The primary revenue sources are ad valorem taxes, state grants, and various other taxes and 
licenses. The primary expenditures are for public safety, parks and recreation, street maintenance, and 
solid waste. 

Recreational and Cultural. The Recreational and Cultural Fund is a capital project fund used to 
account for resources used for the acquisition and construction of facilities such as parks, recreation 
centers and museums. Resources are provided through intergovernmental revenues, facility financing 
proceeds and transfers from other funds. 

The City reports the following nonmajor governmental funds: 

Special Revenue Funds. Special Revenue Funds account for specific revenue sources that are 
legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. The Emergency Telephone System Fund 
accounts for the fees charged to telephone customers to fund the 911 system. The Federal and State 
Financial Assistance Fund accounts for federal and state grants. The Storm Water Management Fund 
accounts for specified fees and maintenance of the storm water system. The City of Fayetteville 
Finance Corporation Fund accounts for debt service on certain municipal buildings and park 
improvements. 

Capital Project Funds. Capital Project Funds account for financial resources to be used for the 
acquisition or construction of governmental capital assets. The General Government Fund accounts for 
information technology and other projects supporting the entire government. The Public Safety Fund 
accounts for projects supporting the public safety services provided by the City. The Transportation 
Fund accounts for projects to improve transportation and related services throughout the City. The 
Water, Sewer and Storm Water Fund accounts for two storm water projects primarily funded by federal 
revolving loans from the North Carolina Department of Environment and Natural Resources. The 
projects were completed during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. The Bond Improvement Fund 
accounts for bond proceeds and their use. The Economic and Physical Development Fund accounts 
for construction and improvement of various public facilities. The Linear Park Fund accounts for 
projects associated with development of the Linear Park Downtown. 

The City reports the following major enterprise funds: 

Electric Fund. This fund accounts for the operations and maintenance of the Butler-Warner Generation 
Plant and the transmission and distribution of electricity to the City of Fayetteville and surrounding 
areas. 

Water and Wastewater Fund. This fund accounts for the operations of the water and wastewater 
facilities for the customers within the City of Fayetteville and surrounding areas. 

The Electric Fund and the Water and Wastewater Fund are operated under the Public Works 
Commission (PWC) of the City of Fayetteville. 

The City reports the following nonmajor enterprise funds: The Transit Fund accounts for operation of 
the municipal transit system. The Airport Fund accounts for the operation and capital asset acquisition 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2010 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

and construction of the Fayetteville Regional Airport. The Solid Waste Recycling Fund accounts for 
specified fees and residential recycling services. 

The City reports the following fund types: 

Internal Service Funds. Internal Service Funds account for the financing of services provided by one 
department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City, on a cost reimbursement basis. 
The Warranty Fleet Fund is used to account for the accumulation and allocation of costs associated 
with internally leasing vehicles. The Insurance Fund is used to account for the accumulation and 
allocation of costs associated with health, workers compensation , and liability claims. The PWC Fleet 
Maintenance Fund accounts for the accumulation and allocation of costs associated with the City's and 
PWC's fleet maintenance activities. 

Pension Trust Funds. These funds accumulate contributions in order to pay retirement benefits to 
eligible participants. The Special Separation Allowance Pension Trust Fund accounts for the Law 
Enforcement Officers" Special Separation Allowance, a single-employer, and public employee 
retirement system. The PWC Supplemental Pension Trust Fund accounts for the PWC Supplemental 
Employees' Retirement Plan , a single-employer defined benefit pension plan. 

Private-Purpose Trust Funds. These funds are used to account for resources legally held in trust for 
use by others. The Police Benefit and Firemen's Benefit Trust Funds account for resources held in 
trust for these two groups of individuals. All resources of the funds , including any earnings on invested 
resources, may be used to support the organizations' activities. There is no requirement that any 
portion of these resources be preserved as capital. 

C - Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the City are maintained during the year 
using the modified accrual basis of accounting. 

Government-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements. The government-wide, 
proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus. The government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are 
reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded at the time liabilities are incurred , regardless of when the related cash flows take place. 
Nonexchange transactions, in which the City gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or 
giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, and donations. On an accrual basis, 
revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue 
from grants and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been 
satisfied. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, 
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and 
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general 
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes. 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2010 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

The City's proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods · in connection with the funds' principal ongoing operations. The principal operating 
revenues of the City's utility funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating 
expenses for the City's utility funds include the costs of sales and services, general and administrative 
services and depreciation of capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are 
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental funds are reported using the current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, 
revenues are recognized when measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when the related 
fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and 
judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have 
matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 
Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other 
financing sources. 

The City considers all revenues available if they are collected within 90 days after year-end, except for 
property taxes. Ad valorem taxes receivable are not accrued as a revenue because the amount is not 
susceptible to accrual at June 30, since taxes receivable are materially past due and are not 
considered to be an available resource to finance the operations of the current year. 

Also, as of January 1, 1993, State law altered the procedures for the assessment and collection of 
property taxes on all registered motor vehicles in North Carolina. Effective with this change in the law, 
Cumberland County is responsible for billing and collecting the property taxes on registered motor 
vehicles on behalf of all municipalities and special tax districts in the County, including the City of 
Fayetteville. For motor vehicles registered under the staggered system, property taxes are due the first 
day of the fourth month after the vehicles are registered. The billed taxes are applicable to the fiscal 
year in which they become due. Therefore, the City's vehicle taxes for vehicles registered in 
Cumberland County from March 2009 through February 2010 apply to the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2010. Uncollected taxes, which were billed during this period, are shown as a receivable in these 
financial statements and are offset by deferred revenues. 

All GASB Statements and all Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Statements issued on or 
before November 30, 1989, except those that conflict with the GASB are applied in both the 
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. 

Intergovernmental revenues and sales taxes collected and held by the State at year-end on behalf of 
the City are recognized as revenue. Sales and services are not susceptible to accrual because 
generally they are not measurable until received in cash. Grant revenues, which are unearned at year­
end , are recorded as unearned revenues. 

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial 
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes where the amounts are 
reasonably equivalent in value to the interfund services provided and other charges between the 
government's electric, water and wastewater functions and various other functions of the government. 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2010 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the 
various functions concerned. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use 
restricted resources first then unrestricted resources, as they are needed. 

D - Budgetary Data 

Budgets are adopted as required by the North Carolina General Statutes. An annual budget is adopted 
for the general, selected special revenue, and enterprise funds. All annual appropriations lapse at 
fiscal year end. Project and grant ordinances are adopted for the Federal and State Financial 
Assistance special revenue fund and capital project funds. Enterprise capital project funds are 
consolidated with the operating funds for reporting purposes. The City's internal service funds are 
intra-governmental service funds , which operate under financial plans that were adopted by the 
governing board at the time the City's budget ordinance was approved, as is required by the General 
Statutes. All budgets are prepared Lising the modified accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures may 
not legally exceed appropriations at the departmental level for the general , selected special revenue, 
and proprietary funds and at the project level for selected special revenue and capital project funds. 
Any revisions that alter total appropriations at the department or project level, as appropriate, of any 
fund must be approved by the City Council. During the year, several amendments to the original 
budget were necessary. The budget ordinance must be adopted by July 1 of the fiscal year or the 
governing board must adopt an interim budget that covers that time until the annual ordinance can be 
adopted. 

E - Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity 

Deposits and Investments 

All deposits of the City are made in board-designated official depositories and are secured as required 
by State law (G .S. 159-31). The City may designate, as an official depository, any bank or savings 
association whose principal office is located in North Carolina. Also, the City may establish time 
deposit accounts such as NOW and Super NOW accounts, money market accounts, and certificates of 
deposit. 

State law (G.S. 159-30(c)) authorizes the City to invest in obligations of the United States or obligations 
fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States; obligations of the State of North 
Carolina; bonds and notes of any North Carolina local government or public authority (including the 
North Carolina Educational Assistance Authority) ; obligations of certain non-guaranteed federal 
agencies; certain high quality issues of commercial paper and bankers' acceptances; and the North 
Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT) . 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2010 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

The City's investments with maturity of more than one year at acquisition and non-money market 
investments are reported at fair value as determined by quoted market prices. The securities of the 
NCCMT Cash Portfolio, a SEC-registered (2a-7) money market mutual fund , are' valued at fair value, 
which is the NCCMT's share price. The NCCMT Term Portfolio's securities are valued at fair value. 
Money market investments that have a remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less 
and non-participating interest earnings and investment contracts are reported at amortized cost. 

In accordance with State law, the City has invested in securities which are callable and which provide 
for periodic interest rate increases in specific increments until maturity. These investments are reported 
at fair value as determined by quoted market prices. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The City pools money from several funds to facilitate disbursement and investment and to maximize 
investment income. Therefore, all cash and investments are essentially demand deposits and are 
considered cash and cash equivalents. The Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds consider 
demand deposits and investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be 
cash and cash equivalents. 

Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable 

In accordance with State law (G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 159-136(a)), the City levies ad valorem taxes on 
property other than motor vehicles on July 1, the beginning of the fiscal year. The taxes are due on 
September 1 (lien date); however, interest does not accrue until the following January 6. The taxes are 
based on the assessed values as of January 1, 2009. 

Receivables 

The receivables in the utility funds consist primarily of customer receivables for utility services. The 
City provides allowances for uncollectible receivables equal to the estimated collection losses to be 
incurred. The estimated losses are computed using the experience method. The City grants credit to 
residential, business and industrial customers, substantially all of whom are local to the City of 
Fayetteville area. 

Allowance for Uncollectible Receivables 

The City recorded a receivable in the special revenue fund for $3,301 ,088 related to loans associated 
with grants or other financial assistance that has been awarded. Many of these awarded loans are not 
expected to be collected and are scheduled to be forgiven based upon note compliance; therefore, they 
are included in the allowance for uncollectible receivables. 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2010 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

The City operates enterprise funds that provide credit in the normal course of business to cust6mers 
primarily located in Fayetteville, North Carolina. The City performs on-going credit evaluations of its 
customers and maintains allowances for doubtful accounts by using the experience method to estimate 
collection losses to be incurred. Credit losses, when realized, have been within the range of the City's 
estimations and historically have not been significant. Other receivables that historically experience 
uncollectible accounts are also shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. This amount is 
estimated by analyzing the percentage of receivables that were written off in prior years. 

The receivables shown on the Statement of Net Assets are presented net of the following allowances 
for doubtful accounts as of June 30, 2010: 

Fund 
General Fund: 

Taxes receivable $ 836,817 
Accounts receivable 385,264 
Assessments receivable 159,878 

Special Revenue Fund: 
Accounts receivable 13,613 
Notes receivable 3,301 ,088 

Airport: 
Accounts receivable 237 

Solid Waste Recycling: 
Accounts receivable 3,162 

Electric Fund: 
Accounts receivable 298,438 

Water and Wastewater Fund: 
Accounts receivable 56,206 

Total $ 5,054 ,703 

I nterfund Receivables and Payables 

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods 
provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as "Interfund receivable" 
or "Interfund payable" on the balance sheet in the fund financial statements and as "internal balances" 
on the statement of net assets in the government-wide financial statements. 

Inventories 

Governmental inventories of supplies are valued at cost. Other inventories are valued at the lower of 
average cost or market. The costs of governmental fund-type inventories, which consist of materials 
and supplies, are recorded as expenditures when they are consumed rather than when they are 
purchased . The costs of enterprise fund-type inventories, which consist of generation fuel, materials 
and spare parts, are expensed when used rather than when purchased. 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2010 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Prepaid Expenses 

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2010, are recorded as 
prepaid items. 

Restricted Assets and Liabilities 

In the general, special revenue, capital project and enterprise funds the City has classified as restricted 
the assets representing deposits, reserves, capital project appropriations, advance grant funding and 
unexpended bond proceeds because their use is completely restricted to the purpose for which the 
bonds were issued or the purpose for which the funds were set aside. Liabilities due to be repaid from 
restricted assets are classified as restricted liabilities. 

********** 

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2010 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Capital Assets 

The City defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 ($2,500 in 
the Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds) and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. 
Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated 
capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. General infrastructure 
assets acquired prior to July 1, 2001 and storm water network assets acquired prior to July 1, 2004 are 
reported at estimated historical cost using deflated current cost. Utility (electric, water, and wastewater) 
capital assets purchased or constructed since 1958 are recorded at cost. Contributed utility assets are 
recorded at estimated value at the date of acquisition. Utility assets acquired prior to 1958 are carried 
on an estimated cost basis. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of 
the asset or materially extend assets' lives are not capitalized. Im'provements are capitalized and 
depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets, as applicable. Gains and 
losses on dispositions of capital assets are credited or charged to operations. 

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Asset Class 
Infrastructure 
Buildings 
Utility plant systems 
Improvements 
Vehicles 
Furniture and equipment 
Computer software 
Computer equipment 

Estimated 
Useful Lives 

(Years) 
15 - 50 

40 
20 -45 

5 -15 
5-20 
5 -10 

3 
3 

Interest expense that relates to the cost of acquiring or constructing capital assets in enterprise funds is 
capitalized. Interest expense incurred in connection with construction of capital assets is reduced by 
interest earned on the investment of funds borrowed for construction in accordance with FASB 62 
"Capitalization of Interest Cost in Situations Involving Certain Tax Exempt Borrowings and Certain Gifts 
and Grants." 

Unearned Deposits 

Facility investment fee credits are given on a dollar per dollar basis for off-site water and wastewater 
approach mains necessary to serve City approved projects. The facility investment fee credit, if not 
utilized in the initial development, will be available to the developer for use in other City approved 
projects for a period not to exceed 5 years from the original contract date, unless otherwise stated in 
the contract or through extension approved by the City. 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2010 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Compensated Absences 

The vacation policy of the City provides for the accumulation of up to seven (7) weeks earned vacation 
leave with such leave being fully vested when earned. For the City's government-wide and proprietary 
funds, an expense and a liability for compensated absences, including compensatory time and holiday 
pay, and the salary-related payments are recorded as the leave is earned. 

The City's sick leave policy provides for unlimited accumulation of earned sick leave. Sick leave does 
not vest but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement may be used in the 
determination of length of service for retirement benefit purposes. Since the City has no obligation for 
the accumulated sick leave until it is actually taken, no accrual for that sick leave has been made. 
However, the City's sick leave policy for Electric and Water and Wastewater Fund employees allows 
25% of accumulated sick leave to be paid at the time of retirement. A liability for the estimated amount 
of this sick leave to ultimately be paid is included in the financial statements. 

Statement of Cash Flows 

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the City considers all highly liquid investments with an 
original maturity date of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

Long-Term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable 
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond 
premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the 
bonds using the straight-line method that approximates the effective interest method. Bonds payable 
are reported net of the applicable bond premiums or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as 
deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt. 

At June 30, 2010, the City recorded as other liabilities in the government-wide financial statements, 
$17,086,297 for bond premiums and discounts, $2,880,000 for a net pension asset, $404,383 in 
advance payments from Fort Bragg for gross receipt taxes and $367,181 for North Carolina 
Department of Transportation projects . 

In fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well 
as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other 
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while 
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not 
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

Net Assets/Fund Balances 

Net assets in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as invested in 
capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted. Restricted net assets represent 
constraints on resources that are either externally imposed by creditors , grantors, contributors , or laws 
or regulations of other governments or imposed by law through state statute. 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2010 

Note 1 • Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

In the governmental fund financial statements, reservations of fund balance represent amounts that are 
not appropriable or are legally segregated for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance 
represent tentative management plans that are subject to change. 

State law (G.S. 159-13(b) (16)) restricts appropriation of fund balance for the subsequent year's budget 
to an amount not to exceed the sum of cash and investments minus the sum of liabilities, 
encumbrances, and deferred revenues arising from cash receipts as those amounts stand at the close 
of the fiscal year preceding the budget year. 

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows: 

Reserved 

Reserved by State statute . portion of fund balance, in addition to reserves for encumbrances and 
reserves for inventories, which is not available for appropriation under State law (G.S. 159·8(a)). This 
amount is usually comprised of accounts receivable and interfund receivables, which have not been 
offset by deferred revenues. 

Reserved for encumbrances . portion of fund balance available to pay for commitments related to 
purchase orders or contracts which remain unperformed at year·end. 

Reserved for inventories . portion of fund balance that is not available for appropriation because it 
represents the year·end fund balance of ending inventories, which are not expendable, available 
resources. 

Reserved for downtown - portion of fund balance available for appropriation for projects in the Central 
Business District. 

Reserved for county recreation - portion of fund balance available to pay for the recreational activities 
of Cumberland County. 

Reserved for streets - Powell Bill - portion of fund balance available for appropriation but legally 
segregated for street expenditures. It represents the balance of the total unexpended Powell Bill funds 
which is an annual grant received by the City from the N.C. Department of Transportation. 

Reserved for J.P. Riddle Stadium - portion of fund balance available to pay for the operation of the J.P. 
Riddle Stadium. 

Reserved for donations - portion of fund balance that is not available for appropriation because it 
represents donor·imposed restrictions. 

Reserved for grant compliance - portion of fund balance available for appropriation but legally 
restricted by external grantors. 

Reserved for bond projects - portion of fund balance that is not available for appropriation because it 
represents the portion available to fund bond related projects. 

F-12 



City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2010 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Unreserved 

Designated for subsequent year's expenditures - portion of the total fund balance available for 
appropriation that has been designated for the adopted 2010 - 2011 budget ordinance. 

Designated for special purpose - portion of fund balance identified for specific uses in the general fund 
and special revenue funds. 

Designated for capital projects - portion of fund balance designated to fund capital related projects. 

Undesignated - portion of total fund balance available for appropriation that is uncommitted at year-end . 

F - Reclassification 

For comparability, certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year financial statements to 
conform to the current year presentation . 

G - Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date 
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and ·expenses during the reporting 
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

H - Pronouncements Implemented in the Current Year 

GASS Statement No. 51, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets." This 
statement establishes accounting and financial reporting requirements for intangible assets including 
easements, water rights, timber rights , patents, trademarks, and computer software. The requirements 
of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2009. See 
Note 3 for the value of intangible assets held by the City at June 30, 2010. There was no material 

. impact during fiscal year 2010. 

GASS Statement No. 53, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments. 
Statement 53 is intended to improve how state and local governments report information about 
derivative instruments- financial arrangements used by governments to manage specific risks or make 
investments- in their financial statements. The Statement specifically requires governments to 
measure most derivative instruments at fair value in their financial statements that are prepared using 
the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The guidance in this 
Statement also addresses hedge accounting reqUirements and is effective for financial statements for 
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2009. There was no material impact during fiscal year 2010. 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2010 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

GASB Statement No. 58, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Chapter 9 Bankruptcies." 
This statement established accounting and financial reporting guidance for governments that have 
petitioned for protection from creditors by filing bankruptcy under Chapter 9 of the United States 
Bankruptcy Code. The requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods 
beginning after June 15, 2009. The City has not filed such a petition and thereby is not impacted by 
this statement during fiscal year 2010. 

FASB Accounting Standards Codification. In June 2009, the FASB issued new U.S. GAAP 
guidance concerning the organization of authoritative guidance under U.S. GAAP. This new guidance 
created the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (the "Codification"). The Codification has become 
the source of authoritative U.S. GAAP recognized by the FASB to be applied by nongovernmental 
entities. Rules and interpretive releases of the SEC under authority of federal securities laws are also 
sources of authoritative U.S. GAAP for SEC registrants . The Codification became effective for the City 
for the period ending December 31, 2009. As the Codification is not intended to change or alter 
existing U.S. GAAP, it did not have any impact on the City's consolidated financial statements. All 
other non-grandfathered, non-SEC accounting literature not included in the Codification will become 
non-authoritative. 

I - Upcoming Pronouncements 

GASB Statement No. 54, "Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions." 
This Statement establishes new categories for reporting fund balance and revises the definitions for 
governmental fund types. The requirements for this Statement are effective for financial statements for 
periods beginning after June 15, 2010. 

The City is currently in the process of evaluating this statement and the impact that it will have on the 
City. 

Note 2 - Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 

A - Deposits 

All of the City's deposits are either insured or collateralized by using one of two methods. Under the 
Dedicated Method, all deposits that exceed the Federal Depository Insurance coverage level are 
collateralized with securities held ' by the City's agents in the City's name. Under the Pooling Method, 
which is a collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by the State 
Treasurer's agent in the name of the State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary 
capacity for the City, these deposits are considered to be held by the City's agents in their names. The 
amount of the pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method for non-interest bearing 
deposits and the actual current balance for interest-bearing deposits. Depositories using the Pooling 
Method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled collateral covering uninsured 
deposits. The State Treasurer does not confirm this information with the City or the escrow agent. 
Because of the inability to measure the exact amounts of collateral pledged for the City under the 
Pooling Method, the potential exists for undercollaterization , and this risk may increase in periods of 
high cash flows. However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina enforces strict standards of financial 
stability for each depository that collateralizes public deposits under the Pooling Method. 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2010 

Note 2 - Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (continued) 

The State Treasurer enforces standards of minimum capitalization for all pooling method financial 
institutions. The City relies on the State Treasurer to monitor those financial institutions. The City 
analyzes the financial soundness of any other financial institution used by the City. The City complies 
with the provisions of G.S. 159-31 when designating official depositories and verifying that deposits are 
properly secured. The City's policy for custodial credit risk associated with deposits is to comply with 
the applicable North Carolina General Statutes. 

The City places its cash and cash equivalents on deposit with financial institutions in the United States. 
The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) covers $250,000 for substantially all depository 
accounts. The City from time to time may have amounts on deposit in excess of the insured amounts. 

********** 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2010 

Note 2 - Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (continued) 

At June 30, 2010, the City's demand deposits had a carrying amount of $64,717,944 and a bank 
balance of $63,649,605. Of the bank balance, Federal Deposit Insurance covered $592,786, and 
$63,056,819 was covered by collateral under the Pooling Method. 

At June 30, 2010, the City had certificates of deposit totaling $36,529,699. Of this amount, Federal 
Deposit Insurance covered $484,124, and $36,045,575 was covered by collateral under the Pooling 
Method. 

The City had $12,815 in the petty cash and change funds. 

B - Investments 

The funds of the City of Fayetteville are invested in compliance with the provisions of North Carolina 
General Statutes 159-30 and 159-31. The City's Investment Policy is a board-approved policy. 

At June 30, 2010, the City investment balances were as follows: 

Less than 6 
Fair Value Months 6 Mas - 1 Yr 1-5 Years 5-10 Years 

U.S. Government Agencies S 76,037,181 S 1,017,500 S $ 59,737,026 $ 15,282,655 
Commercial Paper 41,121,432 27,452,500 13,668,932 
Government Obligations Fund 2,008,495 2,008,495 
N.C. Capital Management Trust - Cash 
portfolio 53,218,930 53,218,930 

Total Primary Government 172,386,038 83,697,425 13,668,932 59,737,026 15,282,655 

Reporting Entity Total S 172,386,038 $ 83,697,425 $ 13,668,932 S 59,737,026 $ 15,282,655 

Interest Rate Risk. As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest 
rates, the City's investment policy provides for structuring the investment portfolio so that securities 
mature to meet cash requirements for the ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to sell 
securities on the open market prior to maturity. Also the City's investment policy requires purchases of 
securities to be laddered with staggered maturity dates and limits all securities other than Treasuries, 
Agencies, and North Carolina state and local bonds to a final maturity of no more than three years. 
Treasuries, Agencies, and North Carolina state and local bonds are limited to maturities not exceeding 
ten years. 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2010 

Note 2 - Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (continued) 

Credit Risk. The City has no formal policy regarding credit risk; however. the State law limits 
investments in commercial paper to the top rating issued by nationally recognized statistical rating 
organizations (NRSROs). The City minimizes credit risk by limiting investments to the types allowed by 
North Carolina General Statutes 159-30. The City diversifies the investment portfolio to minimize the 
impact of potential losses from anyone security or from anyone individual issuer. Also, the City pre­
qualifies the financial institutions' brokers/dealers and requires them to meet specific financial and 
registration conditions. As of June 30, 2010, the City's commercial paper was rated A1 by Moody's 
Investors Service and P1 by Standard & Poor's. The City's investments in the NC Capital Management 
Trust Cash Portfolio carried a credit rating of AAAm by Standard & Poor's as of June 30, 2010. The 
City's investments in US Agencies (Federal Home Loan Bank, Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac and Federal 
Farm Credit Bank) are rated AAA by Standard & Poor's and Aaa by Moody's Investors Service. 

Custodial Credit Risk. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of failure of 
the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities 
that are in the possession of an outside party. The City requires that investment securities are in the 
name of the City of Fayetteville and are held by a centralized independent third-party custodian. The 
City requires that the independent third-party custodian issue a safekeeping receipt to the Chief 
Financial Officer listing the specific instrument, rate, maturity, and other pertinent information as 
evidence. All investment security purchases and sales are on a delivery verses payment basis and are 
made through the independent third-party custodian by written instruction. 

Concentration of Credit Risk. The City places no limit on the amount that the City may invest in any 
one issuer. More than 5% of the City's investments are in NC Cash Management Trust securities, 
Federal Home Loan Bank securities, Freddie Mac securities, Fannie Mae securities, FCAR Owner 
Trust commercial paper and Dealers Capital Access commercial paper. These investments are 31.6%, 
18.2%, 15.2%, 9.3%, 8.7% and 7.4% respectively , of the City's total investments. 

Reconciliation to cash and investments: 

Totals per footnote: 
Total investments (including escrow) 
Cash (demand deposits) 
Plus Certificates of Deposit 
Fireman's Relief Fund Certificate of Deposit 
Petty cash 
Total cash and investments 

Totals per Statement of Net Assets: 
Cash and investments - unrestricted 
Cash and investments - restricted 
Pension trust cash and investments 
Private-purpose trust cash and investments 
Total cash and investments 
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$ 172,386,038 
64,717,944 
35,166,250 

1,363,449 
12,815 

$ 273,646,496 

$ 159,961 ,338 
110,089,589 

2,214,841 
1,380,728 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2010 

Note 3 - Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2010, was as follows: 

Primary Government 

Balance Balance 
July 1,2009 Increases Decreases Transfers June 30, 2010 

Governmental activities: 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land and land rights $ 36,297,376 $ 502,793 $ $ $ 36,800,169 
Construction in progress 3,286,375 1,440,915 (1 ,652,297) 3,074,993 

Total capital assets 

not being depreciated 39,583,751 1,943,708 (1 ,652,297) 39,875,162 

Capital assets being depreciated: 

Infrastructure 449,166,805 4,683,321 453,850,126 
Buildings and improvements 72,518,491 341,971 1,652,297 74,512,759 

Equipment, furniture and fixtures 24,251 ,866 1,405 ,659 (192,301 ) (2 ,770,987) 22,694,237 

Computer software 1,611,552 2,770,987 4,382,539 

Vehicles 38,337,696 2,408,671 (1 ,752,738) 38,993,629 

Total capital assets 

being depreciated 584,274,858 10,451,1 74 (1,945,039) 1,652,297 594,433,290 

Less accumulated depreciation for : 

Infrastructure (166,080,698) (12,398,369) (178,479,067) 
Buildings and improvements (25,956,676) (2,385,747) (28,342,423) 

Equipment, furniture and fixtures (19,707,447) (1,462,948) 192,301 1,415,306 (19,562,788) 

Computer software (981,158) (1,415,306) (2,396,464) 

Vehicles (23,728,516) (3,131,195) 1,631,567 (25,228,144) 
Total accumulated depreciation (235,473,337) $ (20,359,417) $ 1,823,868 $ (254,008,886) 

Total capital assets being 

depreciated, net 348,801 ,521 340,424,404 

Governmental activity capital assets, net $ 388,385,272 $ 380,299,566 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the governmental activities of the primary 
government as follows: 

Administration 
Public safety 
Environmental protection 
Transportation 
Economic and physical development 
Recreation and community facilities 
Capital assets held by certain internal 

service funds are charged to the various 
governmental functions based on the 
usage of the funds 

T ota1 depreciation expense 

$ 216,473 
4,235,459 
1,404,351 

12,696,762 
642,474 
834,898 

329,000 
$ 20,359,417 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2010 

Note 3 - Capital Assets (continued) 
* Disposals in construction in progress are shown as additions to capital assets being depreciated. 

Balance Balance 
July 1,2009 Increases Decreases * Transfers June 30, 2010 

Business-type activities: 
Electric Fund 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land and land rights $ 5,275,478 $ 5,925 $ (16,087) $ $ 5,265,316 

Construction in progress 16,218,706 13,621 ,688 (22,885,597) 6,954,797 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 21,494,184 13,627,613 (22,901,684) 12,220,113 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Electric utility system 349,803,793 20,000,824 (3,356,197) 366,448,420 

Buildings 37,654,793 4,045,187 41,699,980 

Equipment and machinery 15,087,858 982,753 (740,020) 25,358 15,355,949 

Computer programs 11,447,813 687,585 (128,271 ) (12,007,127) 

Intangibles 9,148,804 9,148,804 

Computer equipment 3,180,572 3,180,572 

Vehicles 6,715,775 171 ,165 (379,802) (46,160) 6,460,978 

Office equipment 1,475,864 59,256 (82,022) (328,537) 1,124,561 

Tolal capital assets being depreciated 422,185,896 25,946,770 (4,686,312) (27,090) 443,419,264 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Electric uti lity system (181,605,811 ) (11,770,240) 2,777,077 (190,598,974) 

Buildings (13,439,333) (1,329,416) (14,768,749) 

Equipment and machinery (7,937,874) (585,863) 718,471 (25,360) (7,830,626) 

Computer programs (10,232,326) (575,831) 128,273 10,679,884 

Intangibles (8,533,158) (8,533,158) 

Computer equipment (2,468,955) (2,468,955) 

Vehicles (3,308,372) (407,184) 375,906 46,160 (3,293,490) 

Office equipment (1,369,201 ) (68,366) 78,484 328,263 (1,030,820) 

Total accumulated depreciation (217,892,917) $ (14,736,900) $ 4,078,211 $ 26,834 (228,524,772) 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 204,292,979 214,894,492 

Electric fund capital assets, net $ 225,787,163 $ 227,114,605 

********** 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2010 

Note 3 - Capital Assets (continued) 

Balance Balance 
July 1, 2009 Increases Decreases· Transfers June 30, 2010 

Business-type activities: 

Water and Wastewater Fund 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land and land rights $ 8,539,715 S 475,243 S (2,592) $ $ 9,012,366 

Construction in progress 12,903,231 36,412,614 (37,654,309) 11 ,661,536 
Total capital assets not being depreciated 21,442,946 36,887,857 (37,656,901) 20,673,902 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Sewer system 376,958,802 16,084,856 393,043,658 
Water system 242,873,016 20,583,931 263,456,947 

Buildings 4,329,259 566,742 4,896,001 

Equipment and machinery 8,569,805 400,041 (150,354) (25,360) 8,794,132 

Computer programs 10,643,166 597,678 (223,376) (11,017,468) 

Intangibles 8,405,898 8,405,898 

Computer equipment 2,840,334 2,840,334 
Vehicles 5,666,615 440,745 (336,930) 46,160 5,816,590 

Office equipment 690,301 (5,474) (222,474) 462,353 

Total capital assets being depreciated 649,730,964 38,673,993 (716,134) 27,090 687,715,913 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Sewer system (120,840,476) (8,262,717) (129,103,193) 

Water system (89,076,232) (5,018,831) (94,095,063) 

Buildings (2,292,851) (134,081) (2,426,932) 

Equipment and machinery (6,308,792) (456,595) 134,925 25,360 (6,605,102) 

Computer programs (9,528,350) (520,661) 223,374 9,825,637 

Intangibles (7,870,448) (7,870,448) 

Computer equipment (2,183,965) (2,183,965) 

Vehicles (3,010,836) (369,241) 332,670 (46,160) (3,093,567) 

Office equipment (630,112) (9,840) 5,479 222,742 (411,731) 
Total accumulated depreciation (231,687,649) $ (14,771,966) S 696,448 S (26,834) (245,790,001) 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 418,043,315 441 ,925,912 

Water and Wastewater fund capital assets, net $ 439,486,261 $ 462,599,814 

********** 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2010 

Note 3 - Capital Assets (continued) 

Balance 
July 1, 2009 Increases Decreases Transfers 

Business-type activities (continued): 
Nonmajor enterprise funds 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land and land rights S 2,320,593 S S $ 
Construction in progress 8,556,360 4,830,173 (3,142,072) 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 10,876,953 4,830,173 (3,142,072) 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings and improvements 48,219,236 896,566 3,142,072 
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 2,932,932 66,833 (9,500) (66,522) 
Computer software 16,822 66,522 
Vehicles 7,832,363 1,261,304 (1 ,828,161) 

Total capital assets being depreciated 58,984,531 2,241,525 (1,837,661) 3,142,072 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings and improvements (28,469,478) (1 ,735,784) 
Furniture, fixtures and equipment (2,300,559) (169,271) 9,500 23,310 
Computer software (21 ,831) (23,310) 
Vehicles (5,284,371) (423,055) 1,771,018 
Total accumulated depreciation (36,054,408) S (2,349,941) S 1,780,518 $ 

Tolal capital assets being depreciated, net 22,930,123 

Nonmajor enterprise fund capital assets, net S 33,807,076 

Business-type activities capital assets, net S 699,080,500 

Depreciation expense was charged to business-type activities of the primary government as follows: 

Electric 
Water and Wastewater 
Transit 
Airport 
Total depreciation expense 

S 14,736,900 
14,771,966 

693,972 
1,655,969 

S 31,858,807 

********** 
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Balance 
June 30, 2010 

S 2,320,593 
10,244,461 
12,565,054 

52,257,874 
2,923,743 

83,344 
7,265,506 

62,530,467 

(30,205,262) 
(2,437,020) 

(45,141) 
(3,936,408) 

(36,623,831 ) 

25,906,636 

S 38,471,690 

S 728,186,109 



Note 4 - Accounts Payable 

City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2010 

Unrestricted and restricted accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of the following as of June 
30,2010: 

Recreational Nonmajor Internal Water and Nonmajor 
General and Cultural Governmental Service 

Accounts payable S 6,586,474 S 22A61 S 1,132,900 S 310,352 
Subtotal Electric 

S 8,052,187 S 18,399,595 
Wastewater 

S 11,864,647 S 
Enler2rise 

152,510 
Fiduciary 

S 
Incurred but nol reported 2,398,223 2,398,223 480,779 480,779 
Contracts payable 336,942 605,738 942,680 411,129 
Interest payable 341,394 2,430,338 28 
Retainage payable 24,548 1,492 26,040 133,399 
Salaries and 

benefits payable 2,671,499 37,268 131,181 2,839,948 978,210 1,01 1,941 122 ,271 19,953 
Tolal S 9,257,973 S 383,951 S 1,777,398 S 2,839,756 14,259,078 S 20,199,978 S 15,787,705 S 819,337 S 19,953 

Adjustment for interest payable 371,074 
$ 14,630,152 

Reconciliation to accounts payable on the financial statements: 
Unrestricted S 9,257,973 S 383,951 S 1,777,398 S 2,839,756 S 14,259,078 S 14,337,611 
Restricted 5,862,367 

S 9,257,973 S 383,951 S 1,777,398 S 2,839,756 14,259,078 S 20,199,978 

Adjustment for interest payable 371,074 
$ 14,630,152 

Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations 

A - General Obligation Indebtedness 

$ 8,770,776 
7,016,929 

$ 15,787,705 

$ 819,337 

S 819,337 

s 

s 

The City has issued general obligation bonds (to include general obligation bonds for the benefit of the 
Electric and Water and Wastewater funds) to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major 
capital facilities. General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith, credit, and 
taxing power of the City. They are serviced by the general fund and the water and wastewater fund. 
Principal and interest payments are appropriated when due. General obligation bonds outstanding for 
the year ended June 30, 2010, are as follows: 

Governmental activities 

$5,535,000 Refunding Bonds, Series 2002 due in various 
annual installments through June 1, 2016; 
interest at various rates between 3.5% and 4%. 

$8,450,000 Public Improvement Bonds, Series 2005 due in 
various semiannual installments through June 1, 2025; 
interest at various rates between 3.4% and 4.25%. 

$7,896,115 Refunding Bonds, Series 2009 due in 
various annual installments through March 1, 2021; 
interest at various rates between 3.0% and 5.0%. 

Less: Loss on Defeasance 

Total governmental general obligation bonds 
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$ 1,990,000 

6,325,000 

7,521.115 

15,836,115 

(545,981) 

15,290,134 

19,953 

19,953 



City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2010 

Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued) 

Business-type activities 

$3,625,000 Street Improvement Bonds, Series 2002 
due in various annual installments through June 1, 2021; 
interest at various rates between 3.5% and 4.5%. $ 2,225,000 

$4,403,885 Refunding Bonds, Series 2009 due in 
various annual installments through March 1, 2021; 
interest at various rates between 4.0% and 5.0%. 

Less: Loss on Defeasance 

Total business-type general obligation bonds 

4,228,885 

6,453,885 

(111 ,113) 

6,342,772 

Total general obligation bonds $ 21 632906 

B - Revenue Bonds 

The City has issued revenue bonds, which have been used to finance the construction of facilities used 
in the City's operations. Resources generated by the facilities' operations are retiring the bonds. 
Revenue bonds outstanding for the year ended June 30, 2010, are as follows: 

Governmental activities: 

$5,835,000 Municipal Building Project Refunding Bonds, Series 2005, 
due in various annual installments through February 1, 2018; 
interest at various rates between 3.5% and 5.25%. $3,550,000 

$3,920,000 Municipal Building Project Bonds, Series 2005, for the construction of 
Festival Park due in various annual installments through 
February 1, 2012; interest at various rates between 3.5% and 5.0% 1,120,000 

$2,685,000 Municipal Building Project Bonds, Series 2005, for the construction of 
Westover Recreation Center due in various annual installments 
through February 1, 2019; interest at various rates between 
3.5% and 5.25%. 1,710,000 

Total governmental revenue bonds 6,380 ,000 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2010 

Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued) 

Business-type activities 

$19,175,000 Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2001 
due in various annual installments through March 1, 2016; 
interest at various rates between 4.5% and 5.5%. 

$17,025,000 Revenue Bonds, Series 2008 
due in various annual installments through March 1, 2023; 
interest at various rates between 3.5% and 4.5%. 

$114,155,000 Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2009A 
due in various annual installments through March 1, 2024; 
interest at various rates between 4.0% and 5.0%. 

$36,710,000 Revenue Bonds, Series 2009B 
due in various annual installments through March 1, 2035; 
interest at various rates between 3.0% and 5.0%. 

Total business-type revenue bonds 

Less: Loss on Defeasance 

Total revenue bonds 

$9,005,000 

15,825,000 

107,580,000 

36,710,000 

169,120,000 

(15,079,263) 

$ 160420737 

Total interest expense related to the revenue and general obligation bonds totaled $8,765,228 for the 
year ended June 30, 2010 and of that amount, $244,348 was capitalized during the year. 

The City has pledged future electric, water and wastewater customer revenues, net of specified 
operating expenses, to repay $187,065,000 in revenue and revenue refunding bonds issued at various 
times from 2001 through 2009. Proceeds from the bonds provided financing for extensions , additions 
and capital improvements to or the renewal and replacement of capital assets of, or purchasing and 
installing new equipment for, the electric, water, and wastewater systems. The bonds are payable 
solely from water and sewer customer net revenues and are payable through 2035. The total principal 
and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds is $232,737,112. Principal and interest paid for the 
current year and total customer revenues were $17,986,411 and $237,548,315, respectively. 

The revenue bond order contains significant covenants respecting annual debt service requirements , 
use of the system and minimum revenue bond coverage, and requires that a reserve fund be 
established and maintained. The reserve fund requirements have been met by the City through funding 
a reserve fund account and the purchase of surety bonds in full amount of the bond requirement. The 
City is in compliance with all such significant covenants at June 30, 2010. 
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June 30, 2010 

Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued) 

C - Notes Payable 

Notes payable financed by the governmental funds are serviced by the Storm Water Management and 
Federal and State Financial Assistance Funds. 

On July 23, 2009, the City entered into a $750,000 loan agreement with the U.S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The loan was made under the Section 108 Loan Guarantee 
Program and has a variable interest rate of .2% above LlBOR, adjusted monthly. The purpose of the 
note is for the financing of a community development project. 

Additionally, on April 6, 2010 and May 14, 2010, the City completed two storm water projects which 
were financed through two federal revolving loans for $464,503 and $536,692 administered through the 
State of North Carolina, Department of Environment and Natural Resources. As part of the American 
Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA), the unpaid principal was immediately reduced by one 
half of the loan amount to $232,252 and $268,346 as "Principal Forgiveness. " 

Notes payable financed by the Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds are accounted for in the 
respective funds. 

The City has entered into other revolving loan agreements for $7 ,595,127 and $16,969,848 with the 
State of North Carolina. The loans were used for a Wastewater Project. The City has also entered into 
a loan agreement with South River Electric Membership Corporation (SREMC) utilizing funds made 
available to SREMC by USDA-Rural Development for a water capital project. These notes payable are 
junior, inferior and subordinate in all respects to the Revenue Bonds and General Obligation Bonds of 
the City of Fayetteville as to lien on and source and security for payment from the revenues and in all 
other respects . 

Notes payable in the accompanying financial statements are comprised of the following: 

Governmental activities 

$750,000 HUD Note Payable due in various annual installments of $75,000 
through August 1, 2019; interest at a variable rate paid quarterly. 

$232,252 Federal revolving loan due in annual 
installments through May 1, 2030; non interest bearing, 
paid annually on May 1 st 

$268,346 Federal revolving loan due in annual 
installments through May 1, 2030; non interest bearing, 
paid annually on May 1 st. 

Total governmental notes payable 
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June 30, 2010 

Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued) 

Business-type activities 

$7,595,127 State revolving loan due in annual 
installments through May 1, 2021; interest at 2.6% paid 
semiannually on May 1 and November 1. 

$16,969,848 State revolving loan due in annual 
installments through May 1, 2026; interest at 2.66% 
paid semiannually on May 1 and November 1. 

$396,000 SREMC Loan due in 10 annual installments beginning 
April 5, 2006; no interest 

Total business-type notes payable 

Total notes payable 

$ 4,177,320 

13,575,878 

198.000 

17,951 ,198 

$ 19201 796 

Total interest expense related to the notes payable obligations totaled $496,765 for the year ended 
June 30, 2010. 

D - Lease Agreements 

The City has entered into lease agreements as lessee for financing certain equipment, vehicles and 
fixtures. These lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and, therefore, 
have been recorded at the present value of the minimum lease payments as of the date of their 
inception. 

Capital lease obligations are comprised of the following : 

Governmental activities 
Capital lease obligations payable in various semi-annual 
installments of approximately $448,948 in 2011 
including interest at rates ranging from 4.19% to 4.55% 

Capital lease obligations payable in various monthly 
installments of approximately $60,852 in 2011 
including interest at 3.81 % 

Capital lease obligations payable in various monthly 
installments of approximately $75,388 in 2011 
including interest at 2.06% 

Capital lease obligations payable in various monthly 
installments of approximately $50,235 in 2010 
including interest at 1.81 % 

Less: amount representing interest 
Present value of the minimum lease payments 
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$ 6,467 ,007 

2,129,824 

4,447,866 

2,411 ,299 
15,455,996 
(1 ,592.703) 

$ 13.863,293 
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Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued) 

Business-type activities 
Capital lease obligations payable in various monthly 
installments of approximately $1,751 in 2011 
including interest at 2.06% 

Less: amount representing interest 
Present value of the minimum lease payments 

Total capital lease obligations 

$ 103,336 

(5,145) 
98,191 

$ 13 961484 

The following is an analysis of leased property under capital leases as of June 30, 2010: 

Classes of Proeert~ Cost Deereciation Value 
Equipment $ 5,232,061 $ 1,756,084 $ 3,475,977 
Vehicles 131,950 37,120 94,830 
Buildings and improvement 16,789,518 3,505,268 13,284,250 

Total $ 22,153,529 $ 5,298,472 $ 16,855,057 

Total interest expense related to the capital lease obligations totaled $113,565 for the year ended June 
30,2010. 

E - Changes in Long-Term Obligations 

The following is a summary of changes in the City's long-term obligations for the fiscal year ended June 
30,2010: 

Balance . Balance 
July 1, 2009 Increases Decreases June 30, 2010 Current Portion 

Governmental activities: 

General obligation debt $ 19,207,825 $ 7,896,115 $ 11,267,825 $ 15,836,115 $ 1,984,855 

Revenue bonds 9,730,000 3,350,000 6,380,000 1,120,000 

Notes payable 1,250,598 1,250,598 100,030 

Capitalized leases 10,267,567 6,550,809 2,955,083 13,863,293 2,741,878 

Compensated absences 4,903,131 7,055,680 6,394,100 5,564,711 3,319,848 

Net OPEB Obligation 7,392,211 2,139,259 9,531,470 

51,500,734 $ 24,892,461 $ 23,967,008 52,426,187 9,266,611 

Less: loss on defeasance 

(net of amortization) (478,907) (545,981) 
Total governmental activities $ 51,021,827 $ 51,880,206 $ 9,266,611 
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Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued) 

Balance 
July 1, 2009 Increases Decreases 

Business-type activities: 

General obligation debt $ 7,412, 175 $ 4,403,885 $ 5,362,175 

Revenue bonds 155,045,000 150,865,000 136,790,000 
Notes payable 19,219,047 1,267,849 

Capitalized leases 98,191 

Compensated absences 3,186,414 4,786,957 4,857,113 

Net OPES Obligation 2,161 ,893 717,055 

187,024,529 $ 160,871,088 $ 148,277,137 

Less: loss on defeasance 

(net of amortization) (7,579,848) 

Total business-type activities $ 179,444,681 

Balance 
June 30, 2010 

$ 6,453,885 

169,120,000 

17,951,198 

98,191 

3,116,258 

2,878,948 

199,618,480 

(15,190,376) 

$ 184,428,104 

Governmental compensated absences typically have been liquidated in the general fund. 

********** 

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank 
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Current Portion 

$ 805,145 

10,960,000 

1,267,849 

19,174 

1,908,866 

14,961,034 

$ 14,961,034 
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Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued) 

F - Maturities of Long-Term Obligations 

The following table summarizes the annual requirements to amortize all general long-term debt 
outstanding (excluding compensated absences and net OPES obligation), 

Governmental activities: 

Construction and 
Year General Obligalion Bonds Revenue Bonds Improvement Leases 

Ended Principal Interest Principa l Interest Principal Interest 
2011 $ 1,984 ,855 $ 694,717 $ 1,120,000 $ 326,250 $ 678,968 $ 218,929 
2012 1,974,855 606,868 1,140,000 270,250 678,968 189,170 
2013 1,959,855 518,575 600,000 213,250 678,968 159,412 
2014 1,954,855 430,483 620,000 183,250 678,968 129,653 
2015 1,939,855 341,502 640,000 152 ,190 302,467 104,178 

2016·2020 3,932,748 801 ,808 2,260,000 260,138 1,512,334 331 ,474 
202 1-2025 2,089,092 259,814 756,167 47 ,353 
2026·2030 

15,836,11 5 3,653,767 6,380,000 1,405,328 5,286,840 1,180,169 
Less: loss on defeasance 

(net of amortization) (545,981) 
$ 15,290,134 $ 3,653,767 $ 6,380,000 $ 1,405,328 $ 5,286,840 $ 1,180, 169 

Year Capi talized Leases Notes Payable Total Debt Due 
Ended Principal Interest Principal Interest PrinCipal -Interest 

201 1 $ 2,062,910 $ 174,791 $ 100,030 $ $ 5,946,763 $ 1,414,687 
2012 2,113,447 124,255 100,030 6,007 ,300 1,190,543 
2013 2,104,467 72 ,382 100,030 5,443,320 963,619 
2014 1,474,851 32 ,625 100,030 4,828,704 776,011 
2015 820,778 8,485 100,030 3,803,130 606,355 

2016·2020 500, 150 8,205,232 1,393,420 
2021 ·2025 125, 150 2,970,409 307,167 
2026·2030 125,148 125,148 

8,576,453 412,538 1,250,598 37,330,006 6,651,802 
Less: loss on defeasance 

(net of amortization) (545,981 ) 
$ 8,576,453 $ 41 2,538 $ 1,250,598 $ $ 36,784,025 $ 6,651,802 

The following schedule includes the City's expected estimated schedule of maturity for the business· 
type activities, noted above as well as the annual requirements to amortize all business-type long-term 
debt outstanding (excluding compensated absences and net OPES obligations) , 
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Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued) 

Business-type activities: 

Year General Obligation Bonds Revenue Bonds 
Ended Principal Interest Principal Interest 
2011 $ 805,145 $ 291,289 $ 10,960,000 $ 7,856,937 
2012 805,146 254,032 11 ,960,000 7,401,663 
2013 805 ,145 216 ,275 12,685,000 6,925,838 
2014 800,146 178,517 13,310,000 6,414 ,537 
2015 625,145 140,510 13,755,000 5,764 ,375 

2016-2020 2,217,251 343 ,454 66,565,000 18,356,400 
2021-2025 395,907 16,961 23,870,000 6,602 ,613 
2026-2030 8,000,000 3,091,750 
2031-2035 8,015,000 1,203,000 

6,453,885 1,441 ,038 169,120,000 63,617 ,113 
Less: loss on defeasance 

(net of amortization) (111 ,113) (15,079,263) 
$ 6,342 ,772 $ 1,441 ,038 $ 154,040,737 $ 63,617 ,113 

Year Capitalized Leases Total Debt Due 
Ended Principal Interest Principal Interest 
2011 $ 19,174 $ 1,844 $ 13,052, 168 $ 8,619,799 
2012 19,573 1,445 14,052,568 8,094,425 
2013 19,980 1,037 14,777,974 7,547,992 
2014 20,396 622 15,398 ,391 6,966,074 
2015 19,068 197 15,667,062 6,245,036 

2016-2020 74,923,494 19,91 2,973 
2021-2025 28,888,1 25 7,080,845 
2026·2030 8,848,492 3, 114,320 
2031 .2035 8,015,000 1,203,000 

98,191 5,1 45 193,623,274 68,784,464 
Less: loss on defeasance 

(net of amortization) (15,190,376) 
$ 98, 191 $ 5,145 $ 178,432,898 $ 68,784,464 

G - Legal Debt Margin 

The legal debt margin of the City at June 30, 2010, approximated $956,646,089. 

H - Authorized But Un-issued Debt 

At June 30, 2010, the City had no bonds authorized but un-issued. 
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Notes Payable 
Principal Interest 

$ 1,267,849 $ 469 ,729 
1,267,849 437,285 
1,267,849 404,842 
1,267,849 372,398 
1,267,849 339,954 
6 ,141 ,243 1,213,119 
4,622,218 461,271 

848,492 22,570 

17,951, 198 3,721 ,168 

$ 17, 951,198 $ 3,721,1 68 



Note 6 - Defeasance of Debt 

City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2010 

A - 2009 General Obligation Refunding Bonds 

On November 22, 2009, the City of Fayetteville issued $12,300,000 in General Obligation Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2009 with a premium of $1,312,740 and an interest rate ranging from 3% to 5%. These 
general obligation bonds were issued to refund the City's outstanding 1996 Street and Public 
Improvement Bonds, 1999 Street and Public Improvement Bonds, and to advance refund the 2000 
Street and Public Improvement Bonds with interest rates ranging from 4.3% to 5.1 %. 

Net proceeds of $9,511 ,538 (after payment of $249,221 in underwriting fees and other issuance costs) 
were used to retire the 1996 and 1999 Street and Public Improvement Bonds on November 23, 2009. 
The remaining net proceeds of $3,851,981 were used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those 
securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for full retirement of 
the 2000 Street and Public Improvement Bonds on April 1, 2010. 

The City completed the refundings to reduce its total debt service payments over the next 11 years by 
$934,745 and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present values of the old and new 
debt service payments) of $868,565. 

B - Prior Year Defeasance of Debt 

In prior years, the City has defeased various bond issues by creating separate irrevocable trust funds. 
New debt has been issued and the proceeds have been used to purchase U.S. government securities 
that were placed in the trust funds. The investments and related fixed earnings are sufficient to fully 
service the defeased debt until the debt is called or matures. For financial reporting purposes, the debt 
has been considered defeased and therefore removed from the City's liabilities. As of June 30, 2010, 
the amount of prior year defeased debt outstanding and ' removed from the City's liabilities amounted to 
$4,602,411 . 

Gains and losses from debt refunding must be deferred and amortized over the lesser of the original 
remaining life of the old debt or the life of the new debt. In addition, gains or losses related to debt 
refunding are to be used in determining the carrying value of the new debt issued to finance debt 
refunding . The carrying values of the 2001 Revenue Refunding ElectriclWater and Wastewater Bonds, 
the 2009A Revenue Refunding Electric Water and Wastewater Bonds and the 2009 GO Refunding 
Bonds have been adjusted for the loss from defeasance (net of amortization) of $15,190,376. 
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Note 7 - Deferred/Unearned Revenues 

The balance in deferred revenue on the fund statements and unearned revenues on the government­
wide statements at year-end is composed of the following elements: 

R"ep:jd lia:nse; en::! fres rd ~ care:J (G:rffaI) 
R"ep:jd rEtiree il1Sl.lCnE preriLl113 (Irtenal S:svice) 
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Uncare:J g-art rEnif1s (R:rreEtimai en::! Qjtura) 
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Note 8 - Risk Management 

$ fffi,921 
8,100 

34,643 
483 

419,332 
11,714,339 
2,008,339 

61,aJi' 
13,Sffi 

7,739,854 
9Xl,452 

$ 24,430,622 

$ fffi,921 
8,100 

34,643 
483 

419,301 
11,714,339 

164,9Xl 

$ 12,911,773 

The City (excluding the electric and water and wastewater funds) is self-insured (self-funded) with 
respect to insurance claims as follows: health insurance (up to $150,000 per individual and 
approximately $11,145,622 for all employees for the policy ending June 30,2010), general liability (up 
to $350,000 per occurrence), workers' compensation ($600,000 per occurrence for police and fire 
employees, $500,000 per occurrence for all other employees), public officials liability (up to $350,000 
per occurrence), law enforcement liability ($350,000 per occurrence), and automobile liability (up to 
$350,000 per occurrence). Property insurance on city buildings is for replacement value (less $100,000 
self-funded retention) . The health insurance plan's excess coverage allows expenditures by the City up 
to 125% of expected claims adjusted for industry standard trend adjustments, and for expenditures by 
the City of up to $150,000 per individual. Losses from asserted claims and from unasserted claims 
identified under the City's incident reporting system are accrued based on estimates that incorporate 
the City's past experience, as well as other considerations including the nature of each claim and 
relevant trend factors . 

The City carries commercial coverage for all other risks of loss. Claims have not exceeded coverage in 
any of the last three fiscal years 

The Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds are self-insured with respect to workers' compensation 
(up to approximately $1,000,000) and self-insured with respect to health insurance claims (up to 
approximately $2,000,000). In addition, these funds are self-insured with respect to certain policy 
deductible amounts as follows: up to $100,000 per occurrence on public officials' liability, up to 
$1,000,000 per occurrence on liability claims, and up to $250,000 per occurrence on property claims. In 
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Note 8 • Risk Management (continued) 

addition, the Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds maintain excess liability insurance 
($10,000,000) to cover catastrophic losses and auto liability coverage with a $5,000 deductible per 
occurrence. These funds maintain an investment account amounting to $3,500,000 to cover possible 
workers' compensation and other claims. This investment is classified under restricted assets in the 
financial statements. No accrual for possible losses attributable to incidents that may have occurred 
but that have not been identified under the incident reporting system has been made, because the 
amount is not reasonably estimated. Further, a liability for outstanding claims at June 30, 2010 is not 
accrued as the amount of outstanding claims is not material to the financial statements. 

The Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds carry commercial coverage for all other risks of loss. 
There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage since the prior year, and settled 
claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the last three fiscal years. 

At June 30, 2010, a liability for incurred but not reported claims of $3,359,781 is included in accounts 
payable and accrued expenses on the accompanying financial statements. An analysis of claims 
activity for the City and the Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds is presented below. 

Liability at June 30, 

Current year claims and changes 
in estimates 

Actual claim payments 

Liability at June 30, 

2010 

$ 3,511,473 

16,940,994 

(17,092,686) 

:Ii 335978j 

2009 

$ 3,242,380 

16,168,705 

(15,899,612) 

:Ii 3 5jj 4:Z3 

The City (excluding the electric and water and wastewater funds) carries flood insurance through the 
National Flood Insurance Plan (NFIP) on a particular property commonly known as the police training 
facility located at 671 North Eastern Blvd. This property is covered by a separate insurance policy with 
damage limits of $500,OdO for building and $250,000 for contents. The City's insurance carriers 
performed an analysis of the flood maps and made a determination that the remainder of the City 
facilities was not designated an "A" area (an area close to a river, lake or stream) by the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency. 

The Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds carries flood insurance through the commercial 
insurance market. The current policy limit is $50 million with a $1 million sublimit applicable for loss in 
flood zones that is deSignated an "A" zone. The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) 
defines Zone A as an area close to a river, lake, or stream. The Electric and Water and Wastewater 
Funds' standard deductible is $100,000 with the exception of a $250,000 deductible set for generators. 

In accordance with G.S. 159-29, City employees (excluding the electric, waster and wastewater funds) 
that have access to $100 or more at any given time of the City's funds are performance bonded through 
a commercial surety bond. The City's Chief Financial Officer is individually bonded for $100,000. The 
remaining employees that have access to funds are bonded under a blanket bond for $100,000 per 
theft coverage, with a $1,000 per occurrence deduction. 
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Note 8 - Risk Management (continued) 

The Electric and Water and Wastewater Fund employees that have access to $100 or more at any 
given time of the Utility funds are insured under the Crime Policy. The policy covers Public Employee 
Dishonesty (up to $1 ,000,000 for the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer (PWC), Director of 
Planning and Capital Projects, and the Director of Accounting Systems). Other employees are covered 
for money and securities losses (up to $1 ,000,000) , and forgery, alterations and computer fraud (up to 
$1 ,000,000). This crime policy has a $10,000 deductible. 

Note 9 - Commitments and Contingent Liabilities 

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor 
agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already 
collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which 
may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the City expects such 
amounts, if any, to be immaterial. No provision has been made in the accompanying financial 
statements for the refund of grant money. 

The City is a c;Jefendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these proceedings is not presently 
determinable, it is the opinion of management that the resolution of these matters will not have a 
material adverse effect on the financial condition of the City. 

The City is subject to laws and regulations relating to the protection of the environment. While it is not 
possible to quantify with certainty the potential impact of actions regarding environmental matters, 
particularly any future remediation and other compliance efforts, in the opinion of management, 
compliance with the present environmental protection laws will not have a material adverse effect on 
the financial position , results of operations or cash flows of the City. 

The City's bond issues are subject to Federal arbitrage regulations, and the City has elected to review 
its potential arbitrage liability annually on the bond issue dates. The arbitrage rebate payments are 
payable on the fifth anniversary of the bond issue date and every fifth year subsequent to that 
date. Although the actual amount to be paid is not presently determinable, the City believes that an 
adequate provision for arbitrage payables has been provided for in the accompanying financial 
statements. 

The City has authorized expenditures totaling approximately $177.9 million for capital additions and 
construction of various administration , public safety, recreation, transportation, economic development, 
bond improvement, Linear Park, electric, water and wastewater, transit and airport projects. At June 
30, 2010, cumUlative 'expenditures to date totaled approximately $102.8 million leaving an unexpended 
balance of $75.1 million for projects that are expected to be completed at various dates in future fiscal 
years. 

In March 2002, the City entered into a new nine-year purchased power arrangement with Progress 
Energy Carolinas, Inc. (PEC) effective July 1, 2003. Beginning in July 2003, the City was committed to 
purchasing a minimum load from PEC at a fixed capacity price and an annually determined energy 
price. The minimum load requirements range from approximately 275 MW to 300 MW during the term 
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Note 9 - Commitments and Contingent Liabilities (continued) 

of the contract which ends in June 2012. The remaining capacity and energy will either be produced at 
the Butler-Warner Generation Plant or purchased on the open market. The lowest available price will 
be used to meet the City's needs. When the market price goes above the price at the Butler-Warner 
Generation Plant, the City may permit the marketing of its capacity and energy for sale to the open 
market. 

In June 2009 the City executed a 20-year full requirements Power Supply and Coordination Agreement 
with Progress Energy (PEC) effective July 1, 2012. Under this agreement, PEC will provide the City's 
full power supply requirements except for resources provided by PWC from other sources as permitted 
under the agreement, including utilization of the City's SEPA allocation. The City may terminate this 
agreement effective July 1, 2022 with written notice provided by June 30, 2015. Also in June 2009, the 
City and PEC executed a 5-year Butler Warner Power Sales Agreement effective July 1, 2012. Under 
this agreement, the City will generate and deliver energy to PEC pursuant to scheduled energy 
requests provided by PEC. PEC will pay the City for capacity , energy (including any fuel costs) and 
start costs. Either party may terminate this agreement by 3 years advance written notice. 

During the year ended June 30, 2010, the purchased power cost to PEC was $96,801,615. The City did 
not sell power on the open market in fiscal year 2010. 

On August 22, 2005, City Council adopted a resolution authorizing the City to enter into a 20-year 
master lease agreement, subject to Local Government Commission approval, with Festival Park Plaza 
Office LLC. On September 6, 2005, the leGC approved the City's master lease application. The master 
lease was executed on November 17, 2005. Under the terms of the master lease, the City is obligated 
to make certain lease payments if the building is not sufficiently leased to subtenants to cover debt 
service and operating expenses on the building throughout the term of the agreement. Approximately 
43% of the building was occupied at June 30, 2010. The City recorded an expenditure of $369,409 
under the master lease agreement for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. 

The City leases office space to others in the Robert C. Williams Business Center at Lafayette Plaza and 
the Administration Building on Old Wilmington Road. These lease agreements provide for minimum 
rental and have terms of 3 to 10 years and are due to expire at various dates from 2010 to 2014. 
Minimum lease provisions at June 30, 2010 will result in rental income for future years as follows: 

Year ending June 30 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
Total 
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$ 372,755 

293,583 
264,189 
182,881 
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Note 10 - On-Behalf Payments for Fringe Benefits and Salaries 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, the City has recognized on-behalf payments for pension 
contributions made by the State as revenue and an expenditure of $40,994 for the 144 employed 
firemen who perform firefighting duties for the City's fire department. These employees elected to be 
members of the Firemen's and Rescue Squad Workers' Pension Fund, a cost sharing, multiple­
employer public employee retirement system established and administered by the State of North 
Carolina. The plan is funded by a monthly contribution paid by each member, investment income, and 
a State appropriation. 

Note 11 - Employee Retirement Systems 

The City maintains a single-employer, defined benefit pension plan (the Law Enforcement Officers' 
Special Separation Allowance System), which covers the law enforcement officers of the City. In 
addition , the City continues to participate in the statewide local governmental retirement system, a 
multiple-employer, cost-sharing public employee pension plan that covers substantially all employees. 

A - Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System 

Plan Description 

The City contributes to the statewide Local Governmental Ernployees' Retirement System (LGERS), a 
cost sharing, and multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan adrninistered by the State of North 
Carolina. LGERS provides retirement and disability benefits to plan rnembers and beneficiaries. Article 
3 of G. S. Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North 
Carolina General Assembly. The Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System is included in the 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State's CAFR 
includes financial statements and required supplernentary information for LGERS. That report may be 
obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller; 1410 Mail Service Center; Raleigh , North 
Carolina 27699-1410 or by calling (919) 981-5454. 

Funding Policy 

Plan members are required to contribute si x percent of their annual covered salary. The City is 
required to contribute at an actuarially deterrnined rate. For the City, exclusive of the Electric and 
Water and Wastewater funds, the current rate for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for 
law enforcement officers is 4.89% and 4.86%, respectively , of annual covered payroll. The rate for the 
Electric and Water and Wastewater funds is 10.03%. The contribution requirements of rnembers and of 
the City are established and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. The City's 
contributions to LGERS for all employees, including law enforcement officers and Electric and Water 
and Wastewater funds, for the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008, were $6,042,941 , 
$5,881 ,291 and $5,558,873, respectively. The contributions made by the City equaled the required 
contributions for each year. 
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B - Supplemental Employees' Retirement Plan of the Public Works Commission of the City of 
Fayetteville, North Carolina 

The Supplemental Employees' Retirement Plan of the Public Works Commission of the City of 
Fayetteville, North Carolina ("SERP plan") is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan 
administered by the Public Works Commission Employees' Retirement Plan Board of Trustees. This 
plan was established on April 1, 2003 to equalize benefits received under the LGERS plan to those 
formerly participating in the Employees' Retirement Plan (ERP). 

The only employees eligible to participate in the SERP plan are those who met the requirements of the 
ERP plan. Effective, April 1, 2003 no additional employees will enter this plan. Benefits vest after five 
years of credited service. Electric and Water and Wastewater fund employees reaching the defined 
retirement age are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal 
to 1.8% of their final average compensation times years of credited service. The SERP plan provides 
retirement benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Cost-of-living adjustments are provided to 
members and beneficiaries at the discretion of the Public Works Commission . All benefit payments by 
the SERP plan will be offset by the benefits payable from the LGERS plan. The schedule of funding 
progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial 
statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is 
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. The City of 
Fayetteville City Council has the authority to establish and amend the retirement plan provisions. The 
SERP plan does not issue a separate report. Rather, the financial report of the SERP plan is included 
as a pension trust fund. . 

The contribution requirements of the plan members and the Public Works Commission are established 
and may be amended by the City of Fayetteville City Council. There will be no employee contributions 
after April 1, 2003. The Public Works Commission is required to contribute at an actuarially 
determined rate. The rate for the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008 was 0% of annual 
covered payroll. 

The annual required contribution calculation for June 30, 2010 was determined as part of the July 1, 
2009, actuarial valuation using the aggregate actuarial cost method. Because this method does not 
identify or separately amortize unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities, information about funded status 
and funding progress is presented using the entry age actuarial cost method and the information 
presented is intended to serve as a surrogate for the funded status and funding progress of the plan. 

The actuarial assumptions included a 5% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses). 
There is no projected salary increase as the benefits for active employees have worn away in this plan. 
All benefits for active employees are covered by LGERS. An inflation component of 3% is included. 
The assumptions did not include postretirement benefit increases, which are funded by the 
Commission's appropriations when granted. 
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The actuarial value of assets was determined by using the market value at June 30, 2009. There was 
no annual required contribution for the current year under this plan. This benefit plan is a contributory, 
defined benefit retirement plan, which covers all employees who participated in the SERP plan at April 
1,2003. 

In fiscal year 2009 the Supplemental Employees' Retirement Plan Board of Trustees voted to purchase 
a group annuity for the participants of the plan. This annuity purchase was approved by the 
Commission and the City Council. During fiscal year 2010 a Non-Participating Single Premium Group 
Annuity Contract was purchased from the John Hancock Life Insurance Company to provide all benefits 
earned under the plan. The John Hancock Life Insurance Company is responsible for paying all future 
benefit payments to the Plan participants. The Commission has minimal liability for the Supplemental 
Employees' Retirement Plan. This annuity contract is subject to the laws of the State of North Carolina. 
North Carolina has an Insurance Guaranty Fund that will cover all benefits in the case of the insurance 
company's insolvency. The limits of the guaranty fund exceed the value of any participant's benefit. 

C - Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance 

Plan Description 

The City administers a public employee retirement system (the "Separation Allowance"), a single­
employer; defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement benefits to the City's qualified sworn 
law enforcement officers. The Separation Allowance is equal to .85 percent of the annual equivalent of 
the base rate of compensation most recently applicable to the officer for each year of creditable service. 
The retirement benefits are not subject to any increases in salary or retirement allowances that may be 
authorized by the General Assembly. Article 120 of G. S. Chapter 143 assigns the authority to 
establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Separation 
Allowance is reported in the City's report as a pension trust fund and does not issue separate financial 
statements. The Separation Allowance covers all full-time City law enforcement officers. 

At December 31, 2009, the Separation Allowance's membership consisted of: 

Retirees receiving benefits 
Active plan members 
Total 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Accounting: Financial statements for the Separation Allowance are prepared using the accrual 
basis of accounting. Employer contributions to the plan are recognized when due and when the City 
has made a formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. 

Method Used to Value Investments: Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term debt, deposits, 
and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust Investments are reported at cost or amortized cost, 
which approximates fair value. Certain longer term United States Government and United States 
Agency securities are valued at the last reported sales price. 

F-38 



City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2010 

Note 11 - Employee Retirement Systems (continued) 

Contributions 

The City is required by Article 12D of G, S, Chapter 143 to provide these retirement benefits and has 
chosen to fund the amounts necessary to cover the benefits earned by making contributions based on 
actuarial valuations, For the current year, the City contributed $511,931, or 2,76% of annual covered 
payroll. There were no contributions made by employees, The City's obligation to contribute to this 
plan is established and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly, 

The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the December 31, 2008 
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit actuarial method, The actuarial assumptions included 
(a) 7,25% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) and (b) projected salary increases 
of 4,5% - 12,3% per year, Both (a) and (b) included an inflation component of 3,75%, The 
assumptions did not include postretirement benefit increases, The actuarial value of assets was market 
value, The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of pay on a 
closed basis, The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2008 was 22 years, 

********** 

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank 
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Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation 

The City's annual pension cost and net prepaid pension obligation to the Separation Allowance for the 
current year were as follows: 

Annual required contribution 
Interest on net pension obligation 
Adjustment to annual required contribution 
Annual pension cost 
Contributions made 
Increase (decrease) in net pension obligation 
Net prepaid pension obligation beginning of year 
Net prepaid pension obligation end of year 

Fiscal Year 
Ending 

2008 
2009 
2010 

Three-Year Trend Information 
Annual Percentage 
Pension of APC 

Cost (APC) Contributed 
$ 383,772 98.84% 

415,308 107.04 
465,302 110.02 

Funded Status and Funding Progress 

$ 469,933 
(35,320) 
30,689 

465,302 
511,937 
(46,635) 

(487,171) 
$ (533806) 

Net Prepaid 
Pension 

Obligation 
$ (457,951) 

(487,171) 
(533,806) 

As of June 30, 2010 the plan was not funded. The most recent actuarial valuation was December 31, 
2009. The actuarial value of plan assets was $2,161 ,322. The actuarial accrued liability (AAL) for 
benefits was $7,423,392 and the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) was $5,262,070. The 
funded ratio was 29.12 percent. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by 
the plan) was $18,645,039 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 28.22 percent. 

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes 
to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of 
plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. 
The general fund typically liquidates any net pension obligation. 

********** 

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank 
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The fiscal year 2009-2010 combining financial statements for the City's pension trust funds are as 
follows: 

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS 

Special 
Separation PWC 
Allowance Supplemental 

Pension Pension Total 
Trust Fund Trust Fund June 30, 2010 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,214,841 $ $ 2,214,841 

Other assets 
Accounts receivable 4,548 4,548 

Total assets 2,219,389 2,219,389 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 19,953 19,953 

Total liabilities 19,953 19,953 

NET ASSETS 
Held in trust for benefits and other purposes 2,199,436 2,199,436 
Total net assets $ 2,199,436 $ $ 2,199,436 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

Special 
Separation PWC 
Allowance Supplemental 

Pension Pension Total 

Trust Fund Trust Fund June 30, 2010 

ADDITIONS 
Employer contributions $ 511,937 $ $ 511,937 

Investment earnings 25,308 3,409 28,717 

Total additions 537,245 3,409 540,654 

DEDUCTIONS 
Benefit payments and premiums 472,047 62,554 534,601 

Annuity purchase 2,880,000 2,880,000 

Other 984,900 984,900 

Total deductions 472,047 3,927,454 4,399,501 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 65,198 (3,924,045) (3,858,847) 

Total net assets - beginning 2,134,238 3,924,045 6,058,283 
Total net assets - ending $ 2,199,436 $ $ 2,199,436 
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D - Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers 

Plan Description 

The City contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (the "Plan"), a defined contribution 
pension plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board of Trustees. The Plan 
provides retirement benefits to law enforcement officers employed by the City and also those non-law 
employees who choose to make their own contributions. Article 5 of G. S. Chapter 135 assigns the 
authority to establish and amend benefit provisions for the law enforcement officers to the North 
Carolina General Assembly. The Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers 
is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The 
state's CAFR includes the pension trust fund financial statements for the Internal Revenue Code 
Section 401 (k) plan that includes the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement 
Officers. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service 
Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454. 

Funding Policy 

Article 12E of G. S. Chapter 143 requires the City to contribute each month an amount equal to five 
percent of each law enforcement officer's salary, and all amounts contributed are vested immediately. 
The City does not make any contributions for non-law employees. All employees may make voluntary 
contributions to the Plan. Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2010, were $1 ,887,620, which 
consisted of $957,633 from the City and $929,987 from employees. 

E - Firemen's and Rescue Squad Workers' Pension Fund 

Plan Description 

As discussed in Note 10, the State of North Carolina contributes, on behalf of the City of Fayetteville, to 
the Firemen's and Rescue Squad Workers' Pension Fund (Fund), a cost-sharing multiple-employer 
defined benefit pension plan with a special funding situation administered by the State of North 
Carolina. The Fund provides pension benefits for eligible fire and rescue squad workers that have 
elected to become members of the Fund . Article 86 of G.S. Chapter 58 assigns the authority to 
establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Firemen's and 
Rescue Squad Workers' Pension Fund is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
(CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State's CAFR includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information for the Fund . That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the 
State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh , North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 
981 -5454. 

Funding Policy 

Plan members are required to contribute $10 per month to the Fund. The State, a nonemployer 
contributor, funds the plan through appropriations. The City does not contribute to the Fund. 
Contribution requirements of plan members and the State of North Carolina are established and may be 
amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. 
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In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 11, the City (excluding the City's Public Works 
Commission) administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan. For employees hired on 
or after February 1, 2008, this plan provides postemployment healthcare benefits to retirees of the City, 
up to the age of 65 or until they are eligible to receive medicare benefits, provided they participate in 
the North Carolina Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System (System) and have at least 
twenty years of creditable service with the City. For employees hired prior to February 1, 2008, 
employees qualified for similar level benefits after at least five years of creditable service with the City 
and 10 years of service credit with the System. The City and retirees contribute to the cost of coverage 
for these benefits through a self-insured plan. Also, the City's retirees can purchase coverage for their 
eligible dependents at the City's group rates. The City also provides a death benefit through the plan 
based on the number of years of service at retirement. The City may amend the benefit provisions. A 
separate report was not issued for the plan. 

Membership in the health care and life insurance benefit plan consisted of the following at December 
31,2009, the date of the latest actuarial valuation: 

Retirees receiving health andlor life insurance benefits 467 
Active plan members 1,379 

Total 1,846 

Funding Policy. The City and the qualified retirees share in the cost of healthcare coverage. Also, the 
City's retirees can purchase healthcare coverage for their dependents at the City's group rates. The 
City pays the cost of death benefits. 

The current Annual Required Contribution (ARC) rate is 5.01 percent of annual covered payroll as 
reflected in the latest actuarial valuation. For the current year, the City contributed $799,635 or 1.35 
percent of annual covered payroll. The City is self-insured with respect to healthcare coverage up to 
$150,000 per individual and approximately $11,145,622 for all employees and retirees for the policy 
ending June 30, 2010. Retiree members contributed $187,484 or 0.32 percent of annual covered 
payroll for retiree and dependent coverage. The City offers a $100 death benefit for each year of 
service up to a maximum of $3,000. The City's and retiree members' obligation to contribute to the 
healthcare plan, including the death benefit , is established and may be amended by the City Manager 
consistent with the annual budget approved by City Council. The City has chosen to fund health care 
and death benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. Post-employment expenditures are made from the 
Insurance Internal Service Fund, which is maintained on the full accrual basis of accounting. The 
Insurance Fund charges a monthly rate per retiree to the General Fund, special revenue funds and 
enterprise funds (other than the funds managed by the Public Works Commission) based on the 
number of retirees attributed to each fund to pay for post-employment expenditures. 
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Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The City's annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated 
based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in 
accordance within the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, 
if paid on an ongoing basis is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded 
actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The City prospectively 
implemented GASB Statement 45 at June 30, 2008. The following table shows the components of the 
City's annual OPEB cost for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, the amount actually contributed to the 
plan , and changes in the City's net OPEB obligation for the healthcare and death benefits: 

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) 
Interest on net OPES obligation 
Adjustment to annual required contribution 
Annual OPES cost (expense) 
Contributions made 
Increase (decrease) in net OPES obligation 
Net OPES obligation, beginning of the year 
Net OPEB obligation, end of the year 

$2,963,516 
304,185 
(262,433) 

3,005,268 
(799,635) 

2,205,633 
7,604,621 

$9,810,254 

The City's annual OPES cost, the percentage of annual OPES cost contributed to the plan, and the net 
OPES obligation for 2008 through 2010 were as follows: 

For the Year AnnualOPEB Percentage of Annual Net OPES 
Ended June 30 Cost OPES Cost Contributed Obligation 

2008 $ 6,585,964 15.11 % $ 5,590,699 
2009 2,887,096 30.24% 7,604,621 
2010 3,005,268 26.61% 9,810,254 

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of June 30, 2010 the plan was not funded. The most recent 
actuarial valuation was December 31 , 2009. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits and, thus, the 
unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) was $31 ,906,033. The covered payroll (annual payroll of 
active employees covered by the plan) was $59,132,363 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered 
payroll was 53.96 percent. Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of 
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. 
Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and healthcare trends. Amounts 
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the 
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and 
new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required 
supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend 
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time 
relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for the benefits. 
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based 
on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include 
the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of 
benefit costs between the employer and plan members at that point. The actuarial methods and 
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in 
actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective 
of the calculations. 

In the December 31, 2009 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was used. 
The actuarial assumptions included a 4.00 percent investment rate of return which is the expected long­
term investment returns on the employer's own investments calculated based on the funded level of the 
plan at the valuation date, and an annual medical cost trend increase of 10.50 to 5.00 percent annually. 
Both rates included a 3.75 percent inflation assumption. The actuarial value of assets, if any, was 
determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of 
investments. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open 
basis. The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2009, was 30 years. 

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 11, the City's Public Works Commission 
administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan for the Electric, Water and Wastewater, 
and Fleet Maintenance funds. This plan provides postemployment healthcare benefits to retirees and 
their dependents up to the age of 65. The Commission may amend the benefit provisions. 

Membership in the Commission's healthcare benefit plan consisted of the following at June 30, 2010: 

Retirees 
Active members 
Total 

69 
581 
650 

Funding Policy. The Commission and the qualified retirees share in the cost of coverage. Also, the 
Commission 's retirees can purchase coverage for their dependents at the Commission's group rates. 
The Commission has chosen to fund the health care benefits on a pay as you go basis. 

The current Annual Required Contribution (ARC) rate is 5.0 percent of annual covered payroll. The 
Commission is self-insured with respect to healthcare coverage. 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The Commission's annual OPEB cost (expense) is 
calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially 
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of 
funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any 
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following 
table shows the components of the Commission's annual OPEB cost for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2010. 
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Annual Required Contribution (ARC) 
Interest on net OPES obligation 
Adjustment to annual required contribution 
Annual OPES cost (expense) 
Contributions made 
Increase (decrease) in net OPES obligation 
Net OPES obligation, beginning of the year 
Net OPES obligation, end of the year 

$1,464,968 
(11 ,857) 

1,453,111 
(802,430) 
650,681 

1,949,481 
$2,600,162 

The Commission's annual OPES cost, the percentage of annual OPES cost contributed to the plan, 
and the net OPES obligation for 2008 through 2010 were as follows: 

For the Year Annual OPES Percentage of Annual Net OPES 
Ended June 30 Cost OPES Cost Contributed Obligation 

2008 $ 1,070,188 0.00% $ 1,070,188 
2009 1,464,968 39.49% 1,949,481 
2010 1,453,111 55.22% 2,600,162 

As of June 30, 2010 the plan was not funded. The most recent actuarial valuation was August 31, 
2009. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits and , thus, the unfunded actuarial accrued liability 
(UAAL) was $15,772,610. The net OPES obligation and related OPES expense are reported in the 
Electric, Water and Wastewater and Fleet Maintenance funds as a noncurrent liability and a general 
and administrative expense, respectively. 

The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $30,451,478 and the 
ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 51 .8 percent. Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan 
involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence 
of events far into the future . Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and 
healthcare trends. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual 
required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared 
with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future . The schedule of funding 
progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial 
statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is 
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for the benefits. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based 
on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include 
the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of 
benefit costs between the employer and plan members at that point. The actuarial methods and 
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in 
actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective 
of the calculations. 

In the August 31 , 2009 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was used. 
The actuarial assumptions included a 5.25 percent investment rate of return which is the expected long­
term investment returns on the employer's own investments calculated based on the funded level of the 
plan at the valuation date, and an annual medical cost trend increase of 10.00 to 5.00 percent annually. 
Soth rates included a 3.00 percent inflation assumption. 
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The UAAL is being amortized as a level dollar amortization on an open basis. The remaining 
amortization period was 30 years. There are no assets set aside for these benefits. The plan is funded 
on a pay-as-you-go basis. 

Note 13 - Interfund Balances and Activity 

Balances Due tolfrom Other Funds 

Balances due tolfrom other funds at June 30, 2010, consist of the following: 

Due To: 
Waste and 

Due From: General Eleclric Waslewaler Tolal 
Nonmajor Enterprise Fund $ 21 3,918 $ $ $ 213,918 
Inlernal Service Fund 119,382 5,533 124,915 

$ 213,91 8 $ 119,382 $ 5,533 $ 338,833 

The interfund balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and 
services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the 
accounting system, and (3) payments between funds are made. 

Transfers tolfrom Other Funds 

Transfers due tolfrom other funds at June 30, 2010, consist of the following: 

Transfer in: 
Recreational Water and Nonmajor Internal 

Transfer out: General and Cultural Electric Wastewater Entererise Service Total 
General S S 258,001 S 20 ,847 S 1,017,983 S 2,649,540 S S 14,932,174 
Recreational & Cultural 31 ,155 133,136 164,291 
Nonmajor Governmental 13,500 204,093 24, 195 1,921,100 2,162,888 
Electric 8,690.001 1,160 8,691,161 
Water and Wastewater 79 79 
Nonmajor Enterprise 427,245 3,458 430,703 
Intern al Service 2,576,050 2, 576,050 

Totals S 9,161.901 S 258 ,001 S 13,903,779 S 20,847 S 1,042,178 S 2.649 .540 S 1,921.100 S 28,957,346 

Transfers are used to move unrestricted revenues to finance various programs that the government 
must account for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations, and include amounts 
provided as matching funds for various grant programs. 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, a total of $8,690,001 was transferred from the electric fund 
to the general fund. This transfer consisted of two components: (1) 3.1 % of electric fund net assets at 
June 30, 2010 totaling $8,376,232, and (2) reimbursement of general fund street light utility 
expenditures of $313,769. 
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Transfers totaling $10,985,803 were also made during the fiscal year from the general fund to non­
major governmental funds. Of this total , transfers for capital projects consisted of: $6,065,830 for 
transportation projects including street resurfacing, and transportation and railroad crossing 
improvement project commitments under municipal agreements; $747,093 for general government 
projects including telephone system upgrades and computer replacements; $158,390 for economic 
development projects, $131 ,000 for miscellaneous expenditures which were ineligible for bond proceed 
reimbursement, and $20,000 for public safety projects. Additionally, transfers for special revenue funds 
included: $3,535,342 transferred to the City of Fayetteville Finance Corporation for lease purchase 
payments for city facilities, $291,973 transferred for local matches for Federal and State funded 
programs, $30,178 transferred for stormwater system improvements and $5,999 for expenditures 
related to operations of the emergency telephone system. 

Note 14 - Subsequent Events 

On August 10, 2010, the City issued $5,950,000 recovery zone economic bonds to finance the 
construction of a five-story parking deck. The bonds are secured by real property. The scheduled date 
for final repayment is August 10, 2025. 

On November 8, 2010, City Council approved calling $7 ,680,000 Public Works Commission Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2001, on March 1, 2011. 
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Actuarial 
Actuarial Value of 
Valuation Assets 

Date (al 

12/3112000 $ 1,228,812 
12/31/2001 1,382,479 
12/31/2002 1,491,666 
12/31/2003 1,628,946 
12/3112004 1,657,940 
12/31/2005 1,762,344 
12/31/2006 2,023,488 
12/31/2007 2,092,180 
12/31/2008 2,101,963 
12/31/2009 2,161,322 

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance 
Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of Funding Progress 

Actuarial Accrued 
Liability (AAL) Unfunded 
- Projects Unit AAL Funded 

Credit (UAAL) Ratio 

(bl (b-a) (alb) 

$ 2,728,524 $ 1,499,712 45.04% $ 
3,074,210 1,691 ,731 44.97% 
3,356,167 1,864,501 44.45% 
3,516,635 1,887,689 46.32% 
3,902,435 2,244,495 42.48% 
3,882,639 2,120,295 45.39% 
4,632,567 2,609,079 43.68% 
5,062,285 2,970,105 41 .33% 
5,449,006 3,347,043 38.58% 
7,423,392 5,262,070 29.12% 

UAAL as a 
Covered % of Covered 
Payroll Payroll 

(e) ((b-al/e) 

10,581 ,205 14.17% 
11 ,197,858 15.11% 
11 ,941 ,930 15.61% 
12,062,456 15.65% 
13,501,5'37 16.62% 
14,117,825 15.02% 
16,750,277 15.58% 
16,792,423 17.69% 
17,468,170 19.16% 
18,645,039 28.22% 

The annual required contribution for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 was determined as part of the December 31,2008 actuarial 
valuation using the project unit credit actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions included (a) 7.25% investment rate of return 
and (b) projected salary increases ranging from 4.5% to 12.3% per year. The inflation component was 3.75%. The assumptions do 
not include postretirement benefit increases. The actuarial value of assets was market value. The unfunded actuarial accrued 
liability is being amortized as a level percentage of pay on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at December 31,2008 
was 22 years. 
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Year Ended 
June 30 

2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 

$ 

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Law Enforcement Officers' Special Seperation Allowance 
Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of Employer Contributions 

Annual Required 
Contribution 

145,228 
259,788 
286,336 
311,445 
318,276 
361,749 
329,564 
388,882 
415,308 
465,302 

Percentage 
Contributed 

114.21% 
104.76% 
108.65% 
102.16% 
99.97% 

115.76% 
117.11% 
97.54% 

107.04% 
110.02% 

$ 

Notes to the Required Schedules: 

Actual 
Contributions 

The informalion presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of Ihe 
actuarial valualion at the dales indicaled. Addilional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows: 

Valuation date 

Actuarial cost method 

Amortization melhod 

Remaining amortizalion period 

Asset valuation method 

Actuarial assumptions: 

Inveslment rate return' 

Projected salary increases' 

• Includes inflation at 

Cost-of-living adjustments 

December 31 , 2009 

Projected Unit Credit 

Level percent of pay closed 

21 years 

Market value 

G-2 

5% 

4.5 -12.3% 

3.75% 

N/A 

165,864 
272,141 
311 ,091 
318,169 
318,169 
418,762 
385,957 
379,324 
444,528 
511 ,937 



Actuarial 
Valuation 

Date 

7/01103 $ 
7/01/04 
7/01/05 
7/01/06 
7/01/07 
7/01/08 
7/01/09 

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Supplemental Public Works Commission Retirement System 
Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of Funding Progress 

Actuarial Accrued 
Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded 
Value of - Projects Unit AAL Funded Covered 
Assets Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll 

(a) (b) (b-a) (alb) (c) 

3,990,343 N/A N/A N/A N/A 
3,952,504 N/A N/A N/A N/A 
4 ,105,589 N/A N/A N/A N/A 
4,149,640 N/A N/A N/A N/A 
4 ,560,792 N/A N/A N/A N/A 
4 ,187,435 N/A N/A N/A N/A 
3,947,048 N/A N/A N/A N/A 

UAAL as a 
% of Covered 

Payroll 
((b-a)/c) 

N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 

Note that this schedule is provided for informational purposes only and is calculated using the entry age actuarial 
cost method. The information presented is intended to serve as a surrogate for the funded status and funding 
progress of the plan, which calculates actuarial valuations using the aggregate actuarial cost method. 
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Year Ended 
June 30 

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Supplemental Public Works Commission Retirement System 
Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of Employer Contributions 

Annual Required 
Contribution 

Percentage 
Contributed 

There was no pension obligation as of July 1, 2003. Since then, the cost and contributions have been 
zero so there is still no net pension obligation. 

Notes to the Required Schedules: 

The information presented in the required supplementary schedule was determined as part of the actuarial 
valuation at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows: 

Valuation date July 1, 2009 

Actuarial cost method Aggregate 

Amortization method N/A 

Amortization period N/A 

Asset valuation method Market value 

Actuarial assumptions: 

Investment rate of return 5% 

Projected salary increases' N/A 

Includes inflation at 3.0% 

Cost-of-living adjustments None 

• Benefits for aclive employees have worn away in Ihis plan. All benefils for aclive employees are covered by LGERS. 
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Actuarial 
Actuarial Value of 
Valuation Assets 

Date la! 

1213112005 $ 
12/31/2007 
12/31/2009 

CITY OF FAYETTEVillE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Other Post Employment Benefit Retiree Healthcare Plan 
Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of Funding Progress 

Actuarial Accrued 
liability (AAl) Unfunded 
- Projects Unit AAl Funded 

Credit (UAAl) Ratio 

Ib! Ib-a! la/b! 

$ 54,434,583 $ 54,434,583 0.00% $ 
27,972,680 27,972,680 0.00% 
31,906,033 31,906,033 0.00% 

G-5 

UAAL as a 
Covered % of Covered 
Payroll Payroll 

Ie! !lb-a!/e! 

44,476,975 122.40% 
53,061,647 52.72% 
59,132,363 53.96% 



Year Ended 
June 30 

2008 
2009 
2010 

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Other Post Employment Benefit Retiree Healthcare Plan 
Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of Employer Contributions 

Annual Percentage of Annual 
OPEB Cost OPEB Cost Contributed 

$ 6,585,964 15.11% 
2,856,401 30.57% 
3,005,268 26.61% 

Notes to the Required Schedules: 

Net OPEB 
Obligation 

$ 5,590,699 
7,604,621 
9,810,254 

The information presented in the required supplementary schedule was determined as part of the actuarial 
valuation at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows: 

Valuation date December 31 , 2009 

Actuarial cost method Projected Unit Credit 

Amortization method Level Percentage of Pay on an Open Basis 

Amortization period 30 years 

Actuarial assumptions: 

Investment rate of return' 4.00% 

Annual medical cost trend rates' 10.5% - 5% 

• Includes inflation at 3.75% 
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Actuarial 
Valuation 

Date 

2/22107 $ 
8/31109 
8/31109 

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Public Works Commission Other Post Employment Benefit Retiree Healthcare Plan 
Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of Funding Progress 

Actuarial Accrued 
Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded 
Value of - Projects Unit AAL Funded Covered 
Assets Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll 

(a! !b! (b.a! !a/b! (c! 

$ 11,080,476 $ 11,080,476 0.00% $ 27,983,314 
15,772,61 0 15,772,61 0 0.00% 29,452,949 
15,772,610 15,772,610 0.00% 30,451,478 

G·7 

UAAL as a 
% of Covered 

Payroll 
lIb.a!/c! 

39.60% 
53.55% 
51.80% 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Public Works Commission Other Post Employment Benefit Retiree Healthcare Plan 
Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of Employer Contributions 

Year Ended Annual Percentage of Annual Net OPEB 
June 30 OPEB Cost OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation 

2008 $ 1,070,188 0.00% $ 1,070,188 
2009 1,453,111 39.49% 1,949,481 
2010 1,453,111 55.22% 2,600,162 

Notes to the Required Schedules: 

The information presented in the required supplementary schedule was determined as part of the actuarial 
valuation at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows: 

Valuation date August 31,2009 

Actuarial cost method Projected Unit Credit 

Amortization method Level Dollar Amortization on an Open Basis 

Amortization period 30 

Actuarial assumptions: 

Investment rate of return* 5.25% 

Annual medical cost trend rates* 10% - 5% 

* Includes inflation at 3.0% 
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Combining and Individual Fund Financial 
Statements and Schedules 

These statements/schedules provide a more detailed view 
of the "Basic Financial Statements" as presented in the 
preceding subsection. 

Combining state~ents are presented where there is more 
than one fund of al given type. Individual fund statements 
are presented if only one fund exists in a given fund type. 

, 
\ 



• General Fund 
• Recreational and Cultural Fund 
• Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

- Special Revenue Funds 
- Capital Project Funds 

The focus of Governmental Fund measurement is upon 
determination of financial position and charges in financial 
position (sources, uses and balances of financial 
resources) rather than upon net income determination. 

\ 



The General Fund is the principal fund of the City and is 
used to account for the receipt and expenditure of 
resources that are traditionally associated with local 
governments and that are not required to be accounted for 
in another fund. 

Resources are provided primarily through taxes, 
intergovernmental revenues and transfers and are 
expended for services deemed not susceptible to a user 
cha'rge financing method. 

The Fund is ac.counted for on the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. 

) 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Comparative Balance Sheets 
General Fund 

June 30, 2010 and 2009 

ASSETS 2010 2009 

Cash and investments $ 42,543,129 $ 41 ,653,341 
Taxes receivable 2,968,369 3,150,513 
Accounts receivable 12,875,388 12,764,126 
Interfund receivable 213,918 249,542 
Assessments receivable 630,776 489,373 
Inventories 104,678 79,900 
Restricted cash and investments 1,071,729 

Total assets $ 60,407,987 $ 58,386,795 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 9,257,973 $ 6,994,124 
Unearned deposits 108,739 131,418 
Deferred revenues 4,452,697 5,342,238 

Total liabilities 13,819,409 12,467,780 

Fund balances 
Fund balances: 

Reserved 
By State statute 12,805,674 11,960,494 
For encumbrances 2,597,091 4,167,814 
For inventories 104,678 79,900 
For downtown 104,316 124,882 
For county recreation 2,273,244 1,598,321 
For JP Riddle Stadium 59,410 26,523 
For donations 28,115 27,000 

Unreserved 
Designated 

For subsequent year's expenditures 2,908,969 3,643,174 
For special purpose 3,558,494 3,562,081 
For capital projects 3,424,312 3,339,367 

Undesignated 18,724,275 17,389,459 
Total fund balances 46,588,578 45,919,015 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 60,407,987 $ 58,386,795 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
Budget and Actual· General Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 
With Comparative Actual Statements for the Year Ended June 30,2009 

Variance 
Positive 2010 

Budget (Negatiye~ Actual 
Revenues 

Ad valorem taxes 
Current year $ 55,783,708 S 1,470,077 $ 57,253,785 
Prior year 1,162,700 (42,684) 1,120,016 
Penalties 315,450 10,706 326,156 

Total ad valorem taxes 57,261,858 1,438,099 58,699,957 

Other taxes 
Vehicle license tax 627,285 3,568 630,853 
Privilege license _ 1,084,100 (100,954) , 983,146 
Cablevision franchise tax 430,604 (58,378) 372,226 
Gross receipts tax on rental property 544,590 (66,704) 477,886 

Total other taxes 2,686,579 (222,468) 2,464,111 

Unrestricted intergovernmental 
Local option sales lax 30,975,771 (185,890) 30,789,881 
Telecommunications sales tax 2,219,165 (223,339) 1,995,826 
Utility franchise lax 4,647,921 90,841 4,738,762 
Piped nalural gas tax 679,507 (38,994) 640,513 
Video franchise fee 2,503,918 156,173 2,660,091 
Beer and wine lax 330,702 (34,832) 295,870 
County - other 359,103 12,061 371,164 
local - public safety 339,602 3,102 342,704 
Local - other 84,177 8,800 92,977 

Total unrestricted intergovernmental 42,139,866 (212,078) 41,927,788 

Restricted intergovernmental 
Federal - public safety 772,802 78,231 851,033 
Powell Bill allocation 5,027,328 131 ,326 5,158,654 
State - other 23,600 10,454 34,054 
State - public safety 65,400 (240) 65,160 
Sand waste disposal tax 136,913 4,389 141 ,302 
County recreation 2,656,792 731 ,692 3,388,484 
County - other 77,689 14,311 92,000 

Total restricted intergovernmental 8,760,524 970,163 9,730,687 

Permits and fees 1,987,000 (106,726) 1,880,274 

Sales and services 
Property leases 949,084 (486,358) 462,726 
Engineering/planning services 370,172 3,537 373,709 
Public safety services 1,196,437 (387,406) 809,031 
Environmental services 71 ,939 3,121 75,060 
Recrea tion and cultural services 986,133 203,075 1,189,208 
Parking revenues 153,200 32,214 185,414 
Other fees and services 91 ,921 (4,254) 87,667 

Total sales and services 3,818,886 (636,071) 3,182,815 

H,2 

2009 
Actual 

S 53,988,079 
1,253,509 ' 

311,424 

55,553,01 2 

630,065 
1,013,929 

380,944 
441,381 

2,466,319 

29,628,044 
2,081,301 
4,048,341 

665,756 
2,401,090 

814,901 
288,973 
335,106 
103,549 

40,367,061 

170,492 
5,270,237 

76,511 
74,044 
84,449 

2,825,146 
77,353 

8,578,232 

1,889,966 

425,030 
333,452 
947,682 

70,693 
1,078,230 

215,162 
193,683 

3,263,932 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
Budget and Actual - General Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 
With Comparative Actual Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Variance 
Positive 2010 

Budget (Negative~ Actual 
Revenues (continued) 

Miscellaneous 
Refunds and sundry S 642,056 S 62,861 S 704,917 
Indirect cost allocation 1,112,866 6,232 1,119,098 
Special use assessment 195,000 3,103 198,103 

Total miscellaneous 1,949,922 72,196 2,022,118 

Interest earned on investments 844,000 (196,832) 647,168 

Total revenues 119,448,635 1,106,283 120,554,918 

Expenditures 
Current 

Administration 
Legislative 

Salaries and employee benefils 286,170 19,101 267,069 
Other operating expenditures 455,965 54,507 401,458 

742,135 73,608 668,527 

City attorney 
Salaries and employee benefits 543,177 1,044 542,133 
Other operating expenditures 649,895 38,120 611 ,775 

1,193,072 39,164 1,153,908 

Executive 
Salaries and employee benefits 1,073,936 10,370 1,063,566 
Other operating expenditures 101 ,842 35,690 66,152 

1,175,778 46,060 1,129,718 

Human resources development 
Salaries and employee benerlts 890,504 46,949 843,555 
Other operating expenditures 326,976 76,003 250,973 

1,217,480 122,952 1,094,528 

Management services 
Salaries and employee benefits 514,177 65,671 448,506 
Other operating expenditures 229,145 37,844 191 ,301 
Capital outlay 
Inventory 126,000 5,247 120,753 
Cost redistribution (164 ,000) (1 ,971) (162,029) 

705,322 106,791 598,531 

Information technology 
Salaries and employee benefits 1,203 ,938 34,329 1,169,609 
Other operating expenditures 1,177,751 224,692 953,059 
Capital outlay 202,053 136,558 65,495 
Cost redistribution 

2,583,742 395,579 2,188,163 

Human relations 
Salaries and employee benefits 208,598 1,196 207,402 
Other operating expenditures 37,014 16,710 20,304 
Payments to agencies 2,281 1 2,280 

247,893 17,907 229,986 

H-3 

2009 
Actual 

S 795,089 
1,091,906 

211,691 

2,098,686 

1,340,965 

115,558,173 

266,785 
184,530 
451 ,315 

473,408 
355,833 
829,241 

951 ,942 
105,281 

1,057,223 

815,900 
216,090 

1,031 ,990 

662,577 
187,181 

5,870 
126,834 

(172 ,124) 
810,338 

816,340 
1,326,988 

244,064 
(5,702) 

2,381 ,690 

201,147 
22,707 

223,854 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
Budget and Actual· General Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 
With Comparative Actual Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Variance 
Positive 2010 

Budget (Negative) Actual 
Expenditures (continued) 

Current (continued) 
Administration (continued) 

Finance 
Salaries and employee benefits S 1,193,15 1 $ 7,118 S 1,186,033 
Other operaling expenditures 1,311 ,269 134,810 1,176,459 
Capital outlay 43,305 7,685 35,620 

2,547,725 149,613 2,398,112 

General government 
Salaries and employee benefits 74,103 8,163 65,940 
Other operating expenditures 8,874,437 672,682 8,201,755 
Capital outlay 100,172 100,172 
Inventory 1,300,131 130,816 1,169,315 
Payments to agencies 376,500 376,500 
Cost redistribution (1,361,000) (109,424) (1,251,576) 

9,364,343 802,409 8,561,934 

Public buildings 
Salaries and employee benefits 789,045 3,732 785,313 
Other operating expenditures 881,354 23,195 858,159 
Capital oullay 

1,670,399 26,927 1,643,472 

Project management 
Salaries and employee benefits 173,830 7,311 166,519 
Other operating expenditures 7,827 4,142 

181 ,657 170,661 

Total Adminlstratlon 21,629,546 1,792,006 19,837,540 

Public Safety 
Police 

Salaries and employee benefits 33,890,531 910,538 32,979,993 
Other operating expenditures 5,213,531 515,554 4,697,977 
Capital ouliay 1,902,233 1,104,873 797,360 
Payments to agencies 3,000 

2,530,965 38,478,330 

Fire 
Salaries and employee benefits 18,090,765 5,406 18,085,359 
Other operating expenditures 2,667,871 180,896 2,486,975 
Capital outlay 1,129,918 94,451 1,035,467 
Cost redistribution (75,000) 

280,753 21,532,801 

Inspections 
Salaries and employee benefits 2,225,942 68,328 2,157,614 
Other operating expenditures 473,051 134,993 338,058 
Capital ouliay 72,088 30,001 42 ,087 

2,771,081 233,322 2,537,759 

Total public safety 65,593,930 3,045,040 62,548,890 

H-4 

2009 
Actual 

$ 1,180,079 
1,177,891 

86,224 
2,444 ,194 

108,047 
6,236,559 

1,419,461 
339,000 

(1,513,388) 
6,589,679 

800,460 
959,984 

22,105 
1,782,549 

186,996 
6,088 

193,084 

17,795,157 

32,133,909 
4 ,521,065 
1,485,948 

17,550,515 
2,241 ,638 
1,282,133 

(51 ,178) 
21 ,023,108 

2,254,614 
463,555 

43 ,663 
2,761 ,832 

61,928,862 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
Budget and Actual· General Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 
With Comparative Actual Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Variance 
Positive 2010 

Budget (Negative} Actual 
Expenditures (continued) 

Current (continued) 
Environmental protection 

Environmental services 
Salaries and employee benefits S 3,931 ,577 S 46,762 S 3,884,815 
Other operating expenditures 2,125,198 187,459 1,937,739 
Capital outlay 814,108 355,997 458,111 

6,870,883 590,218 6,280,665 

Cemeteries 
Salaries and employee benefits 98,611 2,647 95,964 
Other operating expenditures 29,473 7,205 22,268 

128,084 9,852 118,232 

Urban forestry 
Salaries and employee benefits 133,025 445 132,580 
Other operating expendilures 14,647 1,862 12,785 

147,672 2,307 145,365 

Street sweeping 
Salaries and employee benefits 377,634 6,123 371,511 
Other operating expenditures 259,838 15,373 244,465 
Capital outlay 178,644 178,644 

816,116 21,496 794,620 

Total environmental protection 7,962,755 623,873 7,338,882 

Transportation 
Streets 

Salaries and employee benefits 2,697,429 61,366 2,636,063 
Other operating expenditures 3,112,081 235,635 2,876,446 
Capital outlay 248,190 248,190 
Cost redistribution 756 (756) 

6,057,700 297,757 5,759,943 

Engineering 
Salaries and employee benefits 1,281,730 66,544 1,215,186 
Other o·peraling expenditures 235,936 122,473 113,463 
Capital outlay 5,400 3,279 2,121 

1,523,066 192,296 1,330,770 

Parking 
Other operating expenditures 338,620 52,904 285,716 

Total transportation 7,919,386 542,957 7,376,429 

Economic and physical development 
Central business district 

Other operating expenditures 58,400 293 58,107 
Capital outlay 19,560 19,560 
Cost redistribution 25,000 25,000 

102,960 19,853 83,107 

H-5 

2009 
Actual 

$ 4,081,688 
1,946,025 
1,024,311 
7,052,024 

100,551 
40,260 

140,811 

120,792 
10,994 

131 ,786 

347,284 
209,151 
356,241 
912,676 

8,237,297 

2,642,744 
2,271,888 

488,424 

5,403,056 

1,387,273 
105,413 

41 ,382 
1,534,068 

206,508 

7,143,632 

100,927 

100,927 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
Budget and Actual- General Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 
With Comparative Actual Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Variance 
Positive 2010 

Budget (Negative) Actual 
Expenditures (continued) 

Current (continued) 
Economic and physical development (continued) 

Community development 
Salaries and employee benefits $ 137,916 S 253 S 137,663 
Other operating expenditures 739,995 277,021 462,974 
Cost redistribution (25,000) (25,000) 

852,911 277,274 575,637 

Planning and development 
Salaries and employee benefits 500,005 25,070 474,935 
Other operating expenditures 356,034 181,665 174,369 
Capital oullay 6,000 6,000 
Payments to agencies 9,132 821 8,311 

871,171 213,556 657,615 

Total economic and physical development 1,827,042 510,683 1,316,359 

Recreation and community facilities 
Parks and recreatfon 

Salaries and employee benefits 7,035,176 117,788 6,917,388 
Other operating expenditures 4,594,451 795,942 3,798,509 
Capital outlay 578,997 353,616 225,381 

12 ,208,624 1,267,346 10,941 ,278 

Total recreation and community facilities 12,208,624 1,267,346 10,941,278 

Oebt service 
Principal 5,976,263 160,516 5,815,747 
Interest 994,219 693 993,526 
Bond issuance costs 131,014 131,014 

Total debt service 7,101,496 161,209 6,940,287 

Total expenditures 124,242,779 7,943,114 116,299,665 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (4,794 ,144) 9,049,397 4,255,253 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Sale of capital assets 225,000 (21 ,084) 203,916 
Appropriated fund balance 9,66B,300 (9,668,300) 
Transfers in 9,1 72,772 (10 ,871) 9,161,901 
Transfers (oul) (15,180,866) 248,692 (14,932,174) 
Proceeds from loans 750,000 750,000 
Proceeds from capital leases 1,071,729 1,071,729 
Refunding bonds issued 7,896,115 7,896,115 
Premium on refunding bonds 863,131 863,131 
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent (8,600,308) (8,600,308) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 4,794,144 (8 ,379,834) (3,585,690) 

Revenues and other financing sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditures S $ 669,563 669,563 

Fund balance 

Beginning of year - July 1 45,919,015 

End of year - June 30 
H~6 S 46,588,578 

2009 
Actual 

S 111,912 
433,763 

545,675 

492,607 
262,073 

6,067 
760,747 

1,407,349 

7,229,154 
3,777,786 

231 ,246 
11,238,186 

11,238,186 

6,693,028 
1,406,077 

8,099,105 

115,849,588 

(291 ,415) 

240,465 

8,516,480 
(15,555,256) 

(6,798,311) 

(7,089,726) 

53,008,741 

S 45,919,015 



The Recreational and Cultural Fund is a major capital project 
fund used to account for resources used for the acquistion and 
construction of facilities such as parks, recreation centers and 
museums. 

Resources are provided primarily through intergovernmental 
revenues, facility financing proceeds and transfers from other 
funds . 

The FUnd is accounted for on the modified accrual basis of 
accounting . 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Comparative Balance Sheets 
Recreational and Cultural Fund 

June 30, 2010 and 2009 

ASSETS 2010 2009 

Cash and investments $ 1,354,589 $ 1,439,809 
Accounts receivable 29,925 30,437 
Restricted cash and investments 12,050,1 10 13,712,898 

Total assets $ 13,434,624 $ 15,183,144 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 383,951 $ 101,779 
Deferred revenues 11 ,714,339 13,665,507 

Total liabilities 12,098,290 13,767,286 

Fund balances 
Fund balances: 

Reserved 
By State statute 29,925 30,437 
For encumbrances 603,544 1,297,621 

Unreserved 
Designated 

For subsequent year's expenditures 702,865 87,800 
Total fund balances 1,336,334 1,415,858 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 13,434,624 $ 15,183,144 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actual - Recreational and Cultural Fund 

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Project Prior Closed Current 
Authorization Years Projects Year Total 

"Revenues 
Restricted intergovernmental 

Federal grants and contributions $ 275,000 $ $ $ $ 
State grants and contributions 3,156,703 4,510,556 

Total restricted intergovernmental 3,156,703 4,510,556 

Miscellaneous 
Other 108,313 1,845 110,158 
Donations 300,505 300,505 250 300,755 

Total miscellaneous 300,505 408,818 2,095 410,913 

Interest earned on investments 33,036 328,465 169,370 497,835 

Total revenues 19,908,436 3,893,986 622,315 2,147,633 5,419,304 

Expenditures 
Current 

Recreational and community facilities 
Cape Fear River Park 280,963 280,963 
Disabled accessibility minibus 65,000 
F reedem Park 482,175 471,626 1,519 473,145 
Amtrak Station 691,460 691,460 
Bonnie Doone Park 554,895 554,163 521 554,684 
EE Miller Recreation Center 2,295,960 2,295,960 2,295,960 
NC State Veterans Park 2,300,000 2,121,648 110,204 2,231 ,852 
Western Area Neighborhood Park 800,000 
NC State Veterans Park #2 14,700,000 452,526 2,026,060 2,478,586 
Playground equipment and improvements 303,000 113,835 144,993 258,828 
Cape Fear River Trail Phase 2 2,614,345 18,450 37,570 56,020 

Total expenditures 24,115,375 7,000,631 972,423 2,320,867 8,349,075 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (4,206,939) (3,106,645) (350,108) (173,234) (2,929,771) 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 2,180,192 2,398,147 419,146 258,001 2,237,002 
Transfers out (95,253) (69,038) (164,291 ) (95,253) 
Capital leases, bonds, and other debt 2,122,000 2,124,356 2,124,356 

Total other financing sources (uses) 4,206,939 4,522,503 350,108 93,710 4,266,105 

Revenues and other financing sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditures $ $ 1,415,858 $ (79,524) $ 1,336,334 

Fund balance 

Beginning of year - July 1 1,415,858 

End of year - June 30 $ 1,336,334 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Assets 
Cash and investments 
Accounts receivable 
Restricted asset - cash and investments 

Total assets 

Liabilities and fund balances 
Liabilities: 

Combining Balance Sheet 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Ju ne 30, 2010 

Special 
Revenue 

Funds 

$ 7,439,169 $ 
8,706,773 

962,217 
$ 17,108,159 $ 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 653,454 $ 
Unearned deposits 48,240 
Deferred revenues 7,801 ,394 

Total liabilities 8,503,088 

Fund balances: 
Reserved 

By State statute 1,935,379 
For encumbrances 2,351,412 
For streets - Powell Bill 
For grant compliance 792,028 
For bond projects 

Unreserved 
Designated 

For subsequent year's expenditures 1,025,386 
For special purpose 2,420,000 

Undesignated 80,866 
Total fund balances 8,605,071 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 17,108,159 $ 
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Capital 
Project 
Funds 

11 ,650,250 
1,051 ,881 
3,979,979 

16,682,110 

1,123,944 

419,363 
1,543,307 

2,492,267 
7,512 ,057 
2,425,237 

8,516 
190,158 

3,765,339 

(1 ,254,771) 
15,138,803 

16,682,110 

Total Nonmajor 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 19,089,419 
9,758,654 
4,942,196 

$ 33,790,269 

$ 1,777,398 
48,240 

8,220,757 
10,046,395 

4,427,646 
9,863,469 
2,425,237 

800,544 
190,158 

4,790,725 
2,420,000 

p ,173,905) 
23,743,874 

$ 33,790,269 



CITY OF FAVETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Vear Ended June 30, 2010 

Special Capital Total Nonmajor 
Revenue Project Governmental 

Funds Funds Funds 
Revenues 

Other taxes and fees $ 6,173,198 $ $ 6,173,198 
Restricted intergovernmental 4,453,550 804 ,547 5,258,097 
Miscellaneous 668,435 144,485 812,920 
Interest earned on investments 102,257 11,004 113,261 

Total revenues 11,397,440 960,036 12,357,476 

Expenditures 
Current 

Administration 245,384 245,384 
Public safety 2,655,283 4,925,759 7,581 ,042 
Environmental protection 3,691 ,224 903,265 4,594,489 
Transportation 3,331,491 3,331,491 
Economic and phYSical development 3,322 ,606 754,170 4,076,776 
Recreation and community facilities 123,866 98,289 222,155 

Debt service : 
PrinCipal 3,350 ,000 89,569 3,439,569 
Interest 535,Q63 535,063 

Total expenditures 13,678,042 10,347,927 24,025,969 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures (2 ,280,602) (9,387,891) (11 ,668,493) 

Other financing sources (uses) 

Sale of capital assets 6,156 6,156 
Proceeds from capital leases 5,479,080 5,479,080 
Proceeds from loans 500,598 500,598 
Transfers in 3,977 ,272 9,926,507 13,903,779 
Transfers out (20,713) (2,142,115) (2 ,162,888) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 3,962 ,655 13,764,070 17,726,725 

Net change in fund balances 1,682 ,053 4,376,179 6,058,232 

Fund balance - beginning 6,923 ,018 10,762,624 17,685,642 

Fund balance- ending $ 8,605,071 $ 15,138,803 $ 23,743,874 
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Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the 
proceeds of specific revenue sources or to finance specific 
activities as required by law or administrative regulation. 

The following comprise the City's Special Revenue Funds: 
• Emergency Telephone System Fund 
• Federal and State Financial Assistance Fund 
• Stormwater Management Fund 
• City of Fayetteville Finance Corporation Fund 

All Special Revenue Funds are accounted for on the 
modified accrual basis of accounting. 



Assets 
Cash and investments S 
Accounts receivable 
Interfund receivable 
Restricted asset - cash and investments 

Total assets S 

liabilities and fund balances 
Uabililies: 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses S 
Interfund payables 
Unearned deposits 
Deferred revenues 

Totalliabililies 

Fund balances: 
Reserved 

By State statute 
For encumbrances 
For grant compliance 

Unreserved 
Designated 

For subsequent year's expenditures 
For special purpose 

Undesignated 
Total fund balances 

Total liabilities and fund balances S 

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining Balance Sheet 
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 

June 30, 2010 

Federal 
Emergency and State 
Telephone Financial Storm Water 

System Assistance Management 
Fund Fund Fund 

679,399 $ S 6,759,770 
89,971 8,528,860 87,942 

864,618 
962,217 

769,370 S 9,491 ,077 S 7,712,330 

95,101 S 202,648 S 355,705 
864,618 

48,240 
7,740,337 61 ,057 

95,101 8,807,603 465,002 

89,971 953,905 891,503 
148,870 962,743 1,239,799 

792,028 

1,025,386 
2,420,000 

435,428 (2,025,202) 1,670,640 
674,269 683,474 7,247,328 

769,370 S 9,491 ,077 S 7,712,330 
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Fayetteville 
Finance Total Nonmajor 

Corp Special Revenue 
Fund Funds 

S S 7,439,169 
8,706,773 

864,618 
962,217 

S S 17,972,777 

S S 653,454 
864,618 

48,240 
7,801 ,394 
9,367,706 

1,935,379 
2,351,412 

792,028 

1,025,386 
2,420,000 

80,866 
8,605,071 

S S 17,972,777 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Emergency 
Federal 

Storm Fayetteville 
and State 

Telephone 
Financial 

Water Finance 
System 

Assistance 
Management Corp 

Fund 
Fund 

Fund Fund 

Revenues 
Other taxes and fees $ 1,060,306 $ $ 5,112,892 $ 
Restricted intergovernmental 4,433,550 20,000 
Miscellaneous 663,814 4,621 
Interest earned on investments 10,186 11,406 80,Q30 635 

. Total revenues 1,070,492 5,108,770 5,217,543 635 

Expenditures 
Current: 

Public safety 950,714 1,704,569 
Environmental protection 92,357 3,598,867 
Economic and physical development 3,316,236 6,370 
Recreation and community facilities 123,866 

Debt Service: 
Principal 3,350,000 
Interest 1,100 533,963 

Total expenditures 950,714 5,238,128 3,598,867 3,890,333 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 119,778 (129,358) 1,618,676 (3,889,698) 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Sale of capital assets 6,156 
Transfers in 5,999 295,431 140,500 3,535,342 
Transfers out (13,500) (7,273) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 5,999 281 ,931 139,383 3,535,342 

Net change in fund balances 125,777 152,573 1,758,059 (354,356) 

Fund balance - beginning 548,492 530,901 5,489,269 354,356 

Fund balance - ending $ 674,269 $ 683,474 $ 7,247,328 $ 
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Total Nonmajor 
Special 

Revenue 
Funds 

$ 6,173,198 
4,453,550 

668,435 
102,257 

11,397,440 

2,655,283 
3,691 ,224 
3,322,606 

123,866 

3,350,000 
535,063 

13,678,042 

(2,280,602) 

6,156 
3,977,272 

(20,773) 
3,962,655 

1,682,053 

6,923,018 

$ 8,605,071 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
Emergency Telephone System Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 
(With Comparative Actual Amounts For Year Ended June 30, 2009) 

Variance 
Positive 2010 2009 

Budget (Negative) Actual Actual 

Revenues 
Other taxes $ 1,064,600 $ (4,294) $ 1,060,306 $ 1,138,897 

Interest earned on investments 10,000 186 10,186 10,925 

Miscellaneous 15 

Total revenues 1,074,600 (4,108) 1,070,492 1,149,837 

Expend itures 
Current 

Public safety 
Salaries and employee benefits 54,239 227 54,012 52,852 
Other operating expenditures 766,693 159,821 606,872 492,284 
Capital outlay 527,350 237,520 289,830 296,544 

Total public safety 1,348,282 397,568 950,714 841,680 

Debt service 
Principal 70,248 
Interest 1,028 

Total debt service 71,275 

Total expenditures 1,348,282 397,568 950,714 912,955 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (273,682) 393,460 119,778 236,882 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Appropriated fund balance 267,683 (267,683) 
Transfers in 5,999 5,999 

Total other financing sources (uses) 273,682 (267,683) 5,999 

Revenues and other financing sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditures $ $ 125,777 125,777 236,882 

Fund balance 
Beginning of year - July 1 548,492 311 ,610 

End of year - June 30 $ 674 ,269 $ 548,492 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actual - Federal and State Financial Assistance Fund 

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Project Prior Closed Current 
Authorization Years Projects Year Total 

Revenues 
Restricted intergovernmental 

Federal grants $ 18,802,826 S 6,576,718 $ 114,141 $ 3,924,007 $ 10,386,584 
State grants 1,888,950 1,529,940 354,211 508,179 1,683,908 
County 12,152 35,012 34,247 1,364 2,129 

Total restricted intergovernmental 20,703,928 8 ,141,670 502,599 4,433,550 12 ,072,621 

Miscellaneous 2,729,879 2,369,965 56,606 663,814 2,977,173 

Interest earned on investments 49,183 72,427 11,406 83,833 

Total revenues 23,482,990 10,584,062 559,205 5,108,770 15,133,627 

Expenditures 
Current 

Public sa fety 7,215,477 2,433,937 581,352 1,704,569 3,557,154 
Environmental protection 1,504,958 92,357 92,357 
Economic and physical development 14,941,133 8,019,684 3,316,236 11,335,920 
Recreation and community facilities 423,106 12,470 123,866 136,336 

Total current 24,084,674 10,466,091 581 ,352 5,237,028 15,121,767 

Debt service 120,699 75,311 1,100 76,411 
Total expenditures 24,205,373 10,541,402 581 ,352 5,238,128 15,198,178 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures (722,383) 42,660 (22 ,147) (129,358) (64,551) 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Sale of capital assels · 89,188 89,187 89,187 
Transfers in 646,695 399,054 22,147 295,431 672,338 
Transfers oul (13 ,500) (13 ,500) (13,500) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 722,383 488,241 22,147 281 ,931 748,025 

Revenues and other financing 
sources (uses) over (under) 
expenditures $ $ 530,901 $ 152,573 S 683,474 

Fund balance 
Beginning of year ~ July 1 530,901 

End of year ~ June 30 $ 683,474 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Expenditures by Project 
Budget and Actual - Federal and State Financial Assistance Fund 

From Inception-And For Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Project Prior Closed Current 
Authorization Years Projects Year Total 

Expenditures by project: 

Public safety 
Federal and State Forefeiture S 1,815,010 $ 1,180,995 $ $ 136,297 $ 1,317,292 
PSN Anti-Gang; Operation Ceasefire 120,930 149,929 56,627 14,337 107,639 
PSN Media Blitz 23,000 19,889 19,889 
Jepe Gang Violence Prevention 1,023 1,023 
Gangs across the Carolinas 93,172 92,721 92,721 93,155 93,155 
Juvenile Restitution 133,259 306,720 306,720 74,582 74,582 
Gang Prevention 10,120 10,120 
Justice Assistance Grant 452,191 369,617 114,141 135,089 390,565 
COPS Technology Grant 100,000 99,591 99,591 
Badges for BasebaU2010 26,823 26,823 26,823 
FY07 Hazma! Equipment 251,571 110,155 141,412 251 ,567 
FYOB Hazmal Equipment 205,714 40,149 40,149 
FV09 Hazma! Equipment 135,714 1,715 1,715 
FY06 Hazma! Equipment 192,857 192,768 38 192,806 
FY08 FEMA Firefighter Grant 245,210 245,210 245,210 
FY08 FEMA Firefighter Fire Prevention Grant 38,000 37,995 37,995 
FY08 FEMA Firefighter Operations and Safety Grant 144,810 
COPS Hiring Recovery Program (ARRA) 2,528,240 201 ,354 201,354 
Justice Assistance Grant (ARRA) 708,976 456,822 456,822 

Total public safety 7,215,477 2,433,937 581 ,352 1,704,569 3,557,154 

Environmental protection 
Energy Efficiency Block Grant (ARRA) 1,478,500 67,500 67,500 
NC DENR Waste Reduction 26,458 24,857 24,857 

Total environmental protection 1,504,958 92,357 92,357 

Economic and physical development 
Community Development Block Grant 7,923,583 4,861,665 1,888,254 6,749,919 
Military Business Park 666,750 152,337 152,337 
NC Rural Economic Development 47,335 47,320 47,320 
Community Garden 28,000 20,088 3,443 23,531 
HOME 5,300,233 3,137,931 1,064,975 4,202,906 
CDBG-R (ARRA) 385,584 63,713 63,713 
Homeless Prevention (ARRA) 589,648 96,194 96,194 

Total economic and 
physical development 14,941 ,133 8,019,684 3,316,236 11 ,335,920 

Recreation and community facilities 
Wayfinding signage 400,586 12,470 114,446 126,916 
Cultural arts program 22,520 9,420 9,420 

Total recreation and community facilities 423,106 12,470 123,866 136,336 

Total expenditures by project S 24,084,674 $ 10,466,091 $ 581 ,352 S 5,237,028 S 15,121,767 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
Storm Water Management Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 
(With Comparative Actual Amounts For Year Ended June 30, 2009) 

Variance 
Positive 2010 2009 

Budget (Negative) Actual Actual 

Revenues 
Other fees 

Storm water fee $ 5,120,887 $ (22,658) $ 5,098,229 $ 5,688,647 
Penallies 18,829 (4,166) 14,663 23,946 

Total other fees 5,139,716 (26,824) 5,112,892 5,712,593 

Restricted intergovernmental 
Slate 20,000 20,000 

20,000 20,000 

Miscellaneous 4,621 4,621 

Interest earned on investments 83,000 (2,970) 80,030 140,532 

Total revenues 5,222,716 (5,173) 5,217,543 5,853,125 

Expenditures 
Current 

Environmental protection 
Salaries and employee benefits 1,526,516 103,584 1,422,932 1,598,606 
Other operating expenditures 3,697,273 2,497,267 1,200,006 1,919,079 
Capilal outlay 2,604,708 1,703,779 900,929 1,390,564 
Cost redistribution 75,000 75,000 51,178 

Total environmental protection 7,903,497 4,304 ,630 3,598,867 4,959,427 

Debt service 23,162 
Total expenditures 7,903,497 4,304,630 3,598,867 4,982,589 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (2,680,781) 4,299,457 1,618,676 870,536 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Sale of capital assels 6,156 6,156 500 
Transfers out (191 ,920) 184,647 (7,273) 
Transfers in 30,178 110,322 140,500 
Appropriated fund balance 2,842,523 (2,842,523) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 2,680,781 (2,541 ,398) 139,383 500 

Revenues and other financing sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditures $ $ 1,758,059 1,758,059 871 ,036 

Fund balance 
Beginning of year - July 1 5,489,269 4,618 ,233 

End of year - June 30 $ 7,247,328 $ 5,489,269 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
City of Fayetteville Finance Corporation Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 
(With Comparative Actual Amounts For Year Ended June 30, 2009) 

Variance 
Positive 2010 

Budget (Negative) Actual 

Revenues 
Interest earned on investments $ 471 $ 164 $ 635 

Expenditures 
Current 

Economic and physical development 
Other operating expenditures 23,145 16,775 6,370 

Debt service 
Principal 3,350,000 3,350,000 
Interest 536,250 2,287 533,963 

Total debt service 3,886,250 2,287 3,883,963 

Total expenditures 3,909,395 19,062 3,890,333 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (3,908,924) 19,226 (3,889,698) 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 3,554,569 (19,227) 3,535,342 
Apprpriated fund balance 354,355 (354,355) 

Total financing sources (uses) 3,908,924 (373,582) 3,535,342 

Revenues and other financing sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditures $ $ (354,356) (354,356) 

Fund balance 
Beginning of year - July 1 354,356 

End of year - June 30 $ 

J -7 

2009 
Actual 

$ 3,510 

6,604 

1,555,000 
548,368 

2,103,368 

2,109,972 

(2,106,462) 

2,460,818 

2,460,818 

354,356 

$ 354,356 





Capital Project Funds account for all resources used for the 
acquisition and construction of major capital facilities other than 
those financed by the Recreational and Cultural Fund and the 
Proprietary Funds. 

The following comprise the City's Nonmajor Capital 
Project Funds: 

• General Government Fund 
• Public Safety Fund 
• Transportation Fund 
• Water, Sewer and Storm Water Fund 
• Bond Improvement Fund 
• Economic and Physical Development Fund 
• Linear Park Fund 

All Capital Project Funds are accounted for on the 
modified accrual basis of accounting. 



General 
Government 

Fund 

Assets 
Cash and investments $ 728.373 
Accounts receivable 807 
Interfund receivable 
Restricted asset - cash and investments 

Total assets $ 729.180 

Liabilities and fund balances 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 1,710 
Interfund payables 
Deferred revenues 

Total liabilities 1,710 

Fund balances: 
Reserved 

By state statute 807 
For encumbrances 330.622 
For streets - Powe!l bill 
For grant compliance 
For bond projects 

Unreserved 
Designated 

For subsequent year's expenditures 396,041 
Undesignated 

Total fund balances 727,470 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 729.180 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Public 
Safety 
Fund 

842 

1,339,874 
1.340.716 

19.103 
567.092 
394.592 
980.787 

842 
686.793 

8,516 

(336 .222) 
359.929 

1.340.716 

Combing Balance Sheet 
Nonmajor Capital Project Funds 

June 30, 2010 

Water, Sewer 
Transportation 

and StormWater 
Fund 

Fund 

$ 4,412.452 S 
123.167 901.998 

1,423.896 
2.425,237 

S 8.384.752 S 901.998 

$ 909.906 $ 45.194 
856.804 

61 
909.967 901,998 

1.547.002 901.998 
2.312.660 
2,425,237 

1.189,886 
(901.998) 

7.474,785 

$ 8.384.752 S 901.998 
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Bond 
Economic and 

Linear Total Nonmajor 
Improvement 

Physical 
Park Capital Project 

Fund 
Development 

Fund Funds 
Fund 

$ S 6.291.071 S 218,354 S 11.650.250 
3.321 18.244 3.502 1.051.881 

16.551 1.440,447 
190.158 24.710 3.979.979 

$ 193,479 $ 6.325.866 $ 246.566 $ 18.122.557 

$ $ 148,031 $ $ 1,123,944 
16.551 1,440,447 

24,710 419.363 
16,551 148,031 24,710 2,983,754 

3.321 34.795 3.502 2,492.267 
4. 166.832 15.150 7,512,057 

2.425,237 
8,516 

190,158 190,158 

1,976.208 203.204 3.765,339 
(16.551) (1.254.771) 
176.928 6.177.835 221.856 15.138.803 

S 193,479 $ 6.325.866 $ 246.566 $ 18.122.557 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
Nonmajor Capital Project Funds 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Water, Economic and 
General Public Sewer and Bond Physical Linear Total Nonmajor 

Government Safety Transportation StonnWater Improvement Development P,ri< Capital Project 
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds 

Revenues 
Restricted intergovernmental S $ 5,408 $ 98,346 S 500 ,597 $ S 215,508 $ (15,312) $ 804,547 
Miscellaneous 5,000 15,435 124,050 144,485 
Interest earned in investments 5,605 1,836 1,665 1,898 11,004 

Total revenues 11,013 105,182 500,597 1,665 230,943 110,636 960,036 

Expenditures 
Administration 245,384 245,384 
Public safety 4,925,759 4,925,759 
Environmental protection 898,145 5,120 903,265 
Transportation 2,864,683 466,808 3,331,491 
Economic and physical development 754,170 754,170 
Recreation and community facil ities 12,074 86,215 98,289 

Debt service: 
Principal 89,569 89,569 

Total expenditures 245,384 4,925,759 2 ,864 ,683 898,145 573.571 754,170 86,215 10,347,927 
Excess (defiCiency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures (245,384) (4,914,746) (2,759,501) (397,548) (571 ,906) (523,227) 24,421 (9,387,891) 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Proceeds from capital leases 5,479,080 5,479,080 
Proceeds from loans 500,598 500,598 
Transfers in 935,268 20,000 6,098,447 7,273 131,000 2,734,440 79 9,926,507 
Transfers out (1 ,979,440) (110,323) {52,352) (2,142,115) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 935,268 3,519,640 6,098,447 397,548 78,648 2,734,440 79 13,764,070 
Net change in fund balances 689,884 (1,395,106) 3,338,946 (493,258) 2,211,213 24,500 4,376,179 

Fund balance - beginning 37,586 1,755,035 4,135,839 670,186 3,966,622 197,356 10,762,624 

Fund balance - ending S 727,470 $ 359,929 $ 7,474,785 S $ 176,928 S 6,177,835 $ 221,856 $ 15,138,803 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actual - General Government Fund 

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Project Prior Closed Current 
Authorization Years Projects Year Tolal 

Revenues 
Restricted Intergovernmental 

Federal grants S 63,500 S S S $ 

Expenditures 
Current 

Administration 
Clean Cities project 385,491 
Computer replacements 320,162 30,861 30,861 
Telephone system upgrade 123,440 
Planning software 51 ,700 
Integrated cashiering system 106,180 68,325 68,325 
Grove Street roof replacement 60,500 
Building projects 150,775 48,055 82,732 130,787 
Parking lot projects 101 ,000 41,793 55,513 97,306 
Demofilion of city building 62,758 62,758 
Council chambers upgrade 158,453 150,499 7,953 158,452 

Total expenditures 1,457,701 303,105 62,758 245,384 485,731 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (1,394,201) (303,105) (62,758) (245,384) (485,731) 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 1,394,201 340,691 62,758 935,268 1,213,201 

Total other financing sources (uses) 1,394,201 340,691 62,758 935,268 1,213,201 

Revenues and other financing sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditures S $ 37,586 S 689,884 S 727,470 

Fund balance 

Beginning of year - July 1 37,586 

End of year - June 30 S 727,470 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actual- Public Safety Fund 

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Project Prior Closed Current 
Authorization Years Projects Year Total 

Revenues 
Restricted intergovernmental 

State grants and contributions S 400,000 $ $ $ 5,408 $ 5,408 

Interest earned on investments 79,859 5,605 85,464 

Total revenues 400,000 79,859 11,013 90,872 

Expenditures 
Current 

Public Safety 
Fire station #15 2,564,410 2,532,054 2,532,054 
Police department server upgrade 208,000 75,118 82,875 157,993 
Fire station #12 125,000 
Fire training tower 500,000 5,408 5,408 
Fire station #19 235,000 21,624 41,683 63,307 
Police department CAD and RMS 3,219,717 945,878 1,625,923 2,571,801 
Police department 800mhz radios 3,600,000 3,169,870 3,169,870 

Total expenditures 10,452,127 3,574,674 4,925,759 8,500,433 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (10,052,1271 (3,494,8151 (4,914,7461 (8,409,5611 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Proceeds from capital leases 9,469,717 2,415,000 5,479,080 7,894,080 
Transfers in 2,962,850 2,834,850 20,000 2,854,850 
Transfers oul (2 ,380,4401 (1,979,4401 (1,979,4401 

Total other financing sources (uses) 10,052,127 5,249,850 3,519,640 8,769,490 

Revenues and other financing sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditures $ S 1,755,035 $ (1,395,106) S 359,929 

Fund balance 

Beginning of year - July 1 1,755,035 

End of year - June 30 $ 359,929 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actual - Transportation Fund 

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Project Prior Closed Current 
Authorization Years Projects Year Total 

Revenues 
Restricted intergovernmental 

State grants S 252,248 S 144,745 S 98,346 
Total restricted intergovernmental 252,248 144,745 98,346 

Miscellaneous 
Owner contributions 98,775 163,607 163,607 
Other 15,204 30,408 5,000 35,408 

Total miscellaneous 11 3,979 194,015 5,000 199,015 

Interest earned on investments 4,413 6,100 1,836 7,936 

Total revenues 749,102 452,363 144,745 105,182 412,800 

Expenditures 
Current 

Transportation 
Traffic control system 1,629,069 1,251,268 268,440 1,519,708 
Sidewalks 1,546,145 88,177 65,357 144,238 167,058 
Downtown rai lroad enhancements 1,892,000 
Transportation improvements 8,507,274 8,069,592 6,218,017 2,452,005 4,303,580 
Gateway beautifications 58,991 58,991 

Total expenditures 13,574,488 9,468,028 6,342,365 2,864,683 5,990,346 

Revenues (over) under expenditures (12,825,3861 (9,0 15,6651 (6 ,197,6201 (2,759,5011 (5,577,5461 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 12,825,386 13,301 ,504 6,347,620 6,098,447 13,052,331 
Transfers out (150,0001 (150,000) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 12,825,386 13,151 ,504 6,197,620 6,098,447 13,052,331 

Revenues and other financing sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditures S S 4,135,839 S 3,338,946 S 7,474,785 

Fund balance 
Beginning of year - July 1 4,135,839 

End of year - June 30 S 7,474,785 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actual - Water, Sewer and Storm Water Fund 

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Project Prior Closed 
Authorization Years Projects 

Revenues 
Restricted Intergovernmental 

Federal grants $ $ $ 
Total restricted i"governmental 

Miscellaneous 
Lumbee River Electric Membership 

Corporation - Service Territory 3,449,709 3,449,709 
Total miscellaneous 3,449,709 3,449,709 

Interest earned on investments 271 ,303 271,303 

Total revenues 3,721 ,012 3,721,012 

Expenditures 
Current 

Environmental Protection 
Swainey Ave Drainage Improvement 597,647 
Skye Drive Drainage Improvement 640,950 

Total expenditures 1,238,597 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (1,238,597) 3,721,012 3,721 ,012 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 191 ,920 
Proceeds from loans 1,157,000 
Transfers out (110,323) (3,721 ,012) (3,721,012) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 1,238,597 (3,721,012) (3,721,012) 

Revenues and other financing sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditures $ $ $ 

Fund balance 

Beginning of year - July 1 

End of year - June 30 
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Current 
Year Total 

500,597 500,597 

395,767 395,767 
502,378 502,378 
898,145 898,145 

(397,548) (397,548) 

7,273 7,273 
500,598 500,598 

(110,323) (110,323) 

397,548 397,548 

$ 

$ 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actual - Bond Improvement Fund 

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Project Prior Closed Current 
Authorization Years Projects Year Total 

Revenues 
Miscellaneous 

Owner contribution S 10,000 $ $ S 10,000 
Total miscellaneous 10,000 10,000 

Interest earned on investments 697,697 1,218,151 323,661 1,665 896,155 

Total revenues 907,697 1,228,151 323,661 1,665 906,155 

Expenditures 
Current 

Economic and physical development 
Bond administration 1,119,703 1,119,699 1,119,699 
Debt service 160,460 121 ,189 39,271 160,460 

1,260,163 1,240,886 39,271 1,280,159 

Transportation 
Streets 9,532,495 9,058,711 466,808 9,525,519 
Sidewalks 796,972 796,971 796,971 

10,329,467 9,855,682 466,808 10,322,490 

Environmental Protection 
Drainage 595,137 590,016 5,120 

595,137 590,016 5,120 

Public Safety 
Debt service 236,422 97,426 97,426 
FSU Fire Station 3,494,187 3,494,183 3,494,183 

3,730,609 3,591 ,609 3,591,609 

Recreational and community facilities 
Debt service 100,592 218,039 167,743 50,298 100,594 
Westover Recreation Center 2,767,918 2,767,916 
Festival Park 4,364,591 4,364,591 
Cape Fear River Park 929,661 885,376 12,074 697,452 

1,030,253 6,235,926 7,300,252 62,372 998,046 

Total expenditures 16,965,629 23,514,121 7,300,252 573,571 16,787,440 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (16,057,732) (22 ,285,970) (6,976,591) (571 ,906) (15,881,285) 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 2,020,546 1,889,546 131 ,000 2,020,546 
Capital leases, bonds, and other debt 14,494,293 21,470,884 6,976,591 14,494,293 
Transfers out (457,107) (404,274) (52 ,352) (456,626) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 16,057,732 22 ,956,156 6,976,591 76,648 16,056,213 

Revenues and other financing sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditures S $ 670,186 S (493,258) S 176,928 

Fund balance 

Beginning of year - July 1 670,166 

End of year - June 30 S 176,928 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actual - linear Park Fund 

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Project Prior Closed Current 
Authorization Years Projects Year Total 

Revenues 
Restricted intergovernmental 

County grants and contributions $ 130,000 $ $ (15,312) $ 105,290 
Total restricted intergovernmental 130,000 (15,312) 105,290 

Miscellaneous 
Other (donations) 1,363,364 1,363,864 124,050 1,487,914 

Total miscellaneous 1,363,364 1,363,864 124,050 1,487,914 

Interest earned on investments 38,687 41,494 1,898 43,392 

Total revenues 1,532,051 1,525,960 110,636 1,636,596 

Expenditures 
Current 

Recreational and community facilities 
Linear Park 1,582,051 1,378,704 86,215 1,464,919 

Total expenditures 1,582,051 1,378,704 86,215 1,464,919 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (50,000) 147,256 24,421 171,677 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 50,000 50,100 79 50,179 

Total other financing sources (uses) 50,000 50,100 79 50,179 

Revenues and other financing sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditures $ $ 197,356 $ 24,500 $ 221,856 

Fund balance 

Beginning of year - July 1 197,356 

End of year - June 30 $ 221,856 
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• Enterprise Funds 
• Internal Service Funds 

The focus of Proprietary Fund measurement is upon 
determination of net income, financial position and cash 
flows . The accounting principles used here are generally 
accepted in the United States of America and are 
applicable to similar businesses in the private sector. 



Enterprise Funds account for operations that are either 
financed or operated in a manner similar to private 
businesses or for operations that the City has decided that 
periodic determination of net income is appropriate for 
capital maintenance, management control, accountability, 
public policy or other purposes. 

The following comprise the City's Enterprise Funds: 
• Electric Fund 
• Water and Wastewater Fund 
• Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 

- Transit Fund 
- Airport Fund 
- Solid Waste Recycling Fund 

, 
All Enterprise Funds are accounted for using the accrual 
basis of accounting . 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining Balance Sheet 

Electric Fund 

June 30, 2010 

Rate 
Electr1c Slabiliution 

Fund Fund Tolal 

Assets 
Current unrestricted assets 

Cash and cash equivalenls 19,813,178 19,813,178 
Investments 32,663,242 32,663,242 
Receivables 25,797,805 25,797,805 
Inlemal balances 119,382 119,382 
Less a!:owance for doubtful accounts (298,438) (298,438) 
Inventories 11,826,219 11,826,219 
Other current assets 164,363 184,363 

Total current unrestricted assets 90,105.751 90,105,751 

Current restrIcted assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 7,159,014 14,753,155 21,912,169 
Investments 7,437,522 10,000,000 17,437,522 
Co~ !ateral p!edged in reu of deposits 306,077 306,077 
Receivab:es 1,000 83,047 64,047 

Total current restricted assets 14,903,613 24,836,202 39,739,815 

Total current assets 105,009,364 24,836,202 129,645,566 

Noncurrenl assets 
Other assets 2,104,853 2,104,853 
Net pension assel 1,440,000 1,440,000 

Capital assets: 
Land 5,265,316 5,265,316 
Constructioo In process 6,954,797 6.954.797 
Electric U!i]ity syslems 175,849,446 175,649,446 
Bu'ldings 26.931.231 26,931,23 1 
Equipment and mac.tf nery 7,525,323 7,525,323 
Computer programs 711 ,617 711 ,617 
Intang:bles 615,846 615,646 
Veh:des 3,167,488 3, 167,488 
Office equipment 93,741 93,741 

Capital assets, net 227,114,605 227,114,605 

Tota l nonturrent assets 230,659,458 230,659,458 

Total assets $ 335,668,822 S 24,838,202 S 360,505,024 

liabilities and net assets 
Currenillabilities to be paid from unrestricted 

current assets 
Current portion of long-term liabilities S 2,950,408 S 2,950,408 
Accounts payab!e and accrued e)(penses 14,337,611 14,337,611 

Tolal turrent liabilities to be paid from 
unrestricted current assets 17,288,019 17,288,019 

Current liabllitles to be paid from 
restrIcted current assets 
Accounts payable and accrued e)(penses 

Total current liabilities to be paid from 5,862,367 5,862,367 
restr1cted current assets 

5,852,367 5,862,367 
Total current liabilities 

23.150,386 23,150,386 

NOOl;urrenlllabliities 
Long..tenn tiabi~ties 17,722,904 17,722,904 
Other liabi'ities 3,023,245 3,023,245 
Net pension OOflga tion 1,440,000 1,440,000 
Unearned deposits \0,985 10,985 

Total noncurrent liabilities 22,197,134 22,197,134 

Total lia b!litles 45,347,520 45,347,520 

Net assets 
Invested in capital assets, net or related debt 207,9\9,958 207,919,958 
Restricted for-

Debt service 51 51 
UnreslJiCted net assets 82,401,293 24,836,202 107,237,495 

Total net assets 290,321,302 24,838,202 315,157,504 
Tota l liabilities and net assets 

$ 335,668,822 24,836,202 $ 360,505,024 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORlH CAROLINA 

Combining.Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets 

Electric Fund 
Year ended June 30, 2010 

Rate 
Electric Stabilization 

Fund Fund Total 

Operating revenues 
Charges for services S 173,192,801 S S 173,192,801 

Total operating revenues 173,192,801 173,1 92,801 

Operating expenses 
Power supply and generation 103,856,516 103,856,516 
Electric operation 11 ,249,470 11 ,249,470 
General and administrative 11 ,510,382 11 ,510,382 
Depreciation 14,736,900 14,736,900 

Total operating expenses 141 ,353,268 141 ,353,268 

Operating income (toss) 31 ,839,533 31,839,533 

Nonoperating revenue (expense) 
Interest earned on investments 1,620,748 202,014 1,822,762 
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets (399,293) (399,293) 
Interest expense (983,829) (983,829) 
Amortization (238,543) (238,543) 

Finance costs (20,693) (20,693) 
Total nonoperating revenue (expense) (21 ,610) 202,014 180,404 

Income (loss) before transfers 
and contributions 31,817,923 202,014 32,019,937 

Transfers in 5,000,000 5,000,000 
Transfers out (5 ,000,000) (5,000,000) 
Transfers in - City of Fayetteville 20,847 20,847 
Transfers out - City of Fayetteville (8,691 ,161) (8,691,161) 
Contributions 1,407,440 1,407,440 

Change in net assets 19,555,049 5,202,014 24,757,063 

Total net assets - beginning 270,766,253 19,634,188 290,400,441 

Total net assets - ending S 290,321,302 S 24,836,202 S 315,157,504 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures · Budget and Actual (Non GAAP) -
Electri c Fund 

Year ended June 30, 2010 
(with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2009) 

2010 
Variance 
Positive 2009 

Budget (Negative) Actual Actual 
Revenues 
Operating revenues 

Electric operations 
Sale of electricity S 162,046,900 S 2,987,500 S 165,034,400 S 161 ,874,930 

City Services 2,999,000 (1,917,546) 1,081 ,454 1,063,681 

Non-utility charges 1,269,700 1,134,524 2,404,224 1,473,612 

Service charges 1,550,000 304,845 1,854,845 1,968,962 

Miscellaneous 2,169 ,600 648,278 2,817,878 3,070,241 

Total operating revenues 170,035,200 3,157,601 173,192,801 169,451,426 

Non-operating revenues 
Ga in (loss) on asset disposal (399,293) (399,293) (337,229) 

Interest earned on investments 1,060,000 560,748 1,620 ,748 2,077,918 

To tal non-operating revenues 1,060,000 161 ,455 1,221 ,455 1,740,689 

Contributi on s 

ContribuUons 3,367,900 1,407 ,440 1,042,848 

To tal contributions 3,367,900 1,407,440 1,042,848 

Transfers in 

Transfer from City of Fayetteville 24 ,200 (3,353) 20,847 31,065 

Transfer from Uptown Revitalization Fund 15,456 

Total transfers in 24,200 (3,353) 20,847 46,521 

Budgeta ry approp riations 

Proceeds from 2009 bonds 19,464,900 (97) 19,464,803 

Appropriated net assets 2,624,100 2,335,099 

Total budgetary appropriatio ns 22,089,000 21,799,902 

To tal revenues S 196,576,300 S 1,066,145 S 197,642,445 S 172,281,484 

Expenditures 

Operating expenditures 

El ectri c o perations 

Power supply and generation S 105 ,402,860 S 1,546,344 S 103,856,516 S 104,981,262 

AdministraUon 340,120 133,212 206,908 250,704 

Apparatus repair shop 364,030 12,010 352,020 319,934 

Electric meIer shop 841 ,580 250 841,330 784,809 

Construction and maintenance 6,638,080 276,665 6,361 ,415 6,507 ,853 

Substation construction 1,259,900 63 1,259,837 1,049,645 

Engineering 2,366,780 138,820 2,227,960 2,217,010 

To tal electri c operations 117,213,350 2,107,364 115,105,986 116,111,21 7 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non GMP) • 
Electric Fund 

Yea r ended June 30, 2010 
(with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2009) 

2010 
Variance 
Positive 

Budget (N egative) Actual 
Expenditures (continued) 

General and admin istra tive 
Executive S 1,057,195 S 311,848 S 745,347 

Internal audit 118,530 2,129 116.401 
Public infonnation 585,095 2,910 582,185 

Financial administra tion 195,375 6,436 168.939 
Administrative - administration 182,265 71 182, 194 
Human resources 587,970 55,736 532,234 
Accounting 498,655 3,231 495,424 
Accounts receivable 749,335 35,313 714,022 

Payroll 71 ,575 2,909 68,666 

Customer selVice administration 2,200, l OS 454,985 1,745,120 

Utility field services 1,274,020 56,S10 1.217,'10 
Business planning 282,680 1,632 28 1,048 

Business developmenl 368,940 40,973 327,967 

Risk management 589,935 4,472 585,463 

Capital projects 219,355 3,120 216,235 

Rates 272,950 58 272,892 

Budget 115,735 3,495 112,240 

Purchasing 222, 120 3,967 218,153 

Warehouse 482,090 90 482,000 

Business planning, development & logistics 256,905 1,861 255,044 

Fleet maintenance 1,267,600 392,151 875,449 

Facilities maintenance 208,095 4,867 203,228 

Telecommunications systems 508, 190 8,497 499,693 

Information systems 1,172,440 970 1,171,470 

Pension expense 12,500 8, 183 4,317 

Medical insurance 2,785,600 (353,27S) 3, 138,879 

Other 3,4 t4,250 1,350,653 2,063,597 

Allocated rent and fiber clearing (2, 125,000) (9,569) (2,1 15,431) 

Overhead dearing (2,396,500) 1,553,281 (3,949,781 ) 

Total general and administrative 15,178,005 3,947,900 11 ,230,105 

Total operating expenditures 132,391,355 6,055,264 126,336,091 

Non-operating expenditures 
Interest expense 984,000 171 983,829 

Finance costs 31,000 10,307 20,693 
Total non-ope rating expenditures 1,015,000 10,478 1,004,522 
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2009 
Actual 

S 754,324 

106,687 
5 13,892 
162,361 

120,643 
422,862 

450,260 

707,929 
59,203 

1,957,525 
1,230,309 

272,066 
354,220 
480,934 
209,276 
144,858 
107,183 
202,366 
435,079 
182,674 
749,534 
32t,352 
55t,354 

1,084,277 
12, 193 

3,090,448 
1,859,008 

(2,O88 ,219) 
(3,0 18,35 1) 
11,436,247 

127,547,464 

1,391,834 
82,192 

1,474,026 



Transfers oul 
Transfers 10 City of Fayettevilfe 

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures · Budget and Actual (Non GAAP) -
Electric Fund 

Year ended June 30, 2010 
(with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2009) 

2010 
Variance 
Posillve 

Budget (Negative) 

S 8,691,300 139 S 

Actual 

8,691,161 

Transfers to Electric Ra te Stabilization Fund 5,000,000 5,000,000 

Tolal transfers out 13,691 ,300 139 13,691,161 

Budgetary appropriations 
Inventory increase (decrease) 249,420 (249,420) 

Vehicle and equ'pmenl (35,687) 35,687 

Debt principal payments 1,807,250 37 1,807,213 

NCDOT Project payments (41 ,976) 41,976 

Capital outlay 24,025,200 6,631,405 17,393,795 

Bond Refund Payments 16,622,800 30 18,622,770 

Finance costs 1,562,200 1,682 1,560,5 18 

Appropriated net assets 3,461 ,195 2,097,395 1,363,800 

Total budgetary appropriations 49,476,6<15 8,902,306 40,576,339 

TolalexpendJiures S 196,576,300 S 14,968, 187 16 1,606, 11 3 

Reconciliation or change In net as sets 

Total revenues S 1,066, 145 197,642,445 

Tolal expenditures 14,968, 187 16 1,606,113 

Subtotal S 16,034,332 16,034,332 

Reconc il ing Items: 
Budgetary appropriations 16,776,437 

Deve:oper 
DepreciaUon (1 4,736,900) 

Amortization (238,543) 

OPES expense (280,277) 

Total reconciling items 3,520,717 

Change In net assets S 19,555,049 

L-5 

2009 

AClual 

S 7,991 ,049 
3,000,000 

10,991,049 

(248,067) 

268,466 
7,886,635 

68,373 
20,543,419 

28,518,626 

168,531,365 

S 172,261,484 

168,531,365 

3,750,119 

28,5 16,626 
1,295 

(14,340,796) 

(644,010) 
(371 ,189) 

13,164,126 

S 16,914,245 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Electric Rate Stabilization Fund 
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Total 
Project Prior CUrrent 

Authorization Years Year Total 

Revenues 
Interest earned on investments S 4,169,725 $ 2,464,463 $ 202,014 S 2,666,477 
Rate stabilization transfer 2,690,800 4,169 ,725 4,169,725 

Total revenues 6,860,525 6,634 ,188 202,014 6,836,202 

Expenditures 
Total expenditures 

Revenues over expenditures 6,860,525 6,634,188 202,014 6,836,202 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfer from Electric Fund 23 ,000 ,000 18,000,000 5,000,000 23 ,000,000 
Transfer to Electric Fund (S,OOG ,OOO) (5.000,000) (5 ,000,000) 
Appropriated net assets (24 ,860,525! 

Total other financing sources (uses) {6,860,525! 13,000,000 5,000,000 18,000,000 

Revenues and other financing sources (uses) 
over expenditures S S 19,634,188 5,202 ,014 $ 24 ,836,202 

Change in net assets $ 5,202,014 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining Balance Sheet 
Water and Wastewater Fund 

June 30, 2010 

Water and Annexation FL Bragg 2009B Annexation Annexation 
Wastew3ter Phase V Interim Annexation Revenue Bond Phase V Phase V 

Water and Rate Project 1 Water Service Phase V Capital Areas 6n Areas 8/13 
Wastewater Stabllzatlon Capital Project Project Reserve Project Capital Project Capital Project 

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total 
Assets 

Current unrestricted assets 
Cash and cash equivalents S 13,438,216 S S S $ $ S $ S 13,438,216 
Investments 8,096,486 8,096,486 
Receivables 15,461,835 15,461,835 
Intemal balances 119,490 17,752 (77,509) (38,681) (1 5,319) 5,533 
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts (56,206) (56,206) 
Inventories 1,362,410 1,362,410 
Other current assets 306,402 306,402 

Total current unrestricted assets 38.728,633 17,752 m.509} 138,681} (15,319} 38,614,676 

Current restricted assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 11,429,751 4.203,132 2.876,757 1.669,814 20,925.817 1,962,902 43,068,173 
Investments 7.925,795 1.000,000 8,925,795 
Receivables 10,758 9,254 22,582 25,352 57,032 124,978 
Other restricted current assets 82,439 82,439 

Total current restricted assets 19.448,743 5,212.386 2.899.339 1,669,814 20,951,169 2,019,934 52,201,385 

Total current assets 58.177.376 5.212,386 2.917,091 1.669,814 20,873,660 1,981.053 {15,319) 90,816.061 

Noncurrent assets 
Other assets 13,422,394 13,422,394 
Net pension asset 1,440,000 1,440.000 

Capital Assets: 
Land 9,012,366 9,012,366 
Construction in process 2,298,897 4,318,438 4,530,354 513,847 , 1 ,661 ,536 
Water system 169,361,884 169,361,884 
Sewer system 263,940,465 263,940,465 
Buildings 2,469,069 2,469.069 
Equipment and machinery 2.189.030 2,189,030 
Computer equipment 656,369 656,369 
Intangibles 535,450 535,4SO 
Vehicles 2.723,023 2,723.023 
Office equipment SO,622 SO,622 

Capital assets, net 453.237,175 4,318,438 4,530,354 513,847 462,599,814 

Total noncurrent assets 468,099,569 4,318,438 4,530,354 513,847 477.462 ,208 

Total assets $ 526.276,945 $ 5,212,386 $ 2,917,091 $ $ 1,669.814 $ 25,192,098 S 6,511,407 $ 498,528 S 568,278,269 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining Balance Sheet 
Water and Wastewater Fund 

June 3D, 2010 

Water and Annexation Ft Bragg 2009B Annexation Annexation 
Wastewater Phase V Interim Annexation Revenue Bond Phase V Phase V 

Water and Rate Project 1 Water Service Phase V Capital Areas 6(7 Areas 8/13 
Wastewator Stabllzatlon Capital Project Project Reserve Project Capital Project Capital Project 

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total 

Liabilities and net assets 
Current ponion of long-term liabili ties $ 11,773,103 $ $ $ • $ $ • • 11,773,103 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 8,770,776 8,770,776 

Total current liabilities to be paid from 
unrestricted current assets 20,543,879 20,543,879 

Current llablllties to be paid from 
restricted curront assets 

Aa:ounts payable and accrued expenses 2,359,249 159,093 3,617,782 779,685 101,120 7,016,929 
Total current liabilities to be paId from 
restricted current assets 2,359,249 159,093 3,617,782 779.685 101.120 7,016,929 

Total current liabilities 22,903,128 159,093 3,617,782 779.685 101.120 27,560,808 

Noncurrent liabilities 
long-term liabilities 148,786,201 148,786,201 
Other liabilities 15,997,1 49 15,997,149 
Net pension obligation 1,440,000 1,440,000 
Unearned deposits 2,861,047 2,861 ,047 

Total noncurrent lIabmtles 169,084,397 169,084,397 

Totaillab111tles 191,987,525 159,093 3,617,782 779,685 101,120 196,645,205 

Net assets 
Invested In capital assets, net of related debt 316,985,834 4,318,438 4,530,354 513,847 326,348,473 
Restricted for-

Capital Projects 9,758 9,758 
Debt service 41,207 41,207 

Unrestricted net assets 17,252,621 5,212,386 2,757,998 1,669,814 17,255,878 1,201,368 p16,439l 45,233,626 
Total net assets 334,289,420 5,212,386 2,757,998 1,669,814 21,574,316 5:731,722 397,408 371 ,633,064 

Total liabilities and net assets S 526,276,945 • 5,21 2,386 S 2,917,091 $ $ 1,669,814 • 25,192,098 S 6,511,407 , 498,528 S 568,278,269 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Change. In Fund Net Assets 
Water and Wastewater Fund 

Year endod Juoo 30, 2010 

Water and Annexation Ft. Bragg 20096 AnnexatJon Annexation 
Wastewater Phase V Interim Annexation Revenuo Bond Phase V Ph;lseV 

Water and Rate Project 1 Water Service PhneV Caplt.11 AreasW Areas 11/13 
Wastc:water Stabllxatlon Capital Projc:ct Project Rc:serve ProJc:ct Capital Projc:ct: capital Project 

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total 

Operating revc:nues 
Charges lor sorvlcos 64,355,514 S 64,355,514 
Mlscellt.neous operating Income-water 11,063,969 11,063,969 

Total operating revenues 64,355,514 11 ,063,969 75,41 9,483 

Operating expenses 
Water operations 12,415,704 12,415,704 
Miscellaneous operaUng expanse-water 11,063,969 11 ,063,969 
Wastewater opera~ons 11,390,966 11,390,966 
General and adml nl str3~ve 11 ,847,038 11,847,036 
Oepreci:ltloo 14,771,966 14,771 ,965 

Total operating expensc:s 50,425,672 11,063,969 61,489,641 

Operating Inceme Iloss) 13,929,842 13,929,842 

Nonoperating I"Ovc:nue (c:xpensc:) 
Interest earned on Investments 1,202,119 15,845 8,386 1,529 1,227.879 
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets 40,892 40,692 
Interest exponse (6.618,794) (6,618,794) 
AmoftizaUon (842,713) (842,713) 
Finance costs !111 ,923) (111 ,923) 

Total nonoperating revenue (expense) (6.330,419) 15,845 8,386 1,529 (6,304,659) 

Income (loss) bC:fere transfers 
and contributions 7,599,423 15,845 8,386 1,529 7,625,183 

Transfers in 16,917,772 2,500,000 1,500,000 33,357,450 5,905,085 397,408 60,577,715 
Tr:lnsfers out (43,262,535) (4,869,990) (488,693) (11,783,134) (173,363) (60,577,71 5) 
Transfers in - City of Fayotteville 385,200 656,978 1,042,178 
Transfers out - City of F:Jyetteville (79) (79) 
Capital Conlribu~ons 22835,906 22,835,906 

Chango In not assc:ts 4,475,687 2,515,845 (4,861,604) 1,669,814 2 1,574,316 5,731,722 397,408 31 ,503,188 

Total not assets - boglnnlng 329,613,733 2,696.541 7619,602 340,129,876 

Total nc:t assets - c:ndlng S 334,289,420 5,212.386 S 2,757,998 S 1,669,814 S 21,574,316 S 5,731.722 397,408 S 371 ,633,064 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non GAAP)-
Water and Wastewater Fund 

Year ended June 30, 2010 
(with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2009) 

2010 
Variance 
Positive 2009 

Budget JNegative) Actual Actual 
Revenues 
Operating revenues 
Water operations 

Waler Sales S 29 ,260,800 S (1 ,847 ,101 ) $ 27,413,699 S 24,933,136 
Connection fees 232,500 108,398 340,898 274 ,849 
City Services 128,900 75,096 203,996 150,491 

Total water operations 29,622,200 (1,663,607) 27,958,593 25,358,476 

Wastewater operations 
Sewer charges 33,052,100 533,878 33,585,978 30,097,529 
Connection fees 100,000 151,134 251,134 141 ,878 
City services 66 ,500 8,331 74,831 65,425 

Total wastewater operations 33,218 ,600 693,343 33,911 ,943 30,304,832 

Other operating revenues 
Non-utility charges 1,207,600 709,083 1,916,683 1,221,836 
Service charges 372,000 (25,947) 346,053 356,442 
Miscellaneous 213,300 8,942 222,242 284,012 

Total other operating revenues 1,792,900 692,078 2,484,978 1,862,290 

Total operating revenues 64 ,633,700 (278,186) 64,355,514 57,525,598 

Non-operating revenues 
Gain (loss) on asset disposal 40,892 40,892 172,642 
Interest earned on investments 1,000,000 202,119 1,202,119 2,108,699 

Total non-operating revenues 1,000,000 243,011 1,243,011 2,281,341 

Contributions 
Contributions 6,658, 100 (1,514,490) 5,143,610 4,625 ,448 

Total contributions 6,658,100 (1,514,490) 5,143,610 4,625,448 

Transfers in 
Transfer from City of Fayetteville 385,200 385,200 400,000 
Transfer from Annexation Phase V Reserve Fund 91,300 (15) 91,285 
Transfer from Phase V, Project 1 1,000,000 1,000,000 
Transfer from Annexation Capital Reserve Fund 665,254 
Transfer from Phase IVB 63,187 

Total transfers in 1,476,500 11 51 1,476,485 1,128,441 

Budgetary appropriations 
Department of Transportation financing 138,000 (319,532) (181,532) 38,361 
Cumberland county note proceeds 39,600 39,600 39,600 
Series 2009 bond proceeds 152,264,330 89 152,264,419 
Appropriations of net assets 16,720,010 (880,552) 15,839,458 

Total budgetary appropriations 169,161,940 (1,199,995) 167,961,945 77,961 

Total revenues S 242,930,240 S (2,749,675) S 240 ,180,565 S 65,638,789 

Expenditures 
Operating expenditures 

Water operations 
Administration and engineering S 1,202,450 S 108,998 S 1,093,452 S 1,151,954 
Water meter shop 168,750 4,008 164,742 126,826 
Construction and maintenance 4,561 ,860 104 4,561 ,756 3,629,105 
Contract system maintenance 167,220 230 166,990 93,236 
P. O. Hoffer water treatment plant 3,965 ,312 87,785 3,877,527 3,977,273 
Glenville Lake water treatment plant 1,925,312 133 1,925,179 1,747,698 
Water Resources environmental system protection 161 ,345 5,226 156,119 152,710 
Laboratory 245,470 7,252 238 ,218 236,080 
Environmental 101 ,295 592 100,703 97,272 
Watersheds 144,340 13,322 131 ,018 159,975 

Total water operations 12,643 ,354 227,650 12,415,704 11,372,129 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non GAAP) -
Water and Wastewater Fund 

Year ended June 30, 2010 
(with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2009) 

2010 
Variance 
Positive 

Budget {Negative} Actual 
Expenditures (continued) 

Operating expenditures (continued 
Wastewater operations 
Administration and engineering $ 1,202.450 $ 106,996 $ 1,093,452 
Sewer construction and maintenance 4,615,152 145 4,815,007 
Contract system maintenance 111 ,480 153 111,327 
Cross Creek WoN treatment plant 2,404,672 6,456 2,396,216 
Rockfish Creek INW treatment plant 2,236,362 10 2,236,352 
Residuals management 277,120 35,547 241,573 
Water resource environmental system protection 161 ,345 5,226 156,119 
Laboratory 245,470 7,253 236,217 
Environmental 101,295 592 100,703 

Total wastewater operations 11 ,557,346 166,360 11,390,966 

General and administrative 
Executive 426 ,795 126,039 296,756 
Internal audit 116,260 2,133 116,147 
Public in formation 571,345 3,529 567,616 
Financial administraUon 166,675 5 166,670 
Administrative administration 156,715 10,562 148,133 
Human resources 572,670 144,458 428,412 
Accounting 467,155 5,690 481,465 
Accounts receivable 718,735 4,570 714,165 
Payroll 66,775 5,614 62,961 
Customer service administration 1,569,005 34,923 1,534,082 
Util ity field service 1,010,670 4,067 1,006,603 
Business development 316,440 9,206 309,234 
Business planning 265,300 96 285,204 
Risk management 609,335 1,229 606,106 
Capital projects 216,155 646 217,507 
Rates 105,200 2,040 103,160 
Budget 115,665 3,613 112,072 
Purchasing 221,620 3,629 217,791 
Warehouse 355,590 174,641 180,949 
Business planning, development & logistiCS 244,255 1,969 242,266 
Fleet maintenance 1,49 1,400 77 1,491 ,323 
Facilities maintenance 206,995 5,092 201,903 
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2009 
Actual 

$ 1,151,954 
4,630,649 

62,157 
2,379,659 
2,070,770 

245,659 
152,709 
236,060 

97,272 
11,027,309 

296,076 
103,726 
522,446 
169,617 
99,219 

419,162 
466,664 
707,147 

57,006 
1,539,455 
1,005,465 

296,595 
274 ,139 
746,112 
202 ,557 
131 ,270 
106,637 
205,234 
236,366 
161,119 

1,443,960 
321,342 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non GAAP)-
Water and Wastewater Fund 

Year ended June 3D, 2010 
(with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2009) 

2010 
Variance 
Positive 2009 

Budget (Negative) Actual Actual 
Expenditures (continued) 
Operating expenditures (continued 

General and administrative (continued) 
Telecommunications systems S 508,190 S 10,828 S 497,362 S 550,627 
Information systems 1,171,840 1,525 1,170,315 1,099,851 

Pension expenses 4,400 B3 4,317 12,193 
Medical insurance 2,885,500 (321,5B2) 3,207,082 3,182,279 
Other 1,782,760 658,674 1,1 24,086 969,211 
Overhead clearing (2,272,3001 1,723,892 {3.996,192) (3,533,528) 

Total general and administrative 14,143,585 2,619,690 11,523,895 11,856,173 

Total operating expenditures 38,344,285 3,013,720 35,330,565 34,255,611 

Non-operating expenditures 
Interest expense 6,864,000 245,206 6,618,794 7,334,834 
Finance costs 130,000 18,077 111,923 370,333 

Total non-operating expenditures 6,994,000 263,283 6,730,717 7,705,167 

Transfers out 
Transfer to City of Fayetteville (79) 79 
Transfer to WfININ Rate Stabilization Fund 2,500,000 2,500,000 500,000 
Transfer to Annexation Phase V Reserve Fund 1,500,000 1,500,000 
Transfer to Annexation Phase V Project 1 Fund 2,149,500 
Transfer to Annexation Phase V Areas 6f7 Fund 5,903,543 (1,542) 5,905,085 
Transfer to Series 20098 WN/IN Revenue Bond Fund 33,348,735 (8,715) 33,357,450 

Total transfers out 43,252,278 PO,336) 43,262,614 2,649,500 

Budgetary appropriations 
Inventory increase (51 ,564) 51,564 (11B,239) 

Vehicle and equipment (B3,643) 83,643 1,108,992 
Finance costs 9,234,750 (509,B4B) 9,744,598 
Debt principal payments 9,952,600 4B 9,952,552 6,433,130 
Note payments 1,267,900 51 1,267,849 1,267,849 
Bond refund payments 111,769,610 (31) 111,769,641 
NC DOT project payments 2,582,027 
Capital outlay 19,067,100 4,162,716 14,904,384 16,184,182 
Appropriation of net assets 3,047,717 3,047,717 650,000 

Total budgetary appropriations 154,339,677 6,565,446 147,774,231 28,107,941 

Total expenditures S 242,930,240 S 9,832,113 $ 233,098, 127 S 72,718,219 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non GAAP) -
Water and Wastewater Fund 

Year ended June 30, 2010 
(with comparati ve actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2009) 

Reconciliation of change in net assets 
T olal revenue 
Total expenditures 

Subtotal 

Reconciling items: 
Budgetary appropriations 
Depreciation 
Amortization 
OPES expense 
Developer and FIF credits 
Assessments 

Budget 

$ 

$ 

Transfer of assets (to) I from Annexation Capital Project Fund Phase V-1 
Transfer of assets (to) f from Annexation Capital Project Fund Phase V-6fl 
Transfer (to) I from Series 2009B Revenue Bond Capital Project Fund 
Transfer (10) J from Series 2008 Revenue Bond Capi tal Project Fund 

Total re conciling items 

Change in net assets 

L·13 

2010 
Variance 
Positive 

jNegativel Actual 

(2,749,675) S 240,180,565 
9,832,1 13 233,098,127 

7,082,438 7,082,438 

(20,187,714) 
(14 ,77 1,966) 

(842,713) 
(323,141) 

18,098,504 
(406,208) 

3,869 ,990 
173,363 

11,783,134 

12,606,751) 

S 4,475,687 

2009 
Actual 

S 65,638,789 
72,718,21 9 

(7,079,430) 

28,029,980 
(14,619,909) 

(892,260) 
(441 ,168) 

6,431 ,308 
542,105 

35,217 

3,063 ,261 
22,148,534 

$ 15,069,104 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Water and Wastewater Rate Stabilization Fund 
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Total 
Project Prior Current 

Authorization Years Year 

Revenues 
Interest earned on investments S 219,500 $ 196,541 $ 15,845 S 

Total revenues 219,500 196,541 15,845 

Other financing sources 
Transfer from Water and Wastewater Fund 3,000,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 
Appropriated net assets 

Total other financing sources 2,500,000 2,500,000 

Revenues and other financing sources 
over expenditures $ $ 2,696,541 2,515,845 $ 

Change in net assets S 2,515,845 
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Total 

212,386 
212,386 

5,000,000 

5,000,000 

5,212,386 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Annexation Capital Project Fund - Phase V-Project 1 
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Total 
Project Prior Current 

Authorization Years Year 

Revenues 
Interest earned on invested bond proceeds $ $ 4,385 $ $ 
Interest earned on other investments 225,855 8,386 

Total revenues 93,470 230,240 8,386 

Expenditures 
Construction 7,822,658 745,229 
Engineering 1,072,880 22,013 
Rights of way 285,486 
Other 624.703 100,801 

Total expenditures 14,285,816 9,805,727 868,043 

Revenues under expenditures P4,192,346) (9,575,487) (859,657) 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Bond proceeds 4,547,362 4,547,362 
Transfer from the City 4,822,492 4,822,890 
Transfer to Water and Wastewater Fund (1 ,000,000) 
Transfer from Water and Wastewater Fund 4,622,492 4,822,890 

Total other financing sources (uses) 14,192,346 141193,142 p,OOO,OOO) 

Revenues and other financing sources (uses) 
over (under) expenditures $ $ 4,617,655 (1,859,657) $ 

Reconciling items: 
Capital outlay 
Transfer of assets (to)/from the Water and Wastewater Fund 

Change in net assets 
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Total 

4,385 
234,241 
238,626 

8,567,887 
1,094,893 

285,486 
725,504 

10,673,770 

pO,435,144) 

4,547,362 
4,822,890 

(1 ,000,000) 
4,822 ,890 

13,193,142 

2,757,998 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Fort Bragg Interim Water Service Project Fund 
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Total 
Project Prior Current 

Authorization Years Year 

Revenues 
Miscellaneous Operating Revenues S 21,840.234 S 10,597,116 S 11,063,969 

Total Revenues 21,840,234 10,597,116 11,063,969 

Expenditures 
Design, budget and schedule 2,397,125 2,398,490 
Inilial capita l payment 14,864,714 4,954,905 9,909.809 
Transition costs 274,1 12 274, 112 
Interim plant operations 3,346,188 2,81 1,725 951,730 
Interim operations major 481,400 11 2,384 
Fluoride Spil l Remediation 476,695 45,500 202,430 

Total expenditures 21,840,234 10,597,116 11,063.969 

Revenues and other financing sources 

S 

over expenditures S S S 

Change in net assets S 

Total 

21,661,085 
2 1,661,085 

2,398,490 
14,864,714 

274 ,112 
3,763,455 

112,384 
247,930 

21.661,085 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Annexation Phase V Reserve Fund 
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Total 
Project Prior Current 

Authorization Years Year 

Revenues 
Interest earned on investments $ 2,000 $ $ 1,529 

Tota l revenues 2,000 1,529 

Revenues under expenditures 2,000 1,529 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfer from the City 656,978 656,978 
Transfer from Water and Wastewater Fund 1,500,000 1,500,000 
Transfer to Annexation Phase V, Areas 8-13 Fund (609,530) (397,408) 
Transfer to Water and Wastewater Fund (91,300) (91,285) 
Appropriated net assets (1,458,148) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (2,000) 1,668,285 

Revenues and other financing sources (uses) 
over expenditures S $ 1,669,814 

Change in net assets $ 1,669,814 
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Total 

S 1,529 
1,529 

1,529 

656,978 
1,500,000 
(397,408) 

(91 ,285) 

1,668,285 

S 1,669,814 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Series 2009B Revenue Bond Capital Projects Fund 
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Total 
Project Prior Current 

Authorization Years Year Total 

Revenues 
Interest earned on invested bond proceeds $ 166,744 S $ 21 ,591 $ 21 .591 

Total revenues 166,744 21 ,591 21 ,591 

Expenditures 
Construction 11 ,995,476 11,995,476 
Engineering 242,822 242,822 
Land and Land Rights 20,000 20,000 
DOT project payments 2,237,953 2,237,953 
Other 510,906 510,906 

Total expenditures 33,515,479 15,007,157 15,007,157 

Revenues under expenditures (33,348,7351 (14,985,5661 (14 ,985,5661 

Other financing sources 
Bond proceeds 33,348,735 33,357,450 33,357,450 

Total other financing sources 33,348,735 33,357,450 33,357,450 

Revenues and other financing sources over 
expenditures $ $ 18,371 ,884 $ 18,371 ,884 

Reconciling items: 
Capital outlay 12,747,613 
DOT project payments 2,237,953 
Transfer of assets (to)/from the Water and Wastewater Fund (11 ,783,1341 

Change in net assets $ 21, 574,316 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Annexation Capital Project Fund ~ Phase V·Areas 617 
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Total 
Project Prior Current 

Authorization Years Year 

Revenues 
Interest earned on invested bond proceeds S 29,518 S S 3,661 S 

Total revenues 29,518 3,661 

Expenditures 
Construction 3,658,334 
Engineering 624,057 
Rights of way 173,363 
Other 251,624 

Total expenditures 5,933,061 4,707,378 

Revenues under expenditures 15,903,543) 14,703,717) 

Other financing sources 
Bond proceeds 5,903,543 5,905,085 

Total other financing sources 5,903,543 5,905,085 

Revenues and other financing sources over 
expenditures S S 1,201,368 S 

Reconciling items: 
Capital outlay 4,703,717 
Transfer of assets (tol/from the Water and Wastewater Fund (173,363) 

Change in net assets S 5,731,722 
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Total 

3,661 
3,66 1 

3,658,334 
624,057 
173,363 
251,624 

4,707,378 

14,703,717) 

5,905,085 
5,905,085 

1,201,368 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Annexation Capital Project Fund - Phase V-Areas 8-13 
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30,2010 

Total 
Project Prior Current 

Authorization Years Year 

Revenues $ S $ $ 
Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Engineering 455,768 
Rights of way 48,262 
Other 9,817 

Total expenditures 9,000,000 513,847 

Revenues (under) expenditures (9,000,0001 (513,8471 

Other financing sources 
Transfer from Annexation Phase V Reserve Fund 9,000,000 397,408 

Total other financing sources 9,000,000 397.408 

Revenues and other financing sources over 
(under) expenditures $ S (116,439) $ 

Reconciling items: 
Capital ouUay 513,847 

Change in net assets S 397,408 
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Total 

455,768 
48,262 

9,817 
513,847 

(513,8471 

397,408 
397.408 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining Balance Sheet 
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 

June 30, 2010 

Total Nonmajor 
Transit Airport Solid Waste Enterprise 
Fund Fund Recycling Fund Funds 

Assets 
Current assets 

Cash and inveslmenls $ 1,644,405 $ 5,485,631 $ 621,849 $ 7,751,885 
Accounls receivable 299,019 1,428,159 168,419 1,895,597 
Inventories 136,714 5,374 12,840 154,928 
Prepaid expenses 3,750 3,750 
Restricted cash and investments 681,895 681,895 

Total current assets 2,083,888 7,601,059 803,108 10,488,055 

Noncurrent assets 
Capital assets 5,274,283 33,197,407 38,471,690 

Total noncurrent assets 5,274,283 33,197,407 38,471,690 

Total assets $ 7,358,171 $ 40,798,466 $ 803,108 $ 48 ,959,745 

Liabilities and net assets 
Current liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 122,454 $ 540,762 $ 156,121 $ 819,337 
Currenl portion of long-term liabilities 153,504 84,019 237,523 
Interfund payables 213,918 213,918 
Unearned deposits 675 675 

T alai current liabilities 275,958 839,374 156,121 1,271,453 

Noncurrent liabilities 
Net OPES obligation 330,428 137,469 467,897 
Long-term debt 79,017 79,017 
Deferred revenues 34,643 34,643 

Total noncurrent liabilities 409,445 172,112 581,557 

Total liabilities 685,403 1,011,486 156,121 1,853,010 

Net assets 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 5,274,283 33,197,407 38,471 ,690 
Restricted for: 

Capital projects 797,224 797,224 
Unrestricted 1,398,485 5,792,349 646,987 7,837,821 

Tolal net assets 6,672,768 39,786,980 646,987 47,106,735 

Total liabilities and net assets $ 7,358,171 $ 40,798,466 $ 803,108 $ 48,959,745 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets 
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 
Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Total Nonmajor 
Transit Airport Solid Waste Enterprise 
Fund Fund Rec~cling Fund Funds 

Operating revenues 
Charges for services $ 824,696 $ 3,564,005 $ 2,250,474 $ 6,639,175 
Other revenue from operations 14,794 171,647 8,209 194,650 

Total operating revenues 839,490 3,735,652 2,258,683 6 ,833,825 

Operating expenses 
Salaries and employee benefits 3,430,693 1,110,719 4,541,412 
Other operating expenses 2,077,851 1,564,370 1,944,210 5,586,431 
Depreciation 693,972 1,655,969 2,349,941 

Tolal operating expenses 6,202,516 4,331 ,058 1,944,2 10 12,477,784 

Operating income (loss) (5,363,026) (595,406) 314,473 (5,643,959) 

Nonoperating revenue (expense) 
Interest earned on investments 70,519 12,361 82,880 
Federal and State grants 1,688,646 145,595 1,834,241 
Passenger facility charges 894,481 894,481 
Miscellaneous revenues 83,377 4,067 87,444 
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets (27,933) 50 (27.883) 
County revenue 296,121 296,121 
Vehicle fee revenue 649,160 649,160 
Interest expense (14,003) (14,003) 
Miscellaneous expense (244,706) (244,706) 

Total nonoperating revenue (expense) 2,309,873 935,313 312,549 3,557,735 

Income (loss) before transfers 
and contributions (3,053,153) 339,907 627,022 (2,086,224) 

Transfers in 2,649,540 2,649,540 
Transfers out (430,703) (430,703) 
Capital contributions 1,733,733 3,752,977 5,486,710 

Change in net assets 1,330,1 20 4,092,884 196,319 5,619,323 

Total net assets - beginning 5,342,648 35,694,096 450,668 41,487,41 2 

Total net assets - ending $ 6,672,768 $ 39,786,980 $ 646,987 S 47,1 06,735 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows 

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 
Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Total Nonmajor 
Transit Airport Solid Waste Enterprise 
Fund Fund Recycling Fund Funds 

Operating activities 
Cash received from customers $ 1,628,312 $ 8,291,861 $ 2,619,163 $ 12,539,336 
Cash paid \0 or on behalf of employees for services (3,303,743) (1,070,080) (4,373,823) 
Cash paid fOf goods and services {2,144,859) (5,743,034) (1,936,510) (9,824,403) 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
operating activities (3,820,290) 1,478,747 682,653 p,658,890) 

Noncapital financing activities 
Transfers in 2,649,540 2,649,540 
Federal and State grants 1,688,646 145,595 1,834,241 
Transfers out (430,703) (430,703) 
Vehicle revenue fees 649,160 649,160 

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital 
financing activities 4,987,346 145,595 (430,703) 4,702,238 

Capital and related financing activities 
Proceeds from sale of assets 29,210 50 29,260 
Proceeds from debt proceeds 98,191 98, 191 
Contributed capital received 1,733,733 3,752,977 5,486,710 
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (1,835,441) (5,236,254) (7,071,695) 
Principal paid in debt maturities (35,624) (35,624) 
Interest paid on debt maturities (14,003) (14 ,003) 

Net cash provided (used) by capital and 
related financing activities 25,693 (1,532,854) p,507,161) 

Investing activities 
Interest and dividends 70,519 12,361 82,880 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 70,519 12,361 82,880 

Net increase (decrease) In cash and cash 
equivalentsflnvestments 1,192,749 162,007 264,311 1,619,067 

Cash and cash equlvalentSfinvestments 
Beginning of year 451,656 6,005,519 357,538 6,814,713 

End of year $ 1,644,405 $ 6,167,526 $ 621,849 $ 8,433,780 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,644,405 $ 6,167,526 $ 621,849 $ 8,433,780 
Total cash and cash equivalents/investments $ 1,644,405 $ 6,167,526 $ 621,849 $ 8,433,780 

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalentslinvestments $ 1,644,405 $ 5,485,631 $ 621,849 $ 7,751,885 
Restricted cash and equiva!entsfinvestments 681,895 681,895 

Total cash and cash equivalentsfinvestments $ 1,644,405 $ 6,167,526 $ 621,849 $ 8,433 ,780 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows 
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 
Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Total Nonmajor 
Transit Airport Solid Waste Enterprise 
Fund Fund Rec;tcllng Fund Funds 

Reconciliation of operat ing Income (loss) 
to net ca sh provided by 
(used in) operating activities 
Operating income (loss) S (5,363 .026) S (595,406) S 31 4,473 S (5,643,959) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) 

to net cash provided by (used in) operating 
activ ities: 
Depreciation 693,972 1,655,969 2,349 ,941 
Nonoperating payments for goods and services (244,706) (244.706) 
Nonoperating receipts from customers 977,858 300,188 1,278,046 

Change in assets and liabili ties 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 789,482 3,563,904 60,292 4,413,678 
(Increase) decrease In inventory (1 4,155) (2,4 48) 10,120 (6,483) 
(Increase) decrease in accounts payable 

and accrued liabili ties (52,853) (3,931 ,510) (2, 420) (3,986,783) 
(Increase) decrease in accrued compensated 

absences 42, 131 11 ,823 53,954 
(Increase) decrease in defe rred revenues (660) 14,4 47 13,787 
(Increase) decrease in Net OPES Obligation 84 ,819 28,816 113,635 

Total adjustments 1,542,736 2,074 ,153 368,180 3,985,069 

Net cash provided by (used In) operating activ ities S (3 ,820 , 290~ 5 1,478,747 S 682,653 S (1,658,890) 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) 
Transit Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2009) 

Variance 
2010 2009 

Budget Positive 
Actual Actual 

INegativel 
Operating revenues 

Charges for services $ 841,792 $ (17,09.6) $ 824 ,696 $ 783,596 
Olher revenues from operations 23, 192 (8,398) 14,794 18,371 

Total operating revenues 864,984 (25,494) 839,490 801 ,967 

Operating Expenditures 
Salaries and employee benefits 3,366,590 (62,847) 3,303,743 2,910,884 
Other operating expenditures 2,271,151 (393,844) 1,877,307 2,027,021 

Total operating expenditures 5,637,741 (456,691) 5,181 ,050 4,937,905 

Operating loss (4,772,757) 431 ,197 (4,341,560) (4,135,938) 

Nonoperating revenues (expenditures) 
Federal grants 1,273,111 (217,626) 1,055,485 1,203,536 
State grants 683,251 (149,253) 533,998 683,251 
Vehicle fee revenue 600,000 49,160 649,160 432,465 
Debt service - principal paymenl (1,554) 1,554 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenditures) 2,554,808 (316,165) 2,238,643 2,319,252 

Revenues under expenditures (2,217,949) 115,032 (2,102,917) (1 ,816,686) 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 2,217,949 (144,242) 2,073,707 1,805,999 
Proceeds from sale of assets 29,210 29,210 10,894 
Capital lease proceeds 98,191 98,191 

Total other financing sources (uses) 2,217,949 (16,841) 2,201,108 1,816,893 

Revenues and other financing 
sources (uses) over (under) expenditures $ $ 98,191 $ 98,191 $ 207 

Reconciliation of change in net assets: 
Total revenues $ 5,279,241 $ 4,938,112 
Total expenditures (5,181,050) (4,937,905) 

Subtotal 98,191 207 

Depreciation (693,972) (576,482) 
Capital lease proceeds (98, 191) 
Net OPEB expense (84,819) (66,536) 
Change in inventory (7,107) (22,325) 
Decrease (increase) in accrued vacation (42,131) (9,320) 
Bad debt expense 623 (207) 
Proceeds from sale of assets (29,210) (10,894) 
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets (27,933) 10,894 

Subtotal (982,740) (674,870) 

Change in net assets $ (884,549) $ (674,663) 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Changes in the Slatus of 
Transit Capital Project Fund 

From Inception and for Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Project Prior Closed Current 
Total 

Authorization Years Projects Year 

Revenues 
Federal grants $ 9,363,176 $ 3,327,407 $ $ 1,573,741 $ 4,901,148 
State grants 980,450 290,688 159,992 450,680 
Miscellaneous 8,161 8,161 

Total revenues 10,343,626 3,626,256 1,733,733 5,359,989 

Expenditures 
FTA Capilal 0271 1,238,560 1,238,527 1,238,527 
FTA Capilal 0313 1,239,430 1,207,565 31,865 1,239,430 
FTA Capilal 0327 940,000 324,648 54,287 378,935 
FTA Capilal 0357 555,000 533,137 21,581 554,718 
FTA Capital 0378 20,000 20,000 20,000 
FTA Capital 0406 270,209 111,358 22,196 133,554 
FTA Capital 0425 387,000 351,963 1,805 353,768 
FTA Capital 0444 117,416 109,359 7,133 116,492 
FTA Capital 04.0027 1,880,844 204,586 1,596,830 1,801 ,416 
Multi·Modal Center (no grant) 500,000 
FTA Capital 0457 203,422 163,623 163,623 
NCDOT Capita l 09·AT·OO4 419,012 
FTA Capital 0464 811,667 
Improvements & Enhancements (no grant) 459,000 
ARRA Capital 06.002 3,129,Q10 

Total expenditures 12,170,570 4,081,143 1,919,320 6,000,463 

Revenues over {under} expenditures (1,826,944) (454,887) (185,587) (640,474) 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Proceeds from the sale of assets 23,592 23,592 
Transfers in 1,264,557 1,813,066 

Total other financing sources (uses) 1,288,149 1,836,658 

Revenues and other financing 
sources (uses) over (under) 
expenditures $ $ 833,262 $ $ 362,922 $ 1,196,184 

Reconciliation of modified accrual basis 
to full accrual basis: 
Excess of revenues over expenditures $ 362,922 
Capital outlay 1,919,320 
Non-capitalizable items (83,879) 

Change in net assets $ 2,198,363 
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CITY OF FAYEITEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Changes in the Status of 
Transit II Capital Project Fund 

From Inception and for Year Ended June 3D, 2010 

Project Prior Closed Current 
Total 

Authorization Years Projects Year 

Revenues 
Intergovernmental 

Federal grants $ 837,828 $ 425,012 $ $ 88,1 45 $ 513,157 
State grants 104,729 53,126 11,018 64,144 

Total intergovernmental 942,557 478,138 99,163 577,301 

Total revenues 942,557 478,138 99,163 577,301 

Expenditures 
Current 

Transportation 1,047,286 110,181 641,444 
Total expenditures 1,047,286 110,181 641,444 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (104,729) (53,125) (11,018) (64,143) 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 104,729 77,405 27,324 104,729 

Total other financing sources (uses) 104,729 77,405 27,324 104,729 

Revenues and other financing 
sources (uses) over (under) 
expenditures $ $ 24,280 $ $ 16,306 $ 40,586 

Reconciliation of modified accrual basis 
to full accrual basis: 
Excess of revenues over expenditures. $ 16,306 

Change in net assets $ 16,306 
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Expenditures by project: 

Transportation 
FTA 90.2406 
FTA 90.2425 
FTA 90.2453 
FTA 90.2464 

Total transportation 

Total expenditures by project 

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Expenditures by Project 
Transit II Capital Project Fund 

From Inception and for Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Project Prior Closed 
Authorization Years Projects 

$ 292,300 $ 226,654 $ 
181 ,750 106,467 
300,000 198,142 
273,236 

1,047,286 531 ,263 

$ 1,047,286 $ 531 ,263 $ 

L-28 

$ 

$ 

Current 
Year 

46,827 
22,266 
24,654 
16,434 

110,181 

110,181 

Total 

$ 273,481 
128,733 
222,796 

16,434 
641,444 

$ 641,444 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures ~ Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) 
Airport Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for Year Ended June JO, 2009) 

Variance 
Positive 2010 2009 

Budget (Negative) Actual Actual 
Operating revenues 

Charges for services $ 3,553,214 $ 10,791 $ 3,564,005 $ 3,639,617 
Other revenues from operations 110,117 61,530 171,647 135,385 

Total operating revenues 3,663,331 72,321 3,735,652 3,775,002 

Operating expenditures 
Salaries and employee benefits 1,129,762 59,682 1,070,080 1,138,619 
Other operating expenditures 2,036,570 545,696 1,490,874 1,367,897 
Capilal oullay 192,545 127,899 64,646 333,398 

Total operating expenditures 3,358,877 733,277 2,625,600 2,839,914 

Operating income (loss) 304,454 805,598 1,110,052 935,088 

Nonoperating revenues 
Interest earned on investments 47,000 (2,996) 44,004 68,149 
Miscellaneous 84,297 84,297 85,794 
Federal and State grants 146,183 (588) 

Total nonoperating revenues 277,480 (3,584) 

Nonoperating expenditures 
Interest expense (14,003) 14,003 16,073 
Debt service - principal payment (35,624) 35,624 33,555 
Public safety reimbursements 384,494 139,788 244,706 250,320 

Total nonoperating expenditures 384,494 90,161 294,333 299,948 

Revenues over (under) expenditures 197,440 892,175 1,089,615 955,106 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Proceeds from sale of assets 50 50 9,378 
Transfers in 90,688 90,688 
Transfers out (197,440) 165,805 (31 ,635) (1,861 ,695) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (197,440) 256,543 59,103 (1,852,317) 

Revenues and other financing sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditures $ $ 1,148,718 $ 1,148,718 $ (897,211 ) 

Reconcilitiation of change in net assets 
Total revenues $ 4,100,286 $ 4,104,346 
Tolal expenditures 2,951 ,568 5,001 ,557 

Subtotal 1,148,718 (897,211 ) 

Depreciation (1 ,655,969) (1,492,816) 
Amortization (22,000) 
Change in accrued vacation (11 ,823) (3,730) 
Change in inventory 2,448 (3,104) 
Capilal oullay 64,646 333,398 
Proceeds from sale of assets (50) (9,378) 
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets 50 3,395 
Principal payment 35,624 33,555 
Net OPES expense (28,816) (28,838) 

Subtotal (1,593,890) (1 ,189,518) 

Change in net assets $ (445,172) $ (2,086,729) . 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Changes in the Status of 
Airport Capital Project FU,nd 

From Inception and for Year Ended June 30,2010 

Project Prior Closed Current 
Authorization Years Projects Year Total 

Revenues 
Federal grants S 15,520,035 S 10,786,130 S S 3,148,471 S 13,934,601 
Slate grants 1,000,744 710,491 459,136 513,818 765,173 
Miscellaneous income 281,782 280,862 (920) 
Passenger facility charges 752,663 828,003 20,000 894,481 1,702,484 
Investment income 88,303 280,126 26,515 306,641 

Total revenues 17,361,745 12,886,532 759,998 4,582,365 16,708,899 

Expenditures 
Storm Waler Improvements 361,114 227,920 227,920 
AIP-30 Loop, Building, Beacon 3,558,021 3,298,249 3,298,249 
Security System Installation 40,801 40,801 
AIP-31 Airport Fire Training Facility 1,257,991 1,246,652 11,338 1,257,990 
14 Unit T-Hangar 561,723 561 ,723 
Public Seating Upgrade 105,000 105,000 
Security Screening Area 70,282 70,282 
AIP-32 Airport Improvement Projects 738,420 516,564 10,200 526,764 
West GA Ramp Rehabilitation 672,277 52, 188 531 ,309 583,497 
AIP-33 Airfield lighting Vault 2,179,347 1,728,272 361 ,794 2,090,066 
Taxiway A Rehabilitation 206,710 202,996 202,996 
AIP-35 ARFF Rehabilitation 1,703,607 828,436 828,436 
Vegetation Management Project 54,000 28,000 28,000 
Visual Navigational Aide 11 ,600 11 ,600 11 ,600 
Local Match/Future Projects 349,000 
AIP-34 Runway 4122 Rehabilitation 7,171 ,533 4,582,879 1,992,927 6,575,806 
Fingerprint Machine Replacement 13,772 
Renovation of Airport Parking 1,542,969 1,178,264 1,178,264 

Total expenditures 19,820,361 12,430,530 777,806 5,156,864 16,809,588 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (2,458,616) 456,002 (17,808) (574,499) (100,689) 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 2,546,020 2,921,438 17,808 31,635 2,935,265 
Transfers out (90,688) (90,688) (90,688) 
Proceeds from sale of assets 3,284 3,284 3,284 

Total other financing sources (uses) 2,458,616 2,924,722 17,808 (59,053) 2,847,861 

Revenues and other financing sources 
(uses) oyer (under) expenditures S S 3,380,724 S S (633,552) S 2,747,172 

Reconciliation of modified accrual 
basis to full accrual basis: 
Excess of revenues over expenditures S (633,552) 
Capital outlay 5,247,552 
Non-capitalizable items (75,944) 

Change in net assets S 4,538,056 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non·GAAP) 
Solid Waste Recycling Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2009) 

Variance 
2010 2009 

Budget Positive 
Actual Actual 

(Negative) 

Operating revenues 
Charges for services $ 2,273,576 $ (23,102) $ 2,250,474 $ 2,512,988 
Other revenue from operations 5,000 3,209 8,209 8,050 

Total operating revenues 2,278,576 (19,893) 2,258,683 2,521,038 

Operating expenditures 
Other operating expenditures 2,166,486 222,276 1,944,210 1,919,318 

Total operating expenditures 2,166,486 222,276 1,944,210 1,919,318 

Operating income (loss) 112,090 202,383 314,473 601,720 

Nonoperating revenues (expenditures) 
Federal and State grants 11 ,774 
County revenue 299,555 (3,434) 296,121 251,296 
Miscellaneous 1,100 2,967 4,067 3.661 
Donations 100 
Interest earned on investments 18,000 (5,639) 12,361 21,901 

Nonoperating revenues (expenditures) 318,655 (6,106) 312,549 288,732 

Revenues over (under) expenditures 430,745 196,277 627,022 890,452 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers out (430,745) 42 (430,703) (487,245) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (430,745) 42 (430,703) (487,245) 

Revenues and other financing sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditures $ $ 196,319 $ 196,319 $ 403,207 

Reconciliation of change in net assets 
Total revenues $ 2,571 ,232 $ 2,809,770 
Total expenditures 2,374,913 2,406 ,563 

Subtotal 196,319 403,207 

Change in net assets $ 196,319 $ 403,207 
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Internal Service Funds account for the financing of services 
provided by one department or agency to other departments or 
agencies of the City on a cost reimbursement basis . 

The following comprise the City's Internal Service Funds: 
• Warranty Fleet Fund 
• Insurance Fund 
• PWC Fleet Maintenance Fund 

All Internal Service Funds are accounted for using the accrual 
basis of lac counting . 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining Balance Sheet 
Internal Service Funds 

June 3.0, 201O 

PWC 
Warranty Fleet 

Fleet Insurance Maintenance 
Fund Fund Fund Total 

Assets 
Current assets 

Cash and investments $ 1,1 17,977 $ 14,093,217 $ $ 15,211,194 
Accounts receivable 2,099 33,843 950,181 986,123 
Prepaid expenses 300,230 300,230 

Total current assets 1,120,076 14,427,290 950,181 16,497,547 

Noncurrent assets 
Capital assets 184,184 1,723,906 1,908,090 

Total noncurrent assets 184,184 1,723,906 1,908,090 

Total assets $ 1,304,260 $ 14,427,290 $ 2,674,087 $ 18,405,637 

Liabilities and net assets 
Current liabi lities 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 7,912 $ 2,525,542 $ 306,302 $ 2,839,756 
Current portion of long-term debt 18,446 119,928 138,374 
Interfund payables 124,915 124,915 

Total current liabilities 7,912 2,543,988 551,145 3,103,045 

Noncurrent liabilities 
Net OPEB obligation 48,915 189,111 238,026 
Deferred revenues 8,186 8,186 
Long-term debt 53,329 53,329 

Tota l noncurrent liabilities 57,101 242,440 299,541 

Total liabilities 7,912 2,601 ,089 793,585 3,402,586 

Net assets 
Invested in capita l assets, net of related debt 184, 184 1,723,906 1,908,090 
Unrestricted 1,112,164 11 ,826,201 156,596 13,094,961 

Total net assets 1,296,348 11,826,201 1,880,502 15,003,051 

Total liabilities and net assets $ 1,304,260 $ 14,427,290 $ 2,674,087 $ 18,405,637 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets 
Internal Service Funds 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 

pwe 
Warranty Fleet 

Fleet Insurance Maintenance 
Fund Fund Fund Total 

Operating revenues 
Other revenue from operations S $ 433,283 S 6,708,404 $ 7, 141 ,687 
Interfund charges and employee conlributions 298,021 13,963,174 14,261,195 
Miscellaneous operating revenues 1,285 1,285 

Total operating revenues 298,021 14,396,457 6,709,689 21,404,167 

Operating expenses 
Salaries and employee benefits 401,600 401,600 
Other operating expenses 151 ,525 13,614,526 6,597,213 20,363,264 
Depreciation 214,872 114,128 329,000 

Total operating expenses 366,397 14,016, 126 6,711,341 21 ,093,864 

Operating Income (loss) {68,376) 380,331 (1,652) 310,303 

Nonoperating revenue (expense) 
Interest earned on investments 12,025 192,007 204,032 
Miscellaneous revenue 155 155 
Gain (Joss) on disposal of capital assets 2,525 1,652 4,177 

Total nonoperating revenue (expense) 14,550 192,162 1,652 208,364 

Income (loss) before transfers 
and contributions (53,826) 572,493 518,667 

Transfers in 1,921,100 1,921.100 
Transfers out (2,576,050) ~2,576,050) 

Change in net assets (53,826) (82.457) (136,283) 

Total net assets· beginning 1.350,174 11,908,658 1,880,502 15,139,334 

Total net assets - ending $ 1,296,348 $ 11,826,201 $ 1,880,502 S 15,003,051 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows 
Internal Service Funds 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 

pwe 
Warranty Fleet 

Fleet Insurance Maintenance 
Fund Fund Fund Total 

Operating activities 
Cash received from customers $ 298,965 S 13,980,985 $ 6,744,637 $ 21,024,587 
Cash received from insurance reimbursements 433,283 433,283 
Cash paid to or on behalf of employees for services (385,240) (1,965,939) (2,351,179) 
Cash paid for goods and services ~ 154 , 169) (13,647,629) ~4,769,456) (18,571,254) 

Net cash provided by (used In) 
operating activities 144,796 381,399 9,242 535,437 

Noncapital financing activities 
Transfers in 1,92 1, 100 1,921,100 

Transfers out (2,576,050) ~2,576,050) 

Net cash provided (used) by non capital 
financing activities (654,950) (654,950) 

Capital and related financing activities 
Proceeds from sale of assets 2,525 1,652 4 ,177 
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (10,894) ~10,894) 

Net cash provided (used) by capital and 
related financing activities 2,525 (9,242) (6,717) 

Investing activities 
Interest and dividends 12,025 192,007 204,032 

Net cash provided (used) by Investing activities 12,025 192,007 204,032 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents/investments 159,346 (81,544) 77,802 

Cash and cash equivalentslinvestments 
Beginning of year 958,631 14,174,761 15,133,392 

End of year $ 1,117,977 $ 14 ,093,217 S S 15,211 ,194 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,117,977 S 14 ,093,217 S S 15,211,194 
Total cash and cash equivalentslinvestments S 1,117,977 $ 14,093,217 $ S 15,211,194 

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalentslinveslrnents $ 1, 117,977 $ 14,093,217 $ S 15,211,194 
Total cash and cash equivalentslinvestments S 1,117,977 S 14,093,217 S S 15,211,194 

R.econciliation of operating income (loss) 
to net cash provided by 
(used in) operating activities 
Operating income (loss) S (68,376) $ 380,331 S (1,652) S 310,303 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) 

10 net cash provided by (used in) operating 
activities: 
Depreciation 214,872 114,128 329,000 

Nonoperating receipts from customers 155 155 

Change in assets and liabilities 
(Increase) decrease in accounls receivable 94. 16,770 34,948 52,662 

(Increase) decrease in internal balances (212,311) (212,311) 

(Increase) decrease in prepaid items (218,846) (218,846) 

(Increase) decrease in accounts payable 
and accrued liabilities (2,644) 185,743 73,928 257,027 

(Increase) decrease in accrued compensated 
absences 5,525 201 5,726 

(Increase) decrease in deferred revenues 886 886 
(Increase) decrease in Net OPES Obligation 10,835 10,835 

Net cash provided by (used In) operating activities $ 144,796 $ 381,399 $ 9,242 $ 535,437 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) 
Warranty Fleet Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2009) 

Variance 
Positive 2010 2009 

Budget (Negative) Actual Actual 

Operating revenues 
Interfund charges and employee contributions $ 302,690 $ (4 ,669) $ 298,021 $ 288,210 

Total operating revenues 302,690 (4 ,669) 298,021 288,210 

Operating expenditures 
Other operating expenditures 205,548 54 ,023 151,525 138,755 
Capital outlay 119,142 119,142 45,733 

Total operating expenditures 324,690 173,165 151,525 184,488 

Operating income (loss) (22,000) 168,496 146,496 103,722 

Nonoperating revenues (expenditures) 
Interest earned on investments 20,000 (7,975) 12,025 20,907 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenditures) 20,000 (7 ,975) 12,025 20,907 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (2,000) 160,521 158,521 124,629 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Proceeds from disposal of capital assets 2,000 525 2,525 6,300 

Total other financing sources (uses) 2,000 525 2,525 6,300 

Revenues and other financing sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditures $ $ 161,046 $ 161,046 $ 130,929 

Reconciliation to change in net assets: 
Total revenues $ 312,571 $ 315,417 
Total expenditures 151,525 184,488 

Subtotal 161 ,046 130,929 

Depreciation (214,872) (185,437) 
Capital outlay 45,733 

Subtotal (214,872) (139,704) 

Change in net assets $ (53,826) $ (8,775) 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) 
Insurance Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2009) 

Variance 
Positive 2010 2009 

Budget (Negative) Actual Actual 

Operating revenues 
Interfund charges and employee contributions $ 15,388,596 $ (1,425,422) $ 13,963,174 $ 14,401,076 
Other revenues from operations 86,286 346,997 433,283 323,022 

Total operating revenues 15,474,882 (1,078,425) 14,396,457 14,724,098 

Operating expenditures 
Salaries and employee benefits 393,702 8,462 385,240 409,943 
Other operating expenditures 16,256,717 2,839,648 13,417,069 12,698,969 

Total operating expenditures 16,650,419 2,848,110 13,802,309 13,108,912 

Operating income (loss) (1 ,175,537) 1,769,685 594,148 1,615,186 

Nonoperating revenues (expenditures) 
Interest earned on investments 368,000 (175,993) 192,007 343,638 
Miscellaneous 155 155 2 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenditures) 368,000 (175,838) 192,162 343,640 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (807,537) 1,593,847 786,310 1,958,826 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Sale of capital assets 110 
Transfers out (2,576,050) (2,576,050) (2,322,100) 
Transfers in 1,921,100 1,921,100 
Appropriated fund balance 3,383,587 (3,383,587) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 807,537 (1,462,487) (654,950) (2,321 ,990) 

Revenues and other financing sources (uses) 
over (under) expenditures $ $ 131,360 $ 131 ,360 $ (363,164) 

Reconciliation to change in net assets: 
Total revenues $ 16,509,719 $ 15,067,848 
T alai expendilures 16,378,359 15,431,012 

Subtotal 131 ,360 (363,164) 

Depreciation (21,408) 
Decrease (increase) in accrued vacation (5,525) (3,515) 
Change in nel OPES expense (10,835) (10,684) 
Decrease (increase) in insurance liability (197,457) (282,858) 

Subtotal (213,817) (318,465) 

Change in net assets $ (82,457) $ (681,629) 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non GAAP) 
PWC Fleet Maintenance Fund 

Year ended June 30. 2010 
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2009) 

Variance 
Positive 2010 2009 

Budget INegatlve} Actual Actual 
Revenues 
Operating revenues 

City services S 4,506,600 S 113,597 S 4,620,197 S 4,156,253 
PWC services 2,098,300 (10,Q93) '2,088,207 2,119,670 
Other revenue 10,900 (9,6151 1,285 2,295 

Total operating revenues 6,615,800 93,889 6,709,689 6,278,218 

Expenditures 
Operating expenditures 

Fleet maintenance 6,604,900 54,949 6,549,951 6,114,650 
Total operating expenditures 6,604,900 54,949 6,549,951 6,114,650 

Operating Income (loss) 10,900 148,838 159,738 163,568 

Nonoperating revenues (expenditures) 
Capital oullay (10,9001 7 (10,8931 (126,6291 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenditures) (10,9001 7 (10,8931 (126,6291 

Revenues over (under) expenditures 148,845 148,845 36,939 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Gain (loss) on asset disposal 1,652 1,652 17,256 

Total other financing sources (uses) 1,652 1,652 17,256 

Revenues and other financing sources 
(uses) over (under) expenditures S S 150,497 S 150,497 S 54,195 

Reconciliation of changes In net assets 
Total revenues S 6,711,341 S 6,295,474 
Total expenditures 6,560,844 6,241,279 

Subtotal 150,497 54,195 

Reconciling items: 
Capital outlay 10,893 126,629 
Depreciation (114,128) (113,888) 
OPES expense (47,2621 (66,9361 

Total reconciling items (150,4971 (54, 1951 

Change in net assets S S 
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• Pension Trust Funds 
• Private-purpose Trust Funds 

The focus of Fuduciary Fund measurement differs among the 
various types of funds that may be encompassed by this 
classification. 



Trust Funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a 
trustee capacity. 

The following comprise the City's Trust Funds: 
• Pension Trust Funds 

- Special Separation Allowance Trust Fund 
- PWC Supplemental Pension Trust Fund 

• Private-purpose Trust Funds 
- Police Benefit Trust Fund 
- Firemen's Relief Trust Fund 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets 
Pension Trust Funds 

June 30, 2010 

Special 
Separation PWC 
Allowance Supplemental 
Pension Pension 

Trust Fund Trust Fund Total 

Assets 
Cash and investments 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,214,841 $ $ 2,214,841 
Total cash and investments 2,214,841 2,214,841 

Accounts receivable 4,548 4,548 
Total assets 2,219,389 2,219,389 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 19,953 19,953 

Total liabilities 19,953 19,953 

Net assets 
Held in Trust for: 

Pension benefits 2,199,436 2,199,436 
Total net assets $ 2,199,436 $ $ 2,199,436 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets 
Pension Trust Funds 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Special 
Separation PWC 
Allowance Supplemental 

Pension Pension 
Trust Fund Trust Fund Total 

Additions 
Employer conlributions $ 511,937 $ $ 511,937 
Investment earnings 25,308 3,409 28,717 

Total additions 537,245 3,409 540,654 

Deductions 
Benefit payments and premiums 472,047 62,554 534,601 
Annuity purchase 2,880,000 2,880,000 
Other 984,900 984,900 

Total deductions 472,047 3,927,454 4,399,501 

Change in net assets 65,198 (3 ,924,045) (3 ,858,847) 

Total net assets - beginning 2,134,238 3,924,045 6,058,283 

Total net assets ending $ 2,199,436 $ $ 2,199,436 

N-2 



Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable 

Total assets 

Liabilities 

Net assets 

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets 
Private-purpose Trust Funds 

June 30, 2010 

$ 

Police 
Benefit 

Trust Fund 

1,403 
2 

1,405 

$ 

Firemen's 
Benefit 

Trust Fund 

1,379,325 
2,807 

1,382,132 

Held in Trust for benefits and other purposes 
Total net assets $ 

1,405 
1,405 

1,382,132 
$ 1,382, 132 

N-3 

$ 

$ 

Total 

1,380,728 
2,809 

1,383,537 

1,383,537 
1,383,537 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets 
Private-purpose Trust Funds 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Police Firemen's 
Benefit Benefit 

Trust Fund Trust Fund Total 

Additions 
Other revenue from operations $ $ 40,994 $ 40,994 
Contributions 1,025 108,379 109,404 
Investment earnings 12 14,185 14,197 

Total additions 1,037 163,558 164,595 

Deductions 
Benefit payments and premiums 147,268 147,268 

Total deductions 147,268 147,268 

Change in net assets 1,037 16,290 17,327 

Total net assets - beginning 368 1,365,842 1,366,210 

Total net assets - ending $ 1,405 $ 1,382,132 $ 1,383,537 
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Other supplemental data is presented to provide a more 
detailed view of the current tax levy and taxes receivable. 
These schedules are not funds and do not measure results of 
operations. 



Original Levy: 
General Fund 

General Fundaj 

General Fund Deferred Property Taxes(bj 

Late Listing Penalties: 
General Fund 

Subtotal 

DIscoveries: 
General Fund 

General Fundaj 

Late Listing Penalties: 
General Fund 

Subtotal 

Releases 
General Fund 
General Fund(a) 

Late Listing Penalties: 
General Fund 

Sublotal 

Adjusted Tax Levy 

Uncollected Current Year Taxes at 613012010 

City-wide Current Year's Taxes Collected 

City-wide Current Levy Collection Percentage 

S 

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Current Tax Levy 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Total 
Property 
Valuation 

12,462,656,398 

446,172,043 

578,090 

36,736,842 

640,532 

(165,793,421) 

(49,998,366) 

S 

Rate 
Pe, 

$100 

0.456 

0.530 

0.000 

0.456 

0.530 

0.456 

0.530 

S 

Amount 
of Levy 

56,829,713 

2,364,712 

47,600 
59 ,242,025 

167,520 

3,395 

40,142 
211,057 

(756,018) 

(264,991) 

(13,667) 
(1,034,676) 

58,418,406 

(1,291,629) 

57,126,777 

97.79% 

Property 
Excluding 
Registered 

Motor 
Vehicles 

S 53,409,771 

47,600 
53,457,371 

161,890 

40,142 
202,032 

(463,549) 

(13,667) 
(477,216) 

53,182,187 

{340,157) 

52,842,030 

99 .36% 

(a) Vehicles registered March 20091hrough June 2009 (cycles 31hrough 6) were subject to levies at the prior tax rate of $0.53 per $100. 
(b) Pursuant to N.C.G.S. 105-277.1 B, properties subject to lax deferral under the Property Tax Homestead Circuit Breaker. 

0 -1 

Registered 
Motor 

Vehicles 

S 3,419,942 

2,364,712 

5,784,654 

5,630 

3,395 

9,025 

(292,469) 

(264,991) 

(557,460) 

5,236,219 

(951,472! 

4,284,747 

81 .83% 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Taxes Receivable 

June 30, 2010 

Uncollected Uncollected 
Balance Additions Balance 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 & Releases Collections June 30, 201O 

2010 $ $ 58 ,418,406 $ 57,126,777 $ 1,291 ,629 

2009 1,448,778 (140,031) 965,300 343,447 

2008 354,910 (18,624) 64,519 271,767 

All Prior 1,738,797 (157,126) 89,570 1,492,101 
3,542,485 $ 58,102,625 $ 58,246,166 3,398,944 

Less: Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes 
General Fund (803,140) (836,560) 

$ 2,739,345 $ 2,562,384 

General Fund Taxes Receivable 2,968,369 
Less: CBTO Taxes Receivable (2,402) 
Less: Vehicle License Fee Receivable (403,583) 

General Fund Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable 2,562,384 

Reconciliations of collections and credit 
with revenues 

Ad Valorem Taxes per Ihe fund financial slalemenls $ 58,699,957 
Less Penallies & Interest (326,156) 
Less Taxes - CBTO (127,635) 

General Fund Ad Valorem Taxes $ 58,246,166 

0 -2 





City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
STATISTICAL SECTION 

(Unaudited) 

This part of the City of Fayetteville's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed 
information as a context for understanding how the information in the financial statements, 
note disclosures, and required supplementary information depicts the government's 
overall financial health. 

CONTENTS 

Financial Trends 
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how 

the government's financial performance has changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity 
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader assess the City's 

most significant local revenue source. 

Debt Capacity 
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader assess the affordability 
of the City's current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to 
issue additional debt in the future. 

Demographic and Economic Information 
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader 
understand the environment within which the City's financial activities 
take place. 

Operating Information 
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand 
how the information in the City's financial report relates to the services 
the City provides and the activities it performs. 

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the relevant year. The City implemented GASB 
Statement No. 34 in 2002; schedules presenting government-wide information include information 
beginning in that year. 



City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
Net Assets by Component 

Last Nine Fiscal Years 
(accrual basis of accounting) 

(Unaud~ed) 

Fiscal Yoar 
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 

Governmenbl Activities 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 248,607,997 $ 256,858,830 $ 252.737,261 $ 263,057,769 $ 351,170,168 $ 353,407,779 
Restricted for: 

Capital projects 
Other purposes 283,297 2,369,817 2,446,529 2,702,713 3,525,148 
Grant Compliance 

Unrestricted 52,692,952 53,401,259 60,110,564 63,005,016 69,369,779 73,912,222 
Total 90vernmental activities net assets $ 301,584.246 $ 310.260,089 $ 315,217,642 $ 328,509,314 $ 423,242,660 $ 430,845,149 

Business~type activities 
Invested in capital assets, net of relsted debt $ 379,321,259 $ 384,181,318 S 384,136,802 $ 426,048,564 S 432,390,389 $ 459,237 ,550 
Restricted for: 

Cspital projects 4,572,922 10,953,452 512,536 527.965 420,040 
Debt service 3,294,937 25,695 8,998,444 817 ,633 808,520 816,070 
Other purposes 10,501,859 
Grant Complia.nce 

Unrestricted 72,534,455 69.785,451 71,918.803 73,155,311 97 ,657 ,374 121 ,366,653 
Total business~type activities net assets S 459,723,573 $ 464,494,323 $ 476,007,501 S 500,534,044 $ 531,384.248 S 581,840,313 

Primary Government 
Invested in c.3pitsl assets , net of related debt $ 627,929,256 S 641,040,148 S 636,874,063 $ 689,106.333 $ 783,560,557 S 812,645,329 
Restricted for: 

Capital projects 4,572,922 10,953,452 512,536 527,965 420,040 
Debt service 3,294,937 25,695 8,998,444 817,633 808,520 816,070 
Other purposes 283,297 10.501,859 2.369,817 2,446,529 2,702,713 3,525,148 
Gr.3nt Compliance 

Unrestricted 125,227,407 123,186,710 132,029,367 136,160,327 167,027,153 195,278,875 
Total primary government net assets S 761,307,819 $ 774,754,412 S 791,225,143 $ 829,043,358 $ 954,626,908 S 1,012,685,462 

Note: The City of Fayetteville, North C.3rolin.3 implemented GASB Statement 34 in Fisc.31 Vesr 2002, In the future, up to nine (9) prior ye.3rs will be presented with the 
current year to illustrate the City's fimmdal performance over time. 
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2008 2009 2010 

$ 354,482,766 $ 351,059,848 $ 349,628,675 

1,047,622 

1,883,445 1,885,171 3,225,781 
70,335,914 72,912,216 69.873.837 

S 427,749,747 S 425,857,235 S 422,728.293 

$ 505,941,437 $ 524.262.726 $ 572,740 ,121 

2,075,219 943,364 806,982 
11,462 2,743 41 ,258 

122,199,894 148,697,773 162,197,819 
S 630,228,012 S 673,906,606 S 735,786.180 

$ 860,424,203 S 875,322,574 $ 922,368.796 

3,122,841 943,364 806,982 
11,462 2.743 41 .258 

1,883,445 1,885,171 3,225,781 
192,535,808 221,609,989 232,071,656 

$ 1,057,977,759 $ 1,099,763,841 $ 1,158,514,473 



City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
Changes in Net Assets 
l ast Nine Fiscal Years 

(accrual basis of accounting) 
(Unaudited) 

Schedule 2 
Fiscal Year 

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 
Expenses 
Governmental Activities 

Administration S 8,50 1,997 $ 12,384,637 S 10,560,827 $ 11 ,641 ,665 S 13,268,585 $ 19,032,872 S 19,090,722 $ 17,815,439 S 19,932,088 
Public safety 39,896,830 40,577 ,161 43,682,505 47,285,832 52,752,676 56,609,521 63,458,091 64 ,355,111 72.106.589 
Environmental protection 6,450.217 7,957,261 8,871,462 7 ,514.882 9,940,477 11 ,000,841 12,126,391 12,048,837 11,098,182 
Transportation 12,091,432 12,123,658 13,846,642 14,018,733 17,11 5,971 18,702,014 20,386,537 18,965,600 20,291,431 
Economic and physical development 7,407,147 5.459,943 4.416.477 5,827,998 5,132,048 1,229,375 4.558,635 4,532,166 5,371,176 
Recreation and cOlTYTlllnlty facilities 6,371 ,366 6,525,688 6, 134,504 9,305,228 10.501.677 14,020.434 12,113,646 12,880,611 13,117,175 
Debt Service: 

Interest and fees 2,999,151 2,783,912 2,542,194 2,54 1,380 2,786,700 2,621,502 2,061,409 1,981 ,641 1,693,633 
Total govemmental activit ies 83,718,140 87,812,260 90,054,61 1 98, 135,718 111,498,134 123,216,559 133,795,431 132,579.405 143,610,274 

Business type activities 
Electri c 123,644,452 142,761,403 132,677,11 1 131,305,788 137,856,324 130,839,305 137,561,749 144,714,714 142,995,626 
W3ter and wastewater 43,949,463 45.973,455 44,147,344 45,275,518 45,859,650 49,623,073 52,767,113 65,163,237 69,063,071 
Tronslt 5,223,850 5,073,264 5,021,030 4,910.142 4,864,135 4,864 ,526 5,564,011 5,975,160 6,230,449 

.oJ'POrt 3,435,908 3,570,780 3,450,196 3,806,67 1 3,769,259 4,091 ,032 3,986,357 4,329,383 4,589,767 
Solid Waste Recyding 1,945,629 1,919,318 1,944,210 

Total business-type activities 176,253,673 197,378,902 185,295,681 185,298,119 192,349,368 189.417,936 201,844,859 222,1 01,812 224,823,123 
Total primary govemment $ 259,971 ,813 S 285,191,162 $ 275,350,292 S 283.433,837 S 303,847.502 , 312,634,495 $ 335,640,290 $ 354,681,217 S 368.433,397 

Program Revenues 
Govemmental ActivUies 
AdministrtJtion 
Charges for services S 652,799 $ 670,1 44 $ 719.892 $ 728,451 S 702,004 S 800,275 S 755,883 S 868,572 $ 830,793 
Operating grants and contributions 1,720 5,325 5,215 7,501 5,632 32,298 63,268 7.264 30,000 
Capital grants and contributions 

Public Safety 
Charges for services 1,541,852 1,883,207 2,138,108 2,661,753 4.446,932 3,708,443 3,213,74 1 3,512,402 3,648,358 
Operating grants and contributions 822,450 1,1 13,043 1,345.821 2,489,423 480.476 673,108 309,869 1,1 11,218 2,764,654 
Capital grants and contributions 183,122 133,554 5,750 514,389 367,540 95,867 45, 154 33,802 5,408 

Environmental Protection 
Charges for services 38,943 52,591 66,150 23.956 80,998 40,785 3,416,607 3,494,076 5,321,692 
Opernting gronts and contributions 61 ,000 2,259,339 2,303,890 2,330,984 75,000 
Capital grants and contribu tions 520,597 

Transportation 
Charges for services 1,206,998 1,146,925 1,454,034 1.466,881 537.081 1,224,243 882,698 1,048,358 924.384 
Operating grants and contributions 4,191,727 3.919.568 3,920,822 4,254,601 3,833.510 5.710,433 5,954,823 5,545,029 5.509,654 
Capital grants and contributions 98,785 13,446 155,409 85.372 96,757 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
Changes in Net Assets 
last Nine Fiscal Years 

(accrual basis of accounting) 
(Unaudited) 

Schedule 2 
FlsC31 Year 

2002 2003 2004 200S 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 
Economic and physical development 
Charges for services $ 1,208,072 S 79,387 S 1,073,627 S 715,099 S 57,172 , $ $ S 70,995 
Operatlng grants and contributions 2,739,278 3,262,985 1,792,478 2,743,690 1,742,466 1,778,640 2,364,282 1,826,540 2,396,648 
capital grants and contributIons 1,526,900 2,060,539 2,423,512 1,163,385 338,684 3O,9' 3 383,277 

Recreation and community f:Jci/ities 
Charges for services 376,497 394,012 436,338 756,482 4,1 51,275 3,751 ,071 3,873,021 4,012,612 4,428,944 
Operating grants and contributions 70,1 18 309,789 107,587 3,572,557 60,386 45,213 56,292 35,844 105,460 
capital grants and contributions 1,162.746 992,963 2,161,508 2,622,609 781,4 10 1,312,932 2,642,557 

Total governmental activities programs 13,094,576 12,970,530 15,755,468 22,988,265 21,149,277 23,919,355 24,515,031 25,255,918 29,755,178 

Business-type activities: 
Electric 

Charges tor services 139,814,919 145,617,727 141.981,920 146,069.329 155,773,020 159,647,302 166,899,655 169,451,426 173,192,801 
Operating grants and contributions 
Capital grants and contributions 1,596,355 3,632,702 116 ,186 951,384 178,965 977,641 405,586 1,044,143 1,407,440 

Water and wastewater 
Charges for services 43,703,832 43.ooe.o35 45,282,126 47,044 ,634 51,508,272 54,520,1 83 57,080,057 64,945,746 75,4 19,483 
Operating grants and contributions 
Capital grants and contributloos 7.184,899 8.605.351 8.029,173 13,900,547 14,125,818 16,730,748 14.452,981 11.598.860 22.835,906 

Transit 
Charges for services 1.058.298 1.128.706 642,658 836,084 626.623 801,186 774,345 801.967 839,490 
Operating grants and contributions 1,541,766 1,553,753 1,888.267 1.900,622 2.097.336 1,922,181 2,149,594 2,681,466 2,337,806 
Capital grants and contributions 280,513 234,864 269,732 417,242 63,915 157,361 2.101,416 681,684 1.733,733 

'"-Charges for services 1,977,915 2,353,279 2,119,754 2.406,129 2.649.936 3,035,265 3,224,170 3,942,522 3,735,652 
Operating grants and contributloos 118,315 14,799 114,380 146,092 1,040,076 
capi tal grants and contributions 2.193,558 1,991,289 2,002,812 2,418,216 1,1 45,829 3,565.784 822,403 6,293,746 3,752,977 

Solid Waste Recycling 
Charges (or services 2 ,521,038 2 ,258.683 
Operating grants and contributions 263,070 296, 121 
Capital grants and contributions 

Total business-type activities program 199,352,055 208,244,041 202.547.427 215.944,187 228,57 1,714 24 1.472,031 246,056,301 264,225,868 288,650, 168 
Total primary govemment program $ 212,446,631 , 221,214,57 1 $ 218.302.895 , 238,932,472 S 249,720,991 $ 265,391,386 S 272,571,332 , 289,481,786 S 318,605.346 

Net (expenseVrevenue 
Govemmental activities $ (70,623,564) S (74,841,730) S (74,299.'43) S (75, 147.433) , (90,348,857) $ (99.297.204) , (109,280,400) , (107,323.487) , (113,855.096) 
Business-type activities 23,098,382 10,865,139 17,251,746 30,646,068 36,222,346 52,054,095 46,211,442 42,124,056 64,027,045 

Total primary government net expense S (47,525,182) S (63,976,591) S (57,047,397) , (44,501,365) S (54,126,511) S (47,243,109) , (63,068,958) , (65,199,431) S (49,828,051 ) 
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City of Fayetteville. North Carolina 
Changes in Net Assets 
last Nine Fiscal Years 

(accrual basis of accounting) 
(Unaudited) 

Schedule 2 
Fiscal Yc.1r 

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 

Gene...,,1 Revenues <lnd Other Ch<lnges In Net Assets 
Governmental activi ties 

Ad valorem taxes S 33,613,509 S 34,094 ,378 S 38,495,985 S 39,344,522 $ 47,823,150 $ 52,929,323 S 54,295,319 S 55,406,617 S 58,518,101 
Other taxes 24 ,432,855 28, 116,8 17 31,127,455 34,023,971 35,863,026 41,307,1 38 43,193,0 17 42,524,787 44,482,890 
Unrestricted grants and contributions 370,032 547,091 569,087 571,232 578,491 788,290 801,099 8 14,901 295,870 

Interest eamed on investments 1,637,590 1,197,764 507,806 1,752,579 2,327 ,165 4,050,088 3,704,974 2,212,64 1 1,157,788 
Miscellaneous 577,662 878,760 385,105 908,208 169,866 474 ,945 627,860 865,351 652,055 
Gain on S3le of capital assels 162,992 199,853 254 ,875 240,465 210,072 

Transfers 7, 142,178 7,902,191 8,171,258 8,4 18,200 8,601,682 7, 150,056 3,307,854 3,365,213 5,409,378 
Spedalltem 89,555,831 
Total govemmental activities 67,773,826 72,737,001 79,256,696 85,018,712 185,082,203 106,899,693 106,184,998 105,430,975 110,726,154 
Business-type activities: 

Interest eamed on investments 2,011,865 1,723,505 1,493, 186 2,018,035 3,137,307 5,173,628 5,392,197 4,810,234 3,133,521 
Miscellaneous 84,297 84.297 237.004 280,640 84,297 366,079 90,271 88,058 87,444 
Transfers (7.142.178) (7,902.19 1) (8,17 1.258) (8,418,200) 7.936 12.319 (3,307,854) (3,366,213) (5,409.378) 
Gain on $;lIe of capital assets 1,643 22,459 40,942 
Extraordinary Item 702,500 (8.601 .682) 

Tolal business-type activities (5.046.016! !6,094,389) (5,738,568~ 16,1 19,5251 15.372.142) 2,176.257 1,554,538 (2. 147,4711 
Total primary government S 62.727.8 10 S 66,642,612 • 73,518,128 • 78,899,187 S 179,710.061 S 108,361,255 S 106,985,513 S 108.578.683 

Change In Net Assets 
Govemmental activities $ (2,649,738) S (2,104,729) S 4,957,553 S 9,871,279 S 94,733,346 • 7,602,489 S (3.095,402) S (1,892.5 12) $ (3,128,942) 
Business-type activities 18,052,366 4,770,750 11.5 13,178 24.526,543 30,850,204 50,456,065 48,387.699 43.678.594 61,879,574 
Tot.;!1 pri rrory government • 15,202,628 • 2.666,021 S 16,470,731 S 34.397,822 S 125,583,550 • 58,058,554 • 45,292,297 S 41,786.082 • 58,750,632 

Note: The City of Fayetteville, North Garolina Implemented GASa Statement 34 In Fiscal Year 2002, In the future, up to nine (9) prior years wi ll be presented with the current 
year to Illustrate the City'S financial performance over time, 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carol ina 
Fund Balances of Governmenta l Funds 

Last Nine Fiscal Years 
(modified accrual basis of accounting) 

(Unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 
2002 2003 2004 200 5 2006 2007 

General Fund 
Reserved $ 10,953 ,223 $ 7,177 ,302 $ 13,309,127 $ 12,567,572 $ 14,222,851 $ 19,688,249 
Unreserved 19,237 ,973 22 ,078,476 28,495,129 31,396,476 29,273,909 29,962,047 

Total General Fund $ 30 ,1 91,1 96 S 29,255 ,778 S 41,804,256 $ 43,954,048 $ 43,496,760 $ 49,650,296 

Rec reational and Cultural Fund 
Reserved $ S S $ $ $ 
Unreserved: 

Capital Projects 

Tota! Recreational and Cultural Fund $ $ $ S $ $ 

All other governmental funds 
Reserved $ 5,852 ,530 $ 6,493 ,91 4 $ 6,991,081 $ 10,827,524 $ 8,445,918 S 5,285,867 
Unreserved, reported in nonmajor: 

Special Revenue 3,664,707 2,915,937 2,217 ,571 2,332,563 2,402 ,644 3,569 ,224 
Capital Projects 5,372,153 6,246,683 4,213 ,485 12,668,139 8,842,547 8,024,751 

Total aU other govemmental funds $ 14,889,390 $ 15,656.534 $ 13,422,137 S 25,828,226 $ 19,691,109 S 16,879,842 

Note: The City of Fayetteville, North Carolina implemented GASB Statement 34 in Fiscal Year 2002, In the future, up to nine (9) prior years will be presented with the current year 
to illustrate the City's financial performance over time, 
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Schedule 3 

2008 2009 201 0 

$ 17,226,906 $ 17,984,934 S 17,972,528 
35,781,835 27,934 ,081 28 ,616,050 

$ 53,008,741 $ 45,919 ,015 $ 46,588,578 

$ $ 1,328,058 S 633 ,469 

87 ,800 702,865 

$ $ 1,415,858 $ 1,336,334 

$ 4,150,365 $ 10,100,793 $ 17,707,054 

3,384,703 2,893 ,694 3,526,252 
5,148,775 4,691,155 2,510,568 

$ 12,683 ,843 S 17,685,642 S 23,743,874 



City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(modified accrual basis of accounting) 

(Unaudited) 
Schedule 4 

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 20 10 
Revenues 
Ad valorem taxes $ 32,172,931 $ 33,134,815 S 33,720,313 S 38,431 ,862 S 39,622,100 S 41 ,590,985 S 58,574,670 $ 54,765,677 S 55,553,012 $ 58,699,957 

Other taxes:: 27,642,970 24,850,324 27 ,850,682 32,436,194 34,038,280 35,870,262 43,544,220 48,774,154 9,317,809 8,637,309 
InlergrNernmental 8,687,256 7,743,589 8,516,675 9,037,443 14,751 ,881 12,418,414 13,824,51 1 13,009,887 

Unrestricted intergrNernmental 2 40,367,061 41 ,927,788 

Restricted intergovernmental :: 11,828,229 16,964,952 
Other functional 3,256,015 3,124,847 3,494,800 3,925,901 5,003,604 6,015,649 5,475,181 4,693,419 

Permits and fees:: 1,889,966 1,880,274 

Sales and services:: 3,263,932 3,182,815 
Miscellaneous 1,759,276 2,107,275 2,153,238 2,386,356 3,903,274 5,1 17,571 4,543,675 2,820,264 3,108,912 2,837,133 
Interest earned on investments 3,158,392 1,596,673 1,067,942 422,368 1,558,697 1,892,615 3,695,228 3,030,672 1,748,164 929,799 

Total revenues 76,676,840 72,557,523 76,803,650 86,640,124 98,877,836 102,905,496 129,657,485 127,094,073 127,077,085 135,060,027 

Expenditu res 
Administration 9,176,326 8,469,918 8,025,614 10,685,384 11 ,600,043 13,235,51 1 18,261,328 17,796,870 17,473,782 19,865,248 
Public safety 37,731,170 37,257,328 38,812,855 41,790,686 44,146,545 50,841,673 56,216,348 57,479,621 60,041,364 65,840,294 
Environmental protection 6,828,421 5,889,085 7,591,417 8,605,600 6,500,062 8,970,319 10,075,527 10,439,749 10,328,809 9,493,404 
Transpor1ation 8,627,325 3,191 ,279 3,191 ,898 4,563,545 4,581 ,644 4,532,369 7,559,579 7,697,136 6,111,323 7,437,390 
Economic and physical development 8,m,075 7,373,482 6,481 ,655 3,957,976 6,792,621 5,676,733 1,079,198 4,568,228 4,362,581 4,685,441 
Recreation and community faci li ties 6,990,847 5,914,160 5,981,71 0 5,509,353 8,776,825 9,868,885 13,491 ,872 10,918,848 11,858,912 12,025,817 
Capital outlay I 8 ,730,230 7,178,066 12,201,995 20,236,090 17,185,840 19,409,969 14,848,256 13,030,239 12,383,988 
Debt Service 

Principal 4,500,741 4,969,074 4,747,232 5,240,181 6,997,440 8,478,146 9,159,387 8,681 ,196 8,521 ,585 9,255,316 
Interest and fees 3,909,097 2,959,845 2,81 1,461 2,506,413 2,262,1 03 2,956,522 2,724,064 2,081,737 1,955,844 1,528,589 
Issuance costs 103,985 58,084 368,693 131 ,014 

Total expenditures 86,541,002 84,754,401 84,925,893 95,119,217 112,262,066 121 ,745,998 137,977,272 134,51 1,641 133,684,439 142,646,501 

Excess of revenues over 
(under) expendi tures (9,864,1 62) (12,196,578) (8,122,243) (8,479,093) (13,384,230) (18,840,502) (5,319,787) (7,417,568) (6,607,354) (7,586,474) 

Otherfinanc;ing soruc;cs (uses) 
Refunding bonds issued 9,188,034 3,815,605 21 ,261,589 7,896,115 
Proceeds from capital leases 8,016,688 785,283 1,162,548 8,070,428 3,104,407 3,834,415 4,537,000 3,303,940 6,550,809 
Transfers in 15,257,175 11,937,097 14,479,695 13,972,839 15,334,209 16,793,41 0 15,283,819 20,000,451 22,695,465 23,323,681 
Transfers out (6,853,081 ) (4,801,624) (6,907,096) (5,801,581) (5,916,009) (8,391 ,728) (8,158,763) (16,724,377) (17,007,152) (17,259,353) 

Sale or Capital Assets :: 246,972 210,072 
Paymenl to refunded bond escrow agent (5,469,212) (3,788,439) (6,265,297) (8,600,308) 
Proceeds from loans 1,250,598 
Premium on bonds 431 ,21 2 863,131 

Tolal other financing sources (uses) 16,420,782 7,920,756 12,453,969 16,268,852 27,950,111 12,236,097 11,662,056 6,580,014 5,935,285 14,234,745 

Net change in fund 
balances $ 6,556,620 S (4,276,122) S 4,331,726 $ 7,789,759 S 14,565,881 S (6,604,4052 S 3,342,269 S (837,5542 $ (672,069) S 6,648,271 

Debt service as a percentage of 
or noncapital expenditures 9,72% 10,43% 9.86% 9.41% 10,46% 10.94% 10.02% 8,99% 8,68% 9,15% 

Pre-GASB 34 capital outlay is not renected, 

Beginning fiscal year 2009, presentation or these revenue Items was changed to renect a more detailed breakdown, 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
Tax Revenues By Source, Governmental Funds 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(modified accrual basis of accounting) 

(Unaudited) 

Vehicle 
License 

Fiscal Year Ad Valorem Sales Tax Utili!X Taxes, Tax 
2010 $ 58,699,957 $ 30,789,881 $ 10,035, 192 

Intangible Tax 
Reimbursement 

$ 

Homestead 
Exemption 
$ 

Tax 
Reimbursements 

S $ 630 ,853 
2009 55,553,012 
2008 54,765,677 
2007 58,574,670 
2006 41 ,590,985 
2005 39,622,100 
2004 38,431,862 
2003 33,720,313 
2002 33,134,815 
2001 32,172,931 

29,628,044 
31,659,262 
30,488,647 
23,457,449 
22,543,521 
20,698,993 
16,876,147 
15,273,91 1 
16,160,376 

9,196,488 
8,072,068 
6,554,283 
5,602,548 
5,245,207 
5,121,788 
5,239,363 
3,033,407 
4,771,319 

580,752 
598,325 

, In fiscal year 2001 and 2003 telecommunications franchise tax were included in totals. 

40,584 
441,392 
691,865 

, Effective January " 2007, video programming broadcast services became subject to state sales taxes and proceeds are now 

reported with Utility Taxes. Only ancillary services remain subject to local cablevision franchise taxes after that date. 

l Effective January " 2008, separate local and state 911 taxes on wireline and wireless phone services were replaced by a consolidated 
state 911 tax. Tax revenues reported for fiscal year 2008 and prior reflect the combined total of the previous local and state taxes. 
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630,065 
635,993 
623,019 
533,750 
469,488 
444,521 
408,016 
401,327 
396,590 

$ 

Schedule 5 

Rental 
Cablevision and Property 

Privilege Other Franchise Gross Consolidated 
License Tax ,. , Receipts 911 Tax ' Total 

983,146 S 372,226 $ 477,886 $ 1,060,306 103,049,447 
1,013,929 380,944 441,381 1,1 38,897 97,982,760 

984,727 491,902 416,176 922,024 97,947,829 
920,196 1,243,013 391,124 1,064,599 99,859,551 
815,156 1,918,758 373,1 14 950,499 75,242,259 
731,719 1,547,289 344,913 996,840 71,501,077 
684,806 2,016,045 305,860 1,041,170 68,745,045 
691,861 1,249,399 302,685 1,055,952 59,543,736 
691,231 1,103,721 299,598 1,042,770 56,002,924 
637,682 1,217,802 269,824 1,017,601 57,974 ,899 



Fiscal 
Year Residential Commercial Industrial 
2010 $ 969,676,167 $ 762,559,263 $ 318,392,654 

2009 950,176,318 761,932,351 315,244,653 

2008 920,716,611 769,672,205 337,212,851 
2007 894,699,452 752,650,321 308,222,997 

2006 911,632,771 755,229,052 356,355,125 

2005 865,456,446 743,676,014 376,769,957 

2004 882,688,409 744,796,652 379, 140,092 

2003 884,780,318 738,115,702 390,164,851 

2002 800,907,102 717,171,311 410,832,605 

2001 838,894,493 715,848,858 422,770,504 

a Rate shown is for Residential Service- basic facilities charge. 
b Rate shown is for Residential Service-energy charge per kWh. 

City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
Revenue Base by Customer Class 

Charges for Services 
Electric Kilowatt Hours Sold 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Lighting Other 
$ 34,471,378 $ 60,706,464 

33,636,689 59,890,915 

34,359,901 59,073,420 

28,539,204 54,675,687 

27,855,361 53,069,016 

27,107,118 54,415,761 

26,154,369 53,410,167 

25,201,952 59,984,603 

15,061,079 68,714,828 

14,654,000 70,149,589 

P-8 

Total 
$ 2,145,805,926 

2,120,880,926 

2,121,034,988 

2,038,787,661 

2,104,141,325 

2,067,425,296 

2,086,189,689 

2,098,247,426 

2,012,686,925 

2,062,317,444 

Schedule 6 
Total Direct Rate 

Electric 
Base Usage Rateb 

Rate 3 first 500 kWh ea kWh> 500 
$9.90 $0.0825 $0.0896 

9.00 0.0750 0.0815 

9.00 0.0750 0.0815 

9.00 0.0719 0.0794 

9.00 0.0719 0.0794 

8.00 0.0710 0.0670 

8.00 0.0710 0.0670 

8.00 0.0710 0.0670 

8.00 0.0710 0.0670 

8.00 0.0710 0.0670 



City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Schedule 7 

Fiscal Estimated 
Year Public Less: Total City Actual Sales 

Ended Real Personal Services Tax Exempt Assessed General Taxable Assessment 
June 30 Property Property Property ' Real Property' Value Tax Rate Value Ratio ~ 

2010 4 $ 11,041,771,668 $ 1,638,183,540 $ 162,847,740 $ 111,810,830 12,730,992,118 $0.456 12,743,028,314 99.89% 

2009 8,663,471,270 1,699,962,644 144,941,408 76,918,867 10,431,456,455 0.530 12,384,609,990 81.72% 

2008 8,432,008,954 1,699,309,481 156,856,864 71,058,615 10,217,116,684 0.530 11 ,603,736,461 86.00% 

2007 8,166,720,922 1,634,081,615 172,573,842 74,375,245 9,899,001,134 0.530 10,853,177,565 89.65% 

2006 6,275,715,436 1,431 ,355,898 138,799,665 65,483,117 7,780,387,882 0.530 8,286,824,738 92.46% 

2005 6,119,634,059 1,207,511,007 133,171 ,846 63,057,620 7,397,259,292 0.530 7,500,121,924 98.33% 

2004 4 6,022,674,221 1,150,100,683 127,680,027 61,704,378 7,238,750,553 0.530 7,238,750,553 100.00% 

2003 5,101,782,633 1,196,714,445 120,570,113 6,419,067,191 0.530 6,742,981,286 94.03% 

2002 5,043,337,806 1,203,550,936 135,768,309 6,382,657,051 0.530 6,779,226,273 92.71% 

2001 4,874,168 ,452 1,146,688,353 134,301,127 6,155,157,932 0.530 6,367,786,028 95.82% 

Source: Cumberland County Tax Office 

Note: A revaluation of real property is required by North Carolina General Statutes at least every eight years. A County-wide revaluation of real property was effective with 
the tax levy for fiscal year 2009-2010. Property is assessed at actual value; therefore, the assessed values are equal to actual value. 

1 Public se/Vice companies' property includes real and personal property of utilities, railroad and buslines, etc. These assessments are made 
by the North Carolina Department of Revenue with no distinction between real and personal property. 

2 Exempt real estate only. Fiscal year 2000 through 2003 real property exemptions are reflected in real property. 
3 Estimated actual values and the ratio of total assessed value to total estimated actual value have been adjusted to reflect updated sales 

assessment ratio percentages from the North Carolina Department of Revenue. 

4 Denotes the year in which a revaluation was effective January 1 st and reflected in the following fiscal year's property value. 

Source: Cumberland County Tax Office 

P-9 



Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 
June 30 

2010 
2009 
2008 
2007 
2006 
2005 
2004 
2003 
2002 
2001 

City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Per $100 of Assessed Value) 

(Unaudited) 

Central 
City General Business Tax 

Tax Rate District Rate 
$0.456 $0.100 

0.530 0.100 
0.530 0.100 
0.530 0.100 
0.530 0.100 
0.530 0.100 
0.530 0.100 
0.530 0.100 
0.530 0.100 
0.530 0.100 

Schedule 8 

Overlapping Rates 1 

Cumberland County 

Countywide 
$0.766 

0.860 
0.880 
0.880 
0.880 
0.880 
0.880 
0.925 
0.925 
0.900 

Source: Cumberland County Tax Office 

1 Overlapping rates are those of local and county governments that apply to property 
owners within the City of Fayetteville. 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

Principal Property Taxpayers 

Ten Year Comparison 

(Unaudited) 

2010 ' 

Percentage of 
Taxable Assessed Total Taxable Taxable Assessed 

Taxpayer Value Rank Assessed Value Value 

Cumberland Associates $ 68,500,000 

Carolina Telephone & Telegraph $ 60,278,482 2 0.47% 56,908,113 

Fayettevi lle Publishing Company 22,942,342 8 0.18% 30,300,000 

UDRT of North Carolina 26,900,000 

NC Natural Gas Corporation 17,876,792 

Edward Rose Bldg Company 15,500,000 

Atlantic Southeast Airlines 12,763,396 

Thomas & Hollinshed 11 ,906,981 

Chason Ridge Partners LLC 11,780,377 

Heart of Fayetteville Motel Inc. 11,515,660 

Cross Creek Mall LLC 113,194,500 0.89% 
Centurion Aviation Services 48,350,000 3 0.38% 
Piedmont Natural Gas Co. Inc. 45,012,673 4 0.35% 
Wal-Mart 40,915,217 5 0.32% 
Hidden Creek Village 24,803,500 6 0.19% 
DORM Fayetteville Pavilion LLC 23,680 ,399 7 0.19% 

Eagle Point Village Apartments 22,919,500 9 0.18% 
Cross Creek Phase 1 LLC 21,519,399 10 0.17% 

$ 423,616,012 3.32% $ 263,951,319 

1 Assessed Valuations are as of January 1, 2009 and the associated tax levies were due in the fiscal year ended June 30,2010. 

2 Assessed valuations are as of January 1, 2000 and the associated tax levies were due in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001. 

Source: Cumberland County Tax Office 
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Schedule 9 

2001 2 

Percentage of 
Total Taxable 

Rank Assessed Value 

1 1.1 1% 
2 0.92% 
3 0.49% 
4 0.44% 
5 0.29% 
6 0.25% 

7 0.21% 
8 0.19% 

9 0.19% 
10 0.19% 

4.28% 



City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

Property Tax Levies and Collections 1 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 

Collected within the 

Schedule 10 

Fiscal Year of the Levy Total Collections to Date 

Fiscal 
Year Taxes Levied Collections 

Ended for the Percentage in Subsequent 

June 30 Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years Amount 

2010 $ 58,418,406 $ 57,126,777 97.79% $ $ 57,126,777 
2009 55,349,877 53,901,099 97.38% 965,299 54,866,398 

2008 54,216,530 52,738,807 97.27% 1,043,095 53,781,902 
2007 52,534,182 50,964,492 97.01% 1,165,135 52,129,627 

2006 2 41,311,088 39,855,571 96.48% 1,096,417 40,951,988 
2005 39,252,202 37,879,950 96.50% 1,076,690 38,956,640 

2004 38,404,079 36,806,753 95.84% 1,285,511 38,092,264 

2003 34,059,814 32,457,441 95,30% 1,296,700 33,754,141 

2002 33,878,837 32,405,548 95.65% 1,183,118 33,588,666 

2001 32,664,323 31,510,275 96.47% 933,142 32,443,417 

1 Schedule reflects the general tax levy only. 
2 Does not include $6,400,613 in 2005 real and personal property taxes related to the Phase V annexation cyeas 

since payment of these taxes will be due in three installments in fiscal years 2007 through 2009 as a result of 
legislation approved by the North Carolina General Assembly in May 2006. 

Source: Cumberland County Tax Office 

P-12 

Percentage 
of Levy 
97.79% 
99.13% 
99.20% 
99.23% 
99.13% 
99.25% 

99.19% 

99.10% 

99.14% 

99.32% 



GovernmcntZll Activities 

Fiscal Capitalized Notes 

Year Bondod Debt Leases PZlyable 

2010 $ 22,216,115 $ 13,863,293 $ 1,250,598 
2009 28,937,825 10,267,567 

2008 33,383,061 14,343 ,916 
2007 38,108,296 14,990 ,943 5,000 
2006 52 ,240,000 14,203,330 65,000 
2005 57,485,000 13,551,475 125,000 
2004 46,470,000 13,341,744 185,000 
2003 50,265,000 6,479,845 245,000 
2002 49,735,000 6,424,530 305,000 
2001 53,145,000 7,059,976 365,000 

$ 

City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Bus iness-!X.pe Activities 

GenerZlI 
ObligZltion 

Bonds Revenue Bonds Notes Payable 

6,453,885 $ 169,120,000 $ 17,951,198 
7,412,175 155,045,000 19,219,047 
9,041,939 167,735,000 20,486,896 

10,626.104 162,360,000 64,396,136 
2,705,000 172,565,000 136,357,559 
3,640,000 184,320,000 18,303,144 
4,585,000 194,630,000 11,867,713 

15,560,000 178,910,000 6,835,614 
18,335,000 170,915,000 7,215,371 
21,155,000 177 ,000,000 7,573,603 

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 

1 See schedule 16 for per capita personal income and popUlation d3ta. 

Schedule 11 

CZlpitlilized Total PrirmHY Percentage of 

LCliscs Government Personlll Incomo 1 Per CapitZl
1 

$ 98,191 $ 230,953,280 N/A 1,112 
220,881,614 N/A 1,217 
244,990,812 0.017% 1,350 
290,487,079 0 .013% 1,670 
378 ,135,889 0 .009% 2,894 
277 ,424,619 0.012% 2,120 
271,079,457 0.011% 2,074 
258,295.459 0.011% 2,086 
252,929,901 0.011% 2,036 
266,298,579 0.010% 2,195 



Fiscal 
Year 
2010 
2009 
2008 
2007 
2006 
2005 
2004 
2003 
2002 
2001 

City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

General Bonded Debt 

Outstanding 

Percentage of 
General Actual Total 

Schedule 12 

Obligation Total Primary Assessed Value of 

Bonds Revenue Bonds Government Property 1 Per Capita 2 

$ 28,670,000 $ 169,120,000 $ 197,790,000 1.55% 952 
36,350,000 155,045,000 191,395,000 1.83% 1,055 
42,425,000 167,735,000 210,160,000 2.06% 1,158 
48,735,000 162,360,000 211,095,000 2.13% 1,214 
54,945,000 172,565,000 227,510,000 2.92% 1,741 
61,125,000 184,320,000 245,445,000 3.32% 1,876 
51,055,000 194,630,000 245,685,000 3.39% 1,880 
65,825,000 178,910,000 244,735,000 3.81% 1,976 
68,070,000 170,915,000 238,985,000 3.74% 1,923 
74,300,000 177,000,000 251,300,000 4.08% 2,072 

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 

1 See Schedule 7 for property value data. 

2 Population data can be found in Schedule 16. 
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Governmental Unit 

Debt repaid with property taxes: 

Cumberland County 

Subtotal, overlapping debt 

City of Fayettevi lle direct debt 

Total direct and overlapping debt 

City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt 

For the fiscal year ending June 30,2010 

(Unaudited) 

Debt Outstanding 1 

$ 243,149,653 

Estimated Percentage 
Applicable 

61.64% $ 

$ 

Schedule 13 

Estimated share of 
Overlapping Debt 

149,881,146 

149,881,146 

37,330,006 

187,211 ,152 

Sources: Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentages provided by the Cumberland County Tax Administrator. Oebt 
outstanding provided by Cumberland County. 

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the City. This schedule 
estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and businesses of The City 
of Fayetteville. This process recognizes that, when considering the government's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt 
burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a 
resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping government. 

1 The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values. Applicable percentages were 
estimated by determining the portion of Cumberland County's taxable assessed value that is within the city's boundaries and dividing it by 
Cumberland County's total taxable assessed value. 
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Debt Limit 

Total net debt applicable 
10 limit 

Legal debt margin 

Total net debl appl1cable 10 the 
limit as a percentage of debt limit 

2001 2002 2003 

, 492,412,635 S 510,612,564 , 513,525,375 

S 89,298,579 , 82,014,901 S 79,385,459 

S 403.114,056 S 428,597,663 S 434,139,916 

18,13% 16,06% 15.46% 

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2010 

Assessed Value 

Debt Limit (8% of total assessed vatue) 

Debt applicable to limit 
Boodeddebt 
Noles payable 
Capitalized leases 

Subtotal 

Authotized and unissued debt 

Total Gross Debt 

Less: Stalulory deductions 

City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
Legal Debt Margin Information 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(amounts expressed in thousands) 

(Unaudited) 

2004 2005 

, 579, 100,044 S 591,780,743 S 

S 76,449,457 $ 93,104,619 , 
S 502,650,587 $ 498,676,124 S 

13.20% 15,73% 

Bonds issued and oustandlng (or water and sewer purposes 
AuthOrized and unissued debt 

Total amount of debt applicable to debt llmit 

Legal deb! margin 

P-16 

2006 2007 2008 

622,431,031 $ 791,920,091 , 817,369,335 , 
91,755,888 , 85.462,079 S 77,255,812 S 

530,675,143 S 706.458,012 , 740,113,523 S 

14,74% 10.79% 9.45% 

2009 

834,516,516 

65,836,614 

768,679,902 

7.89% 

Schedule 14 

2010 

S 1,018,479,369 

, 61,833,280 

S 956,646,089 

6.07% 

S 12,730,992,118 

s 

1,018,479,369 

28,670,000 
19,201,796 

13.961.484 
61,833.280 

61,833,280 

61,833,280 

956.646,089 



Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 
June 30 

2010 
2009 
2008 
2007 
2006 
2005 
2004 
2003 
2002 
2001 

Notes: 

Utility Less: 

City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

Pledged Revenue Coverage - Utility 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 

Net 
Service Operating Other Available Debt Service Requirements 5 

Charges Expenses 1 Adjustments2 Revenue Interest 3 

$ 237,548,315 $ 162,270,074 $ $ 75,278,241 $ 7,284,857 $ 
226,977,025 162,615,432 84,361,593 13,957,849 8,347,770 
222,216,687 150,679,743 36,339,385 107,876,329 55,559,241 6,821,608 
2 12,755,158 139,582,295 70,472,808 143,665,671 83,846,458 9,600,871 
207,281,292 145,596,083 34,298,883 95,984,092 39,499,358 9,263,089 
193,113,963 141,516,235 51,597,728 10,689,756 7,067,748 
187,284,046 140,800,522 46,463,524 7,794,756 7,164,702 
188,625,762 150,292,023 38,333,739 8,004,756 8,342,813 
183,518,751 131,502,090 52,016,661 6,484,756 8,945,847 
179,513,061 144,724,023 34,789,038 5,070,000 8,344,041 

1 Operating expenses include operating expenses and prepaid power supply amortization exclusive of depreciation and all other amortization. 

2 Other adjustments is the recognition of Prepaid Purchase Power Supply net of discount. 

3 Interest represents accrual based interest excluding capitalized interest. 

4 Coverage ratios do not represent coverage calculations as defined in the bond order. 

5 Debt service includes revenue bonds and notes and excludes G.O. bonds. 

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 
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Schedule 15 

Total Coverage 4 

19,552,706 $ 3.85 
22,305,619 2.89 
62,380,849 1.73 
93,247,327 1.54 
48,762,425 1.97 
17,757,504 2.91 
14,959,458 3.11 
16,347,569 2.34 
15,410,603 3.38 
13,414,041 2.59 



City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

Demographic and Economic Statistics 

Last Ten Calendar Years 

(Unaudited) 

Per Capita 
Personal Personal School Unemployment 

Year Population 1 Income Income 2 Enrollment 3 Rate 4 

2010 207,779 NlA NlA 52,187 N/A 
2009 181,481 N/A NlA 53,162 7.3% 

2008 181,453 $ 7,401 ,649,323 $40,791 52,912 5.1% 

2007 173,898 6,614,558,226 38,037 53,912 4.3% 

2006 130,646 4,614,155,428 35,318 53,403 4.3% 

2005 130,850 4,385,568,600 33,516 53,399 5.0% 

2004 130,692 3,911,480,868 29,929 53,092 5.9% 

2003 123,844 3,493,020,020 28,205 52,223 6.9% 

2002 124,247 3,341,001,830 26,890 51,725 7.5% 

2001 121,306 3,085,418,110 25,435 51,243 6.1% 

Sources: 
1. Office of State Budget and Management, Official Municipal Population Estimates for July 1, 2000 through July 1 t 2009 

2. Bureau of Economic Analysis, US Department of Commerce. Data presented for Cumberland County, NC. 2009 and 2010 data not yet 
available. 

3. Cumberland County Schools, District Profile. 

4. NC Employment Security Commission. Calendar year unemployment statistics for Fayetteville, NC for 2002 through 2009, and for 
Cumberland County, NC for 2001.2010 data not available. 

5. North Carolina Department of Revenue, Policy Analysis and Statistics Division. State Sales and Use Tax Statistics. 

(a) Muncipal tax reporting not available after June 30, 2009. 

(b)Tax: reporting changed to reflect only taxable sales effective July 2005. 

{c)Tax: reporting changed to add use tax effective December 2001 . 

P-18 

Schedule 16 

Retail Sales 

in Billions 5 

City County 
N/A(,) $3.077 

$2.348 2.844 
2.301 2.752 

2.253 2.747 

2.062 (b) 2.505 (b) 

2.987 3.684 

2.680 3.352 

2.421 3.018 
2.420 (c) 2.974 (c) 

2.499 3.023 



Employer 
Cumberland County Board of Education 
U.S. Dept. of Defense (Civil Service, Nonappropriated and Contracts) 
Cape Fear Valley Health System 
Wal-Mart Associates Inc 
Goodyear Tire & Rubber Company 
Cumberland County Government 
City of Fayetteville 
Fayetteville Technical Community College 
State of North Carolina 
Veterans Administration 
Black & Decker Manufacturing Company 
Purolator, Inc. 
U.S. Postal Service 
Fayetteville Technical Community College 

Total Employment (Ten Largest Civilian Employers) 

City of Fayetteville, North Caro lina 
Principal Employers 

Current Year and Nine Years Ago 
(Unaudited) 

2010 

Employees Rank 
6.782 1 
5,958 2 
4,850 3 
3.44B 4 
2,650 5 
2,486 6 
1,967 7 
1,400 8 
1,193 9 
1,013 10 

31.747 

2001 
Percentage of 
Total County 
Employment Employees Rank 

5.37% 8.220 2 
4.71 % 8,750 1 
3.84% 3,900 3 
2.73% 
2. 10% 3,700 4 
1.97% 2.620 5 
1.56% 1,7 10 6 
1.11% 
0.94% 
0.80% 

1,500 7 
1,300 8 
1,260 9 
1.250 10 

25.13% 34,210 

Source: Fayetteville-Cumberland County Chamber of Commerce, Fayetteville Economic Development Corporation, Ft. Bragg Public Affairs Office (Most recent data available) 

P-19 

Schedule 17 

Percentage of 

Total County 
Employment 

6.83% 
7.27% 
3.24% 

3.08% 
2.18% 
1.42% 

1.25% 
1.08% 
1.05% 
1.04% 

28.44% 



2001 

Administration 89 

Public Safety 650 

Environmental Protection 90 

Transportation 68 

Economic and physical development 11 

Recreation and community facilities 104 

Electric 236 

Internal Service 31 

Water 158 

Wastewater 132 

Transit 63 

Airport 14 

Solid Waste Recycling 

Total 1,646 

City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

Full-time City Government Employees by Function 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 

92 85 84 85 76 

662 674 751 800 806 

85 101 101 108 91 

64 54 53 60 57 

11 10 11 10 14 

98 78 120 127 115 

241 246 244 244 254 

28 30 32 45 45 

155 154 154 153 145 

131 133 134 135 133 

63 59 48 53 52 

13 13 13 15 14 

1,643 1,637 1,745 1,835 1,802 

Source: City Finance Office Annual Cost Allocation Plan and Public Works Commission 
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2007 2008 2009 2010 

92 97 91 91 

834 827 827 829 

123 145 118 136 

77 52 79 79 

18 15 15 19 

126 125 125 133 

254 237 244 255 

30 44 44 52 

139 193 194 194 

142 90 96 100 

50 54 54 61 

21 18 18 18 

1,906 1,897 1,905 1,967 



City of Fayettevil le, North Carolina 
Operating Indicators by Function/Program 

last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Schodule 19 

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 200a 2009 201. 

Public S3fcty 
Fire (' l 

Emergency responses 14,993 14,345 13,991 14,424 15,397 18,882 20,215 22,608 23,197 18,805 (
2) 

Fires extinguished 1,225 1,133 818 867 985 1,065 1,495 1,092 930 910 (:!) 

Fire inspections 4,633 3,286 4,860 3,358 3,369 4,584 4,824 6,052 4,159 3,647 m 

Police I'J 

Number or law violations: 
Physical arrests 7,445 8,282 7,912 7,688 7,864 7,807 8,522 9,372 7,968 6,663 Pl 

T raffie citations 26,639 37,440 28,653 26,944 22,171 19,225 28,339 39,240 35,484 32,570 Pl 

Warning citations 12,915 13,386 9,669 9,026 11,528 11 ,114 12,493 12,572 13,481 9,653 (3) 

Calls for service 186,305 189,468 174,353 185,200 191,331 199,314 204,549 215,797 215,127 172,313 1lJ 

Development Services 
Number or permits issued: 

Residential: 
New single family 189 188 277 335 388 691 586 362 317 401 
New multi.family (aptsloondominiums) 

Number or ooits 244 681 355 514 713 1,1 11 1,154 459 712 619 
Renovations 715 623 672 735 750 1,095 1,222 1,303 1,364 1,297 

Commercial: 
N.w 66 49 50 63 61 93 88 60 52 60 
Renovations 357 302 305 300 307 281 301 299 259 294 

Olher: 
Miscellaneous 11,709 11,117 11,789 11 ,653 12,716 16,695 16,057 14,824 16,731 13,518 
Yard sale 1,012 995 945 1,173 1,075 1,202 1,227 1,229 1,175 1,186 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
Operating Indicators by Function/Program 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Schedule 19 

2001 2002 2003 2004 200S 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 
Cultur.l.1 :md Rcerc:ation:al (4) 

Youth Spans participants 3,705 5,078 4,689 7,905 11,953 12,718 10,921 9,580 11,543 9,871 
Adult Sports participants 825 1,720 1,795 1,797 2,267 1,768 1,676 1,648 2,100 5,348 
Senior participants NlA NlA NlA 39,189 53,136 54,172 68,718 85,564 89,461 62,818 
Therapeutic participants NIA NlA NlA NIA NIA 26,926 30,993 34,169 38,996 2,348 
Park programs NlA NlA NlA NIA NlA 25,209 29,161 29,359 27,584 16,810 
Special events NIA NlA NlA NIA NIA 5,415 3,698 2,745 2,841 2,979 
PermiHed events NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA 44 35 61 66 82 
Mobile stagelbleacher rentals NIA NlA NlA NIA NIA 48 36 50 44 49 
Recreation centers NIA NIA NIA NlA NlA NIA 419,041 514,943 673,934 430,654 
Historical properties NlA NlA NlA NlA NlA NIA 14,499 15,713 22,354 15,401 
Picnic shelter rentals NIA NIA NlA NlA NlA NIA 28,597 30,041 29,211 31,772 
Festival Park NIA NIA NIA NlA NlA NIA 107,148 323,028 267,794 NIA 

Tier 1 Events (0·500 Allendees) NlA NIA NlA NlA NlA NlA NlA N/A NlA 6 
Tier 2 Events (501 ·2,500 Allendees) NlA NlA NlA NlA NlA NlA NlA NlA NlA 12 
Tier 3 Events (2,501+ Atlendees) NlA NIA NlA NlA NlA NlA NlA NlA NlA 15 

Tl':lnsport:ation 
Street Maintenance 

Streets mainlained (miles) 496,21 496,07 523.52 529.53 532.22 688.65 704.48 721.19 722.38 724.39 
Street resurfacing and cape sealing (miles) 15.05 14.54 9.58 6.89 12.15 8.82 13.29 14.68 20.42 31 .77 
Number or traffic signals 

maintained (~) 162 162 166 170 169 175 178 178 205 225 

Engineering 
Driveway permits (reSidential) NIA NlA 255 217 348 433 581 323 310 378 
Driveway permits (commercial) NIA NlA 52 40 66 33 75 43 40 23 

Public Uti l ities 
Water System: 

Water main breaks 217 157 155 126 152 119 128 146 130 180 
Average dally consumption (Mgals) (6) 22,677 22,046 20,933 20,524 20,635 21,850 21,675 22,879 22,450 22,423 
Peaks (MGD) (7) (9) 38.9 33.5 33.3 30.8 33.4 32,6 37.0 38.4 34.9 37.2 
Total sold (Mgals) (0) 7,867,876 7,843,308 7,303,494 7,039,476 7.136,082 7,561,199 7,555,333 7,894,590 7,707,256 7,749,106 



City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
Operating Indicators by Function/Program 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

2001 2002 2003 2004 200S 2006 
Sewer System: 

Main breaks 61 89 175 122 149 208 
Average daily consumption (Mgals) (6) 15,015 15,221 14,955 14,941 15,337 15,810 
Peaks (MGO) m (til 24.1 23.1 27.0 32.0 28.1 26.6 
Total sold (Mgals) ((l) 5,463,296 5,541 ,613 5,458,456 5,453,295 5,583,643 5,754,784 

Electric System: 

Electric outages (minutes) 2,952,259 4,925,916 10,376,012 7,279,107 3,449,900 3,450,039 
Peaks (MVV) (7) (~) 437,0 441.4 443.4 440.1 439.3 474.5 
Total Kwh sold (lOJ 1,986,525,100 1,937,714,341 2,047,025,958 2,041,587,543 2,022,146,431 2,060,681,493 
Average daily consumption (Kwh) (lIl) 5,650,185 5,514,211 

Airport (II 

Number or enplaned passengers 131,286 129,705 
Number or deplaned passengers 133,018 134,070 

(1) Statislics fOf the fire, police and airport functioos are based on calendar years 
(2) Stallstics rOf the Fire Department for 2010 are reflected through September 30, 2010 
(3) Statistics rOf the Police Department for 201 0 are reflected through October 6, 2010. 
(4) Statistics for 2005 and beyond reflect the merger 01' Cumberland County and 

City 01' Fayeueville Parks and Recreation Departments 

(5) Renects the number of lraffic signals maintained by the City 01' Fayetteville 

(6) Mgals .. 1,000 gallons 

(7) Renects highest monthly average 

(8) MGO .. 1,000,000 gallons per day 
(9) MVV .. megawatts 

(10) Kwh .. kitowalt hours 

(11) Statist ics for the Airport for 2010 are renected through August 31, 2010. 

Source: tnformalion p rOofided by various city departments and Public Works Commission 

5,748,623 5,717,142 5,664,179 5,764,n1 

120,651 158,782 153,524 153,164 
120,720 156,626 150,675 154,en 
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2007 20" 2009 2010 

150 156 291 342 
16,026 16,509 16,338 16,436 

27.9 27.7 915.0 861 .8 
5,837,838 6,014,627 5,953,806 5,999,105 

2,079,483 3,016,526 2,210,508 2,296,534 
462.5 476.6 459,5 462.4 

1,993,810,584 2,073,630,914 2,074,038,439 2,139,521,914 
5,585,720 5,811,055 5,810,633 5,878,920 

175.432 199,438 229,480 168,879 1111 

174,967 197,092 229,993 165,996 (11) 



City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
Capita l Assets Statistics by Function 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Schedule 20 

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 

Public Safety 
Fire 

Number of stations 10 10 11 13 13 15 15 16 16 16 

Police 
Number of stations 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 

Cultural and Recreational 
Mini parks (.5 - 3 acres) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 13 12 12 12 12 
Neighborhood parks (7 - 15 acres) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 13 14 14 14 14 
Community parks (30 - 50 acres) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 7 6 6 6 6 
Sports complexes (40 - 80 acres) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 2 2 2 2 2 
Green spaces N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 7 8 8 8 8 
Neighborhood school-parks N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 32 34 34 34 34 
Community school-parks N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 1 
Linear parks N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 3 3 3 3 3 
Special use parks N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 12 6 7 7 7 
Program sites N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 8 8 8 8 8 
Regional parks (100 - 250 acres) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 4 3 3 3 3 
Community center with gym N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 16 16 16 16 
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
Capital Assets Statistics by Function 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Schedule 20 

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 
Public Utilities 

Water System: 

Miles of water main 1,123.4 1,146.9 1,162.1 1,179.3 1,198.2 1,229.0 1,245.0 1,278.5 1,296.3 1,316.4 
Number of new service 

connections 1,650 2,027 3,284 2,300 2,360 2,962 3,154 2,285 1,220 616 
Maximum daily capacity of 

treatment plant (MGD)(l) 50.0 50.0 50.0 57.5 57.5 57.5 57.5 57.5 57.5 57.5 
Storage capacity (MGD) (1) 36.1 36.1 36.1 36.1 36.1 36.1 36.1 36.1 36.1 36.1 

Sewer System: 

Number of new service 
connections 2,214 2,363 2,253 2,408 2 ,299 3,142 3,006 2,260 1,752 317 

Miles of sanitary/storm sewer 967.9 1,005.4 1,021 .3 1,039.8 1,051.0 1,092.0 1,103.0 1,132.5 1,149.7 1,231.9 
Maximum daily capacity of 

treatment plant (MGD) (1) 36.0 41.0 41.0 41.0 41.0 4 1.0 41.0 41.0 46.0 46.0 

Electric System: 
Number of new service 

connections 451 966 1,051 1,251 1,426 2,245 1,744 1,151 471 650 

Distribution line circuit miles 2,321.00 2,401.00 2,609.95 2,572.00 2,750.50 2,781.86 2,962.40 2,982.10 2,986.88 1,305.49 (2) 

Transportation 
Street Maintenance 

Streets maintained (miles) 496.21 496.07 523.52 529.53 532.22 688.65 704.48 721.19 722.38 724.39 
Number of traffic signals (3) 27 27 27 27 27 29 28 28 28 28 

(1) MGD = 1,000,000 galions per day 
(2) Reflects correction of presentation of previous data 

(3) Reflects the number of traffic signals owned by the City of Fayetteville 

Source: Information provided by various city departments and Public Works Commission 
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CERTlFmo PUBLIC 
ACCOUNTANTS & 
CONSULTANTS 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER 
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

The Honorable Mayor 
and Members of the City Council 

City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund , and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Fayetteville, North Carolina, (the "City") as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements and have 
issued our report thereon dated November 15, 2010. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting as a basis 
for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial 
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over 
financial reporting . 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial 
reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined 
above. 

Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and 
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the organization, 
members of the City Council, and federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

CHERRY, BEKAERT & HOLLAND, L.L.P. 

~ &eJwhl * ttWWNi W 
Fayetteville , North Carolina 
November 15, 2010 
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC 
ACCOUNTANTS & 
CONSULTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH 
MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND THE STATE SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION ACT 

The Honorable Mayor 
and Members of the City Council 

City of Fayetteville , North Carolina 

Compliance 
We have audited the compliance of the City of Fayetteville, North Carolina, (the "City") with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OM B) Circular A-133 
Compliance Supplement and the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, issued by the Local 
Government Commission, that could have a direct and material effecl on each of its major federal programs for 
Ihe year ended June 30, 2010. The City's major federal programs are identified in the summary of audilor's 
results seclion of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs . Compliance with the 
requiremenls of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the 
responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City's compliance 
based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Those standards, 
OMB Circular A-133, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance with those requirements and performing such 
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City's compliance with 
those requirements. 

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, wi th the compliance requirements referred to above that 
could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2010. 

Internal Control Over Compliance 
The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In 
planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over compliance with requirements 
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine the auditing 
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control 
over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the City's internal control over compliance. 
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a 
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibili ty that material 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented , or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis. 

Our considerat ion of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control th at might be deficiencies, 
significan t deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 

This report is intended sole ly for the information and use of management, others within the organizat ion, 
members of the City Counci l, and federal and State award ing agencies and pass-through en tities, and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

CHERRY, BEKAERT & HOLLAND, L.L.P. 

Fayetteville, North Carolina 
November 15, 2010 
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CERTIPIED PUBLIC 
ACCOUNTANTS & 
CONSULTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH 
MAJOR STATE PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

APPLICABLE SECTIONS OF OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND THE STATE SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION 
ACT 

The Honorable Mayor 
and Members of the City Council 

City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

Compliance 
We have audited the compliance of the City of Fayetteville, North Carolina, (the "City") with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, issued by 
the Local Government Commission, that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major State 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2010. The City's major State programs are identified in the summary of 
auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs . Compliance with the 
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major State programs is the 
responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City's compliance 
based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; applicable sections of OMB Circular A-133 as described 
in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. 
Those standards, applicable sections of OMB Circular A-133, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major State 
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance with those 
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We 
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal 
determination of the City's compliance with those requirements. 

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above that 
cou ld have a direct and material effect on each of its major State programs for the year ended June 30, 2010. 

Internal Control Over Compliance 
The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, con tracts and grants applicable to State programs. In 
planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over compliance with the 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major State program to determine the auditing 
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control 
over compliance with applicable sections OMB Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit Implementation Act, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over compliance. 
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a State program on a 
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a State program will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected , on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses , as defined above. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the organization, 
members of the City Council, and federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not 
intended to be and shou ld not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

CHERRY, BEKAERT & HOLLAND, L.L.P. 

~WwiNt-~W 
Fayetteville, North Carolina 
November 15, 2010 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 

SECTION I. Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

Material weakness(es) identified 

Significant Deficiency(s) identified 
that are not considered to be 
material weaknesses 

Noncompliance material to financial 
statements noted 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major federal programs: 

Material weakness(es) identified 

Significant Deficiency(s) identified 
that are not considered to be 
material weaknesses 

Noncompliance material to federal 
awards 

Yes ---.2L No 

Yes _ X_ None reported 

Yes ---.2L No 

Yes ---.2L No 

Yes ---.2L None reported 

Yes ---.2L No 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major federal programs: Unqualified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are 
required to be reported in accordance 
with Section 510(a) of Circular A-133 

Identification of major federal programs: 

Yes 

CFDA Numbers 
20.106 

Names of Federal Program or Cluster 
Airport Improvement Program 

---.2L No 

66.458 
97.044 
14.218, 14.253 
14.248 

ARRA-Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Funds 
Assistance to Firefighters Grant 

16.710 
16.738 

ARRA-Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants Cluster 
Community Development Block Grants Section 108 Loan Guarantees 
ARRA-Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grants 
ARRA-Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish 
between Type A and Type B Programs ~m728 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? _ X_ Yes No 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 

State Awards 

Internal control over major State programs: 

Material weakness(es) identified 

Significant Oeficiency(s) identified 
that are not considered to be 
material weaknesses 

Noncompliance material to State awards 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

_X_ No 

~ None reported 

~ No 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major State programs: Unqualified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are 
required to be reported in accordance 
with the State Single Audit 
Implementation Act 

Identification of major State programs: 

Program Name 
Powell Bill 

Yes _X_ No 

State Aid to Airports Program - West GA Ramp Rehabilitation 
NC Veterans Park 

Section II. Financial Statement Findings 

None reported . 

Section III. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

None reported . 

Section IV. State Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

None reported . 
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None reported. 

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 
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CITY OF FAYETIEVlllE, NORTH CAROLINA 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and Slate Awards 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 

GRANTORlPASS·THROUGH 
GrantorlPr09ram TiUe 

US DEPARTMENT Of HOUSING & URBAN PEVELOPMENT 

Community Development Block Grant Clus ter 

COBG En~tlement Grant FY2007-2008 
COBG Entitlement Grant FY2008-2009 

ARRA· COBG En~tlement Grant (COBG·R) 

HOME Inves tment Partnership Program 

fY2oo1·2002 
fY2ooHOO5 
FY2005-2006 
FY2006-2007 
FY2oo7·2008 
FY2008-2009 

Community Development e:ock Grant Section 108 Loan Guarillltee 

Homeless prevention and Rapid Re·housingE!2g~ 

ARRA - 2009 HPRP 

Economic DevelOpment Initiative - Special prolect NelghlJ.orhpod 
Initiative and Miscellaneous Grants 

"~l~tary Business Park 

US DEPARTMENT OF THE ItHERJOR 

National Park Service 
WayfirKfng Signage 

Pass through from /\IC Department of Cultural Resources Office 
Fayetteville Modem ArUljlecture SUI" .. ey 

US DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

Pass through from Cumbuland County, NC 
Jus~ce Assislance Granl 
Justice Assistance Grant 
ARRA· Justice Assistance Grant 
Justice Assis lance Grant 

Office of Justice Programs 
ARRA - COPS Hiring Grant 
COPS Techno:ogy Grant 

Bu~etprool Ves.t Partrlership 

FBIO .. ertlme Reimbursemenls 

Alcohol, Tobacco, and Firearms OJertime Reimbllfsemenls 

Organized Crime and Drug Enforcement Task Force 

US MarshaK Service 

Drug Enlmcemenl Adm;nisLra tion 

Federal Forfeiture Fund ·ICE 
Federal Forfe;ture Fund· OEA 

Pass through from NC Governors Crime Commission 
Department of Crime Control and Public Safety 

Gangs Across the Carofinas Tran:n9 Conference '09 
PSN Anti-Gang: Operation Ceasefire FY08 
PSN Anti-Gang: Operation Ceasefire FY09 
PSN Anti-Gang: Operation Ceasefire FYl0 

Federal 
CEDA 

Number 

14,218 
14.218 
14.218 

14,253 

14,239 
14,239 
14,239 
14,239 
14,239 
14,239 

14,239 

14,248 

14,257 

14.25 1 

NiA 

15.904 

16.738 
16,738 
16,738 
16.738 

16.710 
16.710 

16.607 

16.000 

16.000 

16.000 

16.000 

16.000 

16.000 
16.000 

16.738 
16.609 
16.609 
16.609 

0 -1 0 

Statel 
Pass·through 

Grantor's 
Number 

8-07-MC-37-OOO5 
8-08-MC·37-OOO5 

8-09-MY-37-0005 

M-W-MC-37-0203 
M-04-MC-37-0203 
M·05-MC-37-0203 
M-06-MC·37-0203 
M·07-MC-37-0203 
M-08-MC-37-0203 

8-07-MC-37-0005 

S·09-MY-37-000B 

8-06-SP-NC·OOO7 

37·08-PA·4030 

NiA 

2007·DJ·BX-0379 
2008-DJ·BX-0492 
2009-S8-B9-0936 
2009-DJ·BX·0396 

2009RJW)(0060 
2009CKWX0081 

026-1-09--006-BH·205 
026-1·07--OO1·Bl·226 
026-1-08--001·AZ-076 
026-1·07-OQ1·AZ·725 

Federal (Oirett 
& Pass-through) 

EXpenditures 

S 447,533 
1163,875 
1611408 

63713 
63,713 

76,752 
53,058 

216,722 
100,014 
41,005 

134 058 
621,609 

750000 

750000 

96 194 
W,194 

152337 
152337 

63458 
63458 

5500 
5500 

1,685 
15,698 

456,822 
117706 
591911 

201,354 
99591 

300 9-\5 

6614 

13527 

952 1 

4,137 

24115 

15601 

75,219 
37827 

113046 

66,339 
1,925 
2,676 
9734 

80674 

State 
Expenditures 

Tota l 
EXpenditures 

447,533 
1 163875 
1611408 

63713 
63713 

76,752 
53,058 

2 16,722 
100,014 
41 ,005 

134 058 

621.609 

750 000 

750000 

96,194 
96,194 

152337 
152337 

63 458 
63458 

55<JO 
5500 

1,685 
15,698 

456,822 
117706 
591,91 1 

201,354 
99 591 

300 "5 

6814 

13.527 

9521 

4137 

24115 

15601 

75.219 
37827 

113046 

66,339 
1,925 
2.676 
9734 

80674 



CITY OF FAYETTEVill E, NORTH CAROLINA 
Schedu le of Expend itures of Federal and State Awa rds 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 

GRANTORlPASS·THROUGH 
GrantorlProgram Title 

OFFICE OF JUVENILE JUSTICE AND DELINQUENCY PREVENTION 
Pus through from Cal Ripken, Sr. Foundation 

2010 Badges lor Baseball Program 

U.S DEPARTMENT OF HEAlTH AND HUMAN SERV1CES 
Special Programs for the Aging 

Pass Thru NC Department of Health & Human Services 
Senior Citizens SefV~ Center 

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 
Office of Energy Effickln.::y & Renewable Energy 

ARRA· Energy EffICiency Coosel'\lation Block Grant 

US DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

Federal Aviation Administration 
Airport Improvement Program 

Airport Fire Training Facility 
Airport Improvement Projetts 
Airport Airfie~d lighting Vault Improvements Phase II • Constructioo 
Airport Rurr",ay 4f22 Rehabi'itation Phase II· Coostnxtion 
Airport Rehabilitate Aircraft Rescue and Fife Frghting Bui~ding, Phase I 
Airport Rehabilitate Aircraft Rescue and Fife Fighting Bui:dTng. Phase II 

Passed through NC Dept of Transportation 

Federal Highway Administration 
Enhaocement Agreement· Depot 
ReillylCliffdaleiRamsey Sidewa'ks 

Federa! Transportation Administration 

Preventative Mamtenar.ce & American .... im Oisab!1ities A.::t 
Preventali'le Maintenance & AmeOCiln .... Im Oisab-Jities Act 
Cap:tal Grants; 

Plarlnirlg Grants; 

US Deo3rtmerlt of Homeland Security 
Hannat (Equipment Gran!) 2006 
Hallllat (Equipment Granl) 2007 
HaUTIal (Equipment Granl) 2008 
HaUTIat (Equipment Gran!) 2009 
AFG (V>'eUness Grarlt) 2008 
AFG (Prevention Grant) 2008 

Capital 
Capital 
Cap;tal 
Capital 
Capilal 
Capita l 
Capita l 
Capital 
Capital 
Planning 
Planning 
Planning 
Planning 

Staffing for Adequate Fife and Emergency Response (SAFER) FY2008 
Law Enforcement Olncer Re:mbursement Agreemenl Program 

us DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
Pass through from the NC Department of Environmental and Natural Resources 
Clean Water Slate Revolving Fund 

Federal 
CFDA 

Number 

93.044 

81 .128 

20. 106 
20.106 
20.106 
20. 106 
20.106 
20.106 

20.205 
20.205 

20.507 
20.507 
20,507 
20,507 
20.507 
20,507 
20.507 
20.507 
20.507 
20,507 
20.507 
20.507 
20.507 
20.507 
20.507 

97.067 
97.073 
97.067 
97.067 
97.044 
97.044 
97.044 
97.090 

ARRA· S!orm-.... aler Impro~ements (Kombow Ne:ghoomood Swainey Ave) (note 6) 66.458 
ARRA· Skye Or Underground Detention Basins (note 6) 66.458 

tiC DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

Aviation Division 

West GA Ramp Rehabilitation 
Rehabilita\e Visual Navi9ational Aids 
V!!geta tion Management 

Public Transportation Division 
Ma'nlenance Assistance 
Capital 
Capital 
Capital 
Capital 
Capital 
Plann:ng 
Plann'ng 
Planfling 
Plann~ng 

NlA 
NlA 
NlA 

NlA 
NlA 
NlA 
NlA 
NlA 
NIA 
NlA 
NIA 
NIA 
NlA 

0·11 

Statel 
Pass·through 

Grantor's 
Number 

2010-WAL·B4B-NCI 

NlA 

DE·SCOOO2635 

FAA·3-37·0021·31 
FAA·3-37-OO2 1·32 
FAA·3-37-OO21·33 
FAA·3-37·0021·34 
FAA·3-37·0021·35 
FAA·3-37·0021 ·36 

E-4118C 
El·5102 

NC.90.X464 
NC.g(J,X444 
NC 90.0313 
NC 90,0327 
NC 90.0357 
NC 90.0378 
NC 90.0406 
NC 90.0425 
NC 90.0444 
NC.04.0027 
NC90.0457 
NC 90.2406 
NC 90.2425 
NC.90.2453 
NC.90.2464 

2006-GE·T6-0010 
2007-GE·T7·0048 
200S-GE·TS-0033 
2009-S$·T9·0Q46 
B.'M'·2008-F0-11460 
EMW·2008·Fp·Ol042 
EMW·2008·FF·Ot043 
HSTS0208HSLRI41 

2W370434·09 
2W3704l4· 10 

36244.27.8.1 
36244.27.9.2 
36244.27.9. 1 

36223,7.5.3 
36231.3.1.2 
36231.3.2.2/.3 
36232.22.1.3.'4 
36231 ,3.4.3 
36231.3.5,6 
36231 .3.2.6 
36231,3,3,6 
36231,3.4.6 

Federal (Dire'::! 
& Pass-throughl Slate To tal 

ElCpendilures ElCpendilures ElIpenditures 

S 7823 $ 7823 
7823 7823 

28554 28.554 
28554 28554 

7$000 7$000 
75,000 75.000 

103,045 103.045 
9,690 9.690 

345,800 345.800 
1,871,704 1.871.704 

246,535 246.535 
571697 57t 697 

3 t48 471 3 148471 

215,509 215.509 
29.023 29,023 

244.532 244532 

84t.382 841,382 
214.103 214,103 
25.492 25,492 
43.430 43,430 
17,913 17,913 
16.000 16,000 
17,820 17,820 
1.444 1,444 
5.706 5,706 

1.315,038 1,315,038 
130.898 130,898 
37.462 37,462 
17.813 17,813 
19.723 19,723 
13, t47 13147 

2.717 37 1 2717371 

37 37 
152.112 152,112 
40.1 49 40,149 

1.715 1,715 
196.168 196,168 
30.396 30,396 

777.318 777,318 
145595 145595 

1343.490 1,343,490 

464,503 464.503 
536692 536 692 

1.001 195 1001,195 

478,179 478.179 
10,440 10.440 
25200 25200 

513819 513.819 

533,998 533.998 
5,429 5.429 
1,726 1.726 
1,852 1.852 

134,622 134.622 
16,362 16.362 

1,643 t.643 
4,683 4.683 
2,227 2.227 
246$ 2.465 

705007 705007 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federa l and State Awards 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Statel 
Fed(!ral Pass·through 
CFDA Grantor's 

Federal (Direct 
& Pass·throughl State GRANTORIPASS· THROUGH 

GrantorlProgram TrUe Number Number Expenditures Expenditures 

PO'II't'n Bill 

Division 01 Highways 
CWoa!e S:de"H3!lt WBS 3606.3.06 
Murchison Rd at Cumberland 5 t Pipe Repiacemen~'UP9rade 

Rai l Division 
Soothgale Rd Crossing Signal Ins taHatioo 
BrOll'N)'n St Crossing Sfgnal Installation 

NC DEPARTMENT OF ENV!RONMENTAL AND NATURAL RESOURCES 
Division or Waste Management 

Community Waste RedUCtion and Recycling Granl 

NC DEPARTMENT OF CRIME CONTROL & PUBLIC SAFETY 

Hazmat (RRT Grant) 

Pass through Fayetteville State University 
Fire Tra ining Facil:ty 

NC DEPARTMENT OF JUVENILE JUSTICE AND DELINQUENCY PREVENTION 
Pass through from Cumberland County 

Jl.Nen~e Res~tutioo FYE 2010 

NC OFFICE OF THE STATE CONTROLLER 
NC Unauthorized Substance Tax 

NC Rural Economic Develooment Cenler 
Rural Economic Development Center Inc 

NC VETERANS AFFAIRS DMSION 

NC Velerans Parlls Phase #2 
NC Velerans Parlls 

NC DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE 

Permanent Checking Station 

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL ANO STATE AWARDS' 

NlA 

NlA 
NlA 

NlA 
NlA 

NJA 

NlA 

NlA 

NlA 

NlA 

NIA 

NlA 
NJA 

NlA 

ER·2971 F 
WBS: 6.102611 

Z·4506G 
Z· 4406AF 

2786 

RRT 3 2009 

NlA 

2008-- 1 03--S0315-1 02 

NCGA Senate Bill 161 I' 
1301-536980-17717711 

$ 13,090,946 

1. The accompanying scheeu:e of expenditures 01 Federal and State awards includes the Federal arld Sta te grant activity 01 the City 01 Fayettevi~!e and is presented on the modified accrual 
basis of accounting. The information in this schedu:e is presented in accordance with the requirements of O~B Circular A·133. "Aud,IS of Stales Local Goyemments and NOfI·Profrt. Organizations." 
Therelore, some amounts presented in this schedu:e may differ from amounls presented in, or used in the prepara~on 01 the basic financial statements 

2. The total local match requ:rements lor the Federal and State Transit operating assistance grants was $852,276. The actuallceal malch I'ohich the City of Fayertevme expended lor the operatioos 
01 the transit system was 5852,276. 

3. The totalloc.al contributions lor the State POIIie:1 Bill assistar.ce amounted to 513 1,043 (this represents assessments receM:d ami interest earned through 06/30110). 

4. The amount of HO.\tE Investment Partnerships pro'/ided to CHDO's is 5278,550 as of June 30, 2010. 

5. PO',\'t'1i Bill expenditures as reported above represen t e~g;b: e expendilufes reported to the North Caro:ina Department of Transporlation for the fiscal year end:ng June 30, 20 10 
The City is requ'red to report annual;Y to the tlorth Caro"na Department 01 Transportation on the accumulated unexpended POI/,e :1 Bm funds. Une:<.pended PG\wll B~l lullds are accounted 
for and ma:ntained I'oi thin the transportation lund. The tOlal une:<.pended balance on·hand at June 30, 2010 is 52,425,237. 

6. Loans Dutstand-11Q 
City of Fayetteville had the follO'Mngloan balances outstanding as June 30, 2010. These !oan balances are also induded in the federal expenditures presented in the Schedule. 

Prooram Title 

ARRA - Stormwater Improvements (Kombow Neighborhood · Swainey Ave) 
ARRA - Skye Dr Underground Detention Basins 
Community Deve:opment Block Grant Se<:tioo 10Sloan Guarantee 

CFDA 
Numbers 

66.458 
66.458 
14_248 

Q· 12 

Pass-through 
Grantor's Amount 
Number Outstanding 

2W370434·09 $ 232,252 
2W370434·10 $ 268,346 

B-07·MG-37·0005 $ 750,000 

4.010334 

58,236 
20000 
78236 

4.512 
6575 

11087 

20714 
20714 

62,660 

5408 
68068 

38.019 
38019 

160.259 
160 259 

23660 
23.660 

1.867,906 
108 262 

1.976,158 

, 500 

7607,871 

To tal 
Expenditures 

4.010334 

58,236 
'0000 
78236 

4.512 
6575 

11087 

20.714 
20714 

62,660 

5.408 
6S,068 

38,019 
38019 

160,259 
160.259 

23,660 
23.680 

1,867,906 
108,262 

1976,166 

' .500 

S 20,698,S17 



• Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to 
the Passenger Facility Charge Program and Internal Control 
Over Compliance in Accordance with the Passenger Facility 
Charge Program Audit Guide 

• Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

• Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings 

• Schedule of Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges 



CERTIFIED PUBLIC 
ACCOUNTANTS & 
CONSULTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO THE 
PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH THE PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE PROGRAM AUDIT GUIDE 

The Honorable Mayor 
and Members of the City Council 

City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 

Compliance 
We have audited the compliance of the City of Fayetteville, North Carolina, ("the City") with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies, issued by 
the Federal Aviation Administration (Guide), for its passenger facility charge program for the year ended June 30, 
2010. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its passenger 
facility charge program is the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on the City's compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
Stales of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the Guide. Those standards and the Guide require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types 
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the passenger facility 
charge program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance 
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide 
a legal determination of the City's compliance wi th those requirements. 

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above that 
that could have a direct and material effecl on its passenger facility charge program for the year ended June 30, 
2010. 

Internal Control Over Compliance 
The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with requirements of laws, regu lations, contracts and grants applicable to the passenger facility 
charge program. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over compliance 
with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on the passenger facility charge program in order to 
determine our aud iting procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report 
on the internal control over compliance in accordance with the Guide, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the City's internal control over compliance. 
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions , to 
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of the passenger facility 
charge program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that 
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of the passenger facility charge program will not 
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be deficiencies, 
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the organization, 
members of the City Council, the Federal Aviation Administration, and federal and State awarding agencies and 
pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified 
parties. 

CHERRY, BEKAERT & HOLLAND, L.L.P. 

Fayetteville, North Carolina 
November 15, 2010 
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 

SECTION I. Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Stalements 

Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

Material weakness(es) idenlified Yes ~ No 

Significant Oeficiency(s) idenlified 
thai are not considered 10 be 
material weaknesses Yes ~ None reported 

Noncompliance material 10 financial 
statements noted Yes ~ No 

Passenger Facilily Charge Program 

Internal control over passenger facility charge program: 

Material weakness(es) identified Yes ~ No 

Significant Oeficiency(s) identified 
that are not considered to be 
material weaknesses Yes ~ None reported 

Noncompliance material to passenger 
facility charge program Yes ~ No 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for passenger facility charge program: 
Unqualified 

Any audit findings disclosed Yes ~ No 

Section II. Financial Statement Findings 

None reporled. 

Section III. Passenger Facility Charge Findings and Questioned Costs 

None reporled. 
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No findings in the prior year. 

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 
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CLOSED APPLlCATIOll 1 (OO.(l I .c.(l~.fAY & 02.(12.u.(l2.fAy) 

APPLICATION 2 (to5.(l1.(:.(IHAy) 

Obs:ruction Remow.l 

H~pUl'tDe .. ke 

PFC ~:ion (0rigNI Pr'9am) 

Jetbridge /,~odilkation. (Gatn B-2 and B-4) 

Rehabili!ate Ait.e!d ~ 

Pave MFF (, Su'\.~ Road 

S eo..ri)' Clmern System 

TOTAll..,POSE A/ID USE APPUCATlON 2 

APPLICATION 3 (f(I~.(I.t.c.oo·FAY) 

AlP 26 - T ... minal Phase D 

Employee P~fllol<J (non re .. ef11<!) 

AlP 2S -land Ac:~Eon 

HM"<kap Acce ... lo Narum Bod'i J e ts 

AlP 31 . Fn TlaflinoJ f u :!ty Rehlb . 

AlP 32 ARFF Rffiab. De':gn 

AlP 32 Snow Remo...al Eq,ip B:dg Design alld Ccos!n>ctlon 

St.at. GrOll! Stoflnwater Imp<o"omef!( 

MFF Rehab (213 of Irr.ou1! alowed pt'r fAA) (AlP3S-36) 

Vau!tCons.!ruc~on (AlP 33) (Aiflield Ugh:.) 

S late Grlll1l Se«rlty f e""e Gat ... 

CITY OF FAYETIEVlllE, NORTH CAROliNA 
Schedule of Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges 

Year Ended June 3D, 2010 

Impo.e Un 
EHlOCtNe ElflOCtive 
D~te Data 

1(I{1r'200S 10/11'2005 

H1I112OO5 1011rlOO5 

1(1{112OO5 10/112005 

1(1{\/'lOO5 10/112005 

1I1I1/200'5 1011/2005 

100trlOO5 10/112005 

101\/200'5 10/112005 

101112005 10/112005 

1001rlOO5 1001rlOO5 

1(1{1rlOO5 10/112005 

111/112005 1011/2005 

100 lf2005 10/1/2005 

100lf2005 1011/2005 

1011f2005 10/1!2005 

101112005 1011/2005 

100lf2005 10.'1/2005 

101112005 lOJ lf2oo5 

101112005 1011/2005 

IOIlf2005 Hlil/2005 

1011f2005 l Oi l noo5 

10/\f2oo5 1(I{ 1noo5 

l o/lnoo5 10/112005 

1011f2005 101112005 

10I\f2005 1(1{I/2005 

l o,olf2005 10/112005 

1011f2005 l OilrlOO5 

71112009 

71112009 711f2009 

7I1f2009 71112009 

11112009 11112009 

71112009 71112009 

71112009 71112009 

711r7Q09 711 12009 

71\f2oo9 

71112009 71112009 

71112009 71112009 

7IIf200!/ 

71112009 7/1 12009 

71112009 711 12009 

7/112009 7/112009 

7I\f2009 7Itf2009 

CumuL.1live 
Expendigu 

AeMI 

22,Os.l,&39 

$60,017 

1,417,695 

:l<}5,587 

50,972 

24,495 

12,7&7 

7,7&9 

123,710 

~,073 

96,110 

173,095 

274 ,663 

114,77& 

11(.1&9 

515,000 

7.550 

~O , a.ol 

4,41 0,310 $ 

2,05() ,851 S 

5&J,~97 

33,475 

757,990 

15,544 

227,920 

.,,'" 

6,060,!06 

53,~56 

R-5 

Approved 
E.lpend iture. 

fo r PFC's 

614.&00 

1.531,500 

295 ,000 

51,120 

4,995 

10,400 

12,866 

' .000 

123,770 

100,000 

25ll ,000 

190,000 

&0 ,000 

570,000 

620,000 

515 ,000 

475 ,000 

200,000 

750,000 

750 ,000 

"'.000 

20 ,000 

700 ,000 

10,000 

8,497,49 1 

1,674 ,340 

60 ,000 

615 ,000 

60 ,823 

35,818 

1,IM,740 

293 ,340 

136,260 

165,400 

113,920 

330,000 

1,340,000 

5,003 ,&00 

7,171 ,540 

200,000 

........ 
of Use 

Approva l 

1,061,391 

30,740 

76,575 

14,750 

2 ,5~ 

4,995 

1,040 

12,866 

' .000 
61 ,835 

9,054 

>.000 

12,500 

'."'" 
so,ooo 

28 ,500 

31 ,000 

25,750 

23 ,75-0 

10,000 

37,500 

37 ,500 

25,000 

20,000 

35,000 

10,000 

614 ,636 

83,7 17 

60,000 

61 ,500 

60,823 

35,81! 

59,337 

14,661 

6,&13 

&,270 

5,695 

33,000 

67 ,000 

25ll, I90 

358,577 

20,000 

PFC R .......... 
Uudin 

PriorYurs 

1,061,391 

73,&&5 

14,750 

'.m 
4,995 

12,7&7 

7,189 

61,U5 

5,W7 

'.'" 
&,655 

13,732 

5,739 

25,750 

25,000 

20,000 

- , 

PFC Rev ........ 
Uudin 

CurrenlYur 

" 

" . 
83,7 17 $ 

58,350 

60,&23 

33,H5 

37,900 

m 

22,792 

43,065 

104,50l 

303,0.10 

5,346 

Tot.;l l PFC 

Rev ..... s 

",,' 
1,061,391 

n,!!5 

14,750 

2,549 

4,995 

12,787 

7.789 

61,835 

5,607 .... 
&,655 

13,132 

5,709 

25,750 

'" 

25,000 

20,000 

324,231 

&3,717 

5&,350 

60,823 

33,475 

37,900 

m 

22,792 

43,065 

10.1,503 

303,040 

5,346 



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 
Schedule of Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Impose ,,, CwnulalNe ApprovlMl '"""'" PFC RevffiUe PFC RevfilUfl Total Pfc 

Effec tive EffIXI;'. E.>pendilu"es E><pendih.ns of Un Uoed ln Us lMlln Rev~......, s 

Project Dale Dale Ach.L11 forPFC's Approval PriorYu rs CutrenlYur ".., 
Replace AAFF T""k 11112009 71112009 700,000 700,000 

"'" Carrie< Asj)hal Reh.Jb A4:><oo ~ 71112009 71112009 70,000 ' .>00 
T..,;.,.. .. yA~s!gn. S~Mr, Over .... y, I.lglt$ 71112009 71112009 202,9% 195,000 9,750 9,150 9,nO 

8teod TDlNiIy A DeS:gn 71112009 71112009 &5,000 ,"SO 

Cr:>rl$lruc~(I(I Ta .cwa.~ A ~ Overlay, I..Igh:s 71112009 7I1f2009 3,000,000 150,000 

TDTAll!o!POSE AND USE APPUCATION 3 14,SoIl,J21 , 22,436,9at 1,"2.'08 , 763,m , 763,538 

ImpouOnly 

Repla ce EW Jet ~ 71112009 N" 47S,000 

CornllVl C~ a'f.'ha~ Reh>obaPion 71112009 W, 749,220 

COO!ilruc\ TX A Ellmsion 11112009 WA &50,000 

/VI Carrie< Concrete - apron rtll,:r 1ksl<;,T> 71112009 iliA &5,000 

Tennnal Phas.,o, IV 7/112009 N" 1,000,000 

A!rfine COilCfe\~ apron repa'" ,~, 7/112009 /IIA 9&0,000 

R\'/4122 paved ~ - Iks;g1 71112009 tIIA 120,000 

Land acqoisi!!M RI'I. RPZ 7/112009 II'A 1,684 ,220 

Coffitruc:1 FNI.122 p. ,ed sl'IoIJ<I<o", 71112009 tilA 1,800,000 

GA ' \f.o patt.n-.l l>C<He,' ffi<H: 71112009 N" 150,000 

TOTAL IMPOSE or/LY APPUCATION 3 7,893,440 

TOTAL APPUCATION 3 14,543,3 21 30,330,42 1 1,991,90S 763,533 163,53& 

GRANO TOTAL 41,068,520 59,817,126 3,663,98 5 1,3&5,595 163,565 2,149,160 

NQTU TQ THE SCHEDULE Of EXPENDITURES OF PASSENGE!,! E~Clld!l CHA!,!GES ' 

I, The ac<omp;my'.n:lsct.edUe 01 e>pendluru of paOHfl9i'r lacilty ch.vges is pr"soonle d on 1M M1 acaual ba .... of .ccount'ng 
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